Governance, Audit and Risk
Management Committee

DATE: Tuesday 29 March 2011
TIME: 7.30 pm
VENUE: Committee Room 5,

Harrow Civic Centre

MEMBERSHIP  (Quorum 3)

Chairman: Councillor John Cowan

Councillors:

Mano Dharmarajah Richard Romain
Thaya Idaikkadar (VC) Yogesh Teli
Nizam Ismail

Sachin Shah

Reserve Members:

1. Ben Wealthy 1. Tony Ferrari

2. Ajay Maru 2. Stephen Wright
3. Krishna Suresh 3. Anthony Seymour
4. Krishna James

Contact: Lysandra Dwyer, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 020 8424 1264 E-mail: lysandra.dwyer@harrow.gov.uk

( %?l‘f'ﬂétCDUNCIL )

LONDON



AGENDA - PART I

1.  ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS
To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members.
Reserve Members may attend meetings:-

(1) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve;

(i) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and

(i)  the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the
Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve;

(iv)  if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after
the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after
his/her arrival.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to
be transacted at this meeting, from:

(@)  all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum;
(b)  all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber.

3. MINUTES (Pages 1-8)

That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2011 be taken as read and
signed as a correct record.

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS

To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions
of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution).

5. PETITIONS

To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under
the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution).

6. DEPUTATIONS

To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule
16 (Part 4B) of the Constitution.

7. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS

(@)  Treasury Management Strategy Statement. Reference from the Cabinet
meeting on 10 February 2011

(b) Final Revenue Budget 2011-12 and 2015-16: Reference from the Cabinet
meeting on 10 February 2011

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 29 March 2011



10.

1.

12.

13.

(b)

Treasury Management Strategy Statement (MRP) Prudential Indicators &
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy & Strategy 2011/12: Reference from the
Cabinet meeting on 10 February 2011: (Pages 9 - 10)

For the sake of economy, the report which was circulated on the agenda for
the February Cabinet meeting is not being reprinted in this agenda, and
Members are therefore requested to bring their copies with them to the
meeting.

Final Reveune Budget 2011-12 and 2015-16: Reference from the Cabinet
meeting on 10 February 2011: (Pages 11 - 14)

For the sake of economy, the report which was circulated on the agenda for
the February Cabinet meeting is not being reprinted in this agenda, and
Members are therefore requested to bring their copies with them to the
meeting.

INFORMATION REPORT - AUDIT PLAN FOR 2010 -11 (Pages 15 - 76)

Report of the Interim Director Finance.

DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/12 (Pages 77 - 126)

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive

AUDIT FEE LETTER 2011-12 (Pages 127 - 134)

Report of the Interim Director Finance.

INFORMATION REPORT - CAPITAL INVESTIGATION IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
(Pages 135 - 160)

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive.

MANAGING ASBESTOS

Verbal Update of the Service Manager Internal Audit
ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

Which cannot otherwise be dealt with.

AGENDA - PART Il - NIL

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 29 March 2011



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3
(P-ages-1 t0-8--~L

LUNUUN

__

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND RISK

52.

53.

54.

55.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

19 JANUARY 2011

Chairman: * Councillor John Cowan

Councillors: * Mano Dharmarajah * Richard Romain
* Thaya Idaikkadar * Sachin Shah
* Nizam Ismail * Yogesh Teli

In attendance: Bill Stephenson

(Councillors)

*

Denotes Member present

Attendance by Reserve Members

RESOLVED: To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance at
this meeting.

Declarations of Interest

RESOLVED: To note that there were no declarations of interests made by
Members.

Minutes

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2010, be
taken as read and signed as a correct record.

Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations

RESOLVED: To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or
deputations received at this meeting.

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19 . 1 11 -28 -



56.

57.

58.

-29-

References from Council and other Committees/Panels

A reference from the Cabinet meeting on 15 December 2010 on the Half Year
2010/11 Treasury Management Activity Report was received by the
Committee.

RESOLVED: That the reference be noted.

Capital Programme - Reference from the Cabinet meeting on 15
December 2010

The Committee received a reference from the Cabinet meeting on
15 December 2010 on the Capital Programme.

RESOLVED: That the reference be noted.

RECOMMENDED ITEMS

Capital Programme - Report of the Director of Legal and Governance
Services

An officer presented a report that set out how the Council was responding to
recommendations in the report on the Capital Programme presented at the
Cabinet meeting on 15 December 2010. The officer reported that:

. two investigations had been completed with outcomes relating to
project management and financial management. As a result of the
investigation, a series of recommendations had been discussed with
the Leader of the Council and the Corporate Directors who would be
responsible for overseeing their implementation;

° the Cabinet report had also been considered by Deloitte Touche LLP,
the Council’s external auditors who were responsible for approving the
annual accounts;

° Cabinet had requested that the Governance, Audit and Risk
Management (GARM) Committee monitor and report on the
implementation of the investigation and that the Internal Audit team
independently verify the process undertaken;

. a further report would be presented to the GARM Committee meeting
on 29 March 2011. Members would have an opportunity to address
any shortcomings in implementing the recommendations and how the
Council’'s Governance framework should be developed in the future.

In response Members agreed that the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the
GARM Committee with meet with officers to ensure that all recommendations
were implemented. A Member commented that the investigation provided an
opportunity to introduce practical systems within the work environment that
enhanced performance and positive behaviour.

2 1ce, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19 January 2011



RESOLVED: That
(1)  the report be noted;

(2)  the suggested method of monitoring and reporting the implementation
of recommendations in the Cabinet report be agreed;

(3)  a progress report on the implementation of the recommendations and
reviewing the Council’'s governance arrangements would be presented
to the GARM meeting on 29 March 2011.

RESOLVED ITEMS
59. Half-Year 2010/11 Treasury Management Activity Report

The Committee received a report on the Half-Year Treasury Management
Activity that was also presented at Cabinet meeting on 15 December 2010.

An officer advised that:

. the Treasury Management Strategy was approved by Cabinet on
11 February 2010, to ensure that it complied with the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice
on Treasury Management;

. finance officers within the Council were tasked with managing the
Council’s cash flow to ensure that the return on investments were
maximised with minimal risk to the Council’s assets;

. the report outlined the half-year performance of treasury management
activities to 30 September 2010 against indicators within the Prudential
Code for Capital Finance. Lower than estimated borrowing costs and
additional investment income had contributed to a surplus of £819,000
on the capital financing and investment income budget;

. a draft Treasury Management Strategy would be considered by the
GARM Committee Lead Member for Finance before it was submitted to
Cabinet on 10 February 2011 and ratified by Council on 17 February
2011.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

60. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Update
In officer presented a report that provided an update on the IFRS plan and
progress made on the implementation timetable. She added that significant
progress for implementing the IFRS plan against the statutory programme had

been made.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19. 3 )11 -30-



61.

-31 -

INFORMATION REPORT - Annual Audit Letter 2009/10

A report on the Annual Audit Letter 2009/10 was presented to the Committee
which considered its content. A representative of Deloitte Touche, the
Council’s external auditors, reported that:

. the Annual Audit letter replicated findings in the statement presented at
the GARM Committee meeting on 28 September 2010. Following the
investigation into the capital overspend, an unqualified audit opinion on
the Council’'s 2009/10 accounts was issued on 28 October 2010.

. a qualified opinion on the Council's Value for Money (VFM)
arrangement in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice had been
provided. A weakness in the management, control and monitoring of
certain capital projects during the year had led to a specific overspend.
Nevertheless, the external auditors were satisfied that robust
arrangements in relation to the effective and efficient use of resources
in the year ending 31 March 2010 had been made, except for
managing its risks and maintaining a sound system of internal control;

) an unqualified audit opinion on the Council’'s 2009/10 pension scheme
annual report had been issued on 30 September 2010, ahead of the
statutory deadline of 1 December 2010;

. an unqualified statement of assurance relating to the Council’s
consolidation return was presented to the National Audit Office on
28 October 2010;

. certification of the 2009/10 accounts had not taken place as an ongoing

objection to credit card fees on parking and traffic penalty charges by a
local resident was unresolved;

) a separate management letter on the outcome of grant certification had
been written. Deloitte Touche LLP, had not identified any specific areas
of concern in relation to grant claims and other returns.

In response to questions, the representative and an officer advised that:

. the Chairman of the GARM Committee had delegated authority to
counter-sign the Council’s financial statements;

° the external auditors were employed to take an objective view of the
Council’s financial statements. A capital investigation was initiated by
the Council in relation to capital expenditure. The external auditors
were unable to sign the statement of accounts on 30 September 2010
as the Council’s investigation was ongoing. The finance team had kept
the external auditors updated on the progress of the investigation;

e whilst completing the audit, the auditors had identified two specific key

lines of enquiry (KLOE) relating to financial management and risk
management and internal control which may have been affected by the

4 1ce, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19 January 2011



62.

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19. 5§ )11 -32 -

capital issue. No qualification was required in relation to financial
management;

o miscoding may have taken place earlier but had not been picked up in
previous years. The external auditors would seek to ensure that the
measures introduced internally were effective;

. the financial statements had not been amended since September
2010. Officers had made some amendments to the Annual
Governance statement and the auditor had qualified his VFM
conclusions;

) recommendations made by the auditors in relation to the pension
scheme annual report had been followed up by officers within the
finance team. The progress made by the finance team would be
revisited when the 2010/11 annual accounts would be audited;

) the 2009/10 annual accounts were signed in October 2010 by the
external auditors following completion of the investigation and the
recommendation of revised internal measures within the Council.

The Chairman of the Committee noted the positive working relationship
between the Council and Deloitte Touche LLP and thanked the external
auditors and officers for completing the 2009/10 annual audit.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

INFORMATION REPORT - Risk, Audit & Fraud Division Activity Update
Officers within the Internal Audit Team presented a report that outlined the
current work streams and future work of the Risk, Audit and Fraud group of
services in Harrow Council. In relation to different teams within the division the
Committee noted that:

Corporate Anti-Fraud Team

Harrow had been identified to receive additional funding to tackle and address
housing fraud. The appointment of a new Housing Fraud Investigations
Officer at the end of January 2011 would assist the team in managing the
increasing number of housing fraud investigations completed by the team.

There had been a rise in the number of people registered on the housing
waiting list. This was an increase of 11% between July and September 2010
from the previous quarter.

Information Management

A policy on Information Management that complied with appropriate
legislation would be introduced throughout the Council in the near future. All
Directorates would be provided with an Information Risk Plan and data



63.

64.

65.

66.

-33-

restrictions that would manage data and minimise the loss of sensitive
information.

Health & Safety

An update report on the investigation in relation to the management of
asbestos was provided. Further updates will be provided to the Committee in
due course.

Follow Up Report on Statement of Accounts

An officer provided a verbal update on the statement of accounts reported at
the GARM meeting on 28 September 2010.

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.

(Please also see Minute ltem 60)

Vote of Thanks

As this was the last meeting of the Committee before the Corporate Director
of Finance left to begin a new post, the Chairman expressed his appreciation
for all her work and the support provided to the GARM Committee by the

Finance Team.

In response, the Corporate Director of Finance thanked Members and the
officers in attendance at the meeting.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

RESOLVED: That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the
following item for the reasons set out below:

Ite Title Reason
15. Risk, Audit and Fraud Team Information under paragraph 3
Investigation Updates (contains information relating to

the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information).

Risk, Audit and Fraud Team Investigation Updates

An officer from the Risk, Audit and Fraud team provided a verbal update on
the progress of ongoing investigations by the Audit team.

The Committee were advised that:

6 1ce, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19 January 2011



. the Overview & Scrutiny Committee had reviewed the allocation of
grant funding for voluntary organisations. The officer confirmed that a
report on the review would be presented to the GARM Committee;

o a report on financial controls of infant schools within the Borough would
be presented to the next GARM Committee meeting on 29 March
2011.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 9.10 pm).

(Signed) COUNCILLOR JOHN COWAN
Chairman

Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee - 19 . 7 11 -34 -



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7a
Pages 9to 10

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW
GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

29 MARCH 2011
REFERENCE FROM CABINET - 10 FEBRUARY 2011

Minute 154 - Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Prudential Indicators and
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy and Strategy 2011/12

The Corporate Director Finance introduced a report, which set out the Council’s
Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Prudential Indicators and Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy and Strategy for 2011/12.  She explained that
Treasury Management was the management of the Council’'s investments and cash
flows, its banking, money market and debt transactions together with the effective
control of risks associated with those activities.

The Corporate Director highlighted the importance of risk minimisation, as the Council
was funded by public money. It was important for an authority to strike a balance
between risk and return in order to allow for a contribution to the budget. The
borrowing element was also a key aspect with duration and timing as essential
ingredients. She explained that as base rates were currently low, it was better to
borrow internally but that this would be kept under review.

Resolved to RECOMMEND: (to Council) That
(1)  the Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators be approved;
(2)  the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Strategy for 2011/12 be approved.

RESOLVED: That the report be referred for review to the Governance Audit and Risk
Management Committee.

Reason for Decision: To promote effective financial management and comply with

the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) Regulations 2003 and other
relevant guidance.

FOR CONSIDERATION

Background Documents:
Minutes of Cabinet

Contact: Daksha Ghelani, Acting Senior Professional, Democratic Services
Tel: 020 8424 1881 (or Ext 2881) daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank

10



Agenda ltem 7b
Pages 11 to 14

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW
GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

29 MARCH 2011
REFERENCE FROM CABINET - 10 FEBRUARY 2011

Minute 151 - Key Decision - Final Revenue Budget 2011/12 to 2015/16

Cabinet received a report of the Corporate Director Finance, which set out the final
Revenue Budget for 2011/12 and the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2011/12 to
2015/16. The Revenue Budget set out the Council Tax Strategy and spending plans,
including new investment and savings proposals. The report set out the impact of the
proposals and included information on the local government settlement, reserves policy
and consultation on the budget. It covered all of the Council’s main activities, including
schools.

The Leader of the Council stated that this was the first budget of the new administration
and that it had been a challenging process as a result of the cuts imposed in the region
of 28% over a four year period. The severity of the cuts in local government and other
public sector bodies, such as the Primary Care Trusts (PCTs), had led to many
requests to the government to change its mind. A £5.6m in-year funding gap had been
filled and the budget proposed by the administration was responsible and robust.

The Leader acknowledged that it had been difficult to deliver a balanced budget without
affecting front line services but he was proud that Harrow would be retaining all its
libraries and children centres which would remain open. This had been possible as a
result of planning ahead and that during the last eight months 12 major projects were
being delivered and front line services had been defended. Some of these projects
would be considered at the next Cabinet meeting.

The Leader alluded to various proposals which were underway and those that had
contributed towards a robust budget, such as a major procurement exercise which
would include working with Hammersmith & Fulham Council, a re-shaping of the senior
management structure, a successful voluntary severance scheme and joint working
through the West London Alliance. He also referred to funding gaps in future years,
that could increase if further cuts were imposed by government.

The Leader commended the budget stating that it could not be considered as having
been produced by applying a ‘salami slicing’ approach. He thanked officers for their
work in ensuring a balanced budget.

The Corporate Director Finance highlighted key aspects of the report and explained
how the funding gap had been closed, which had been achieved due to technical
changes, levies on other public bodies and the positive position on the collection fund.
She added that the impact of investments and savings proposed had been carefully
considered, a new policy on contingencies was being proposed, and the reserves policy
and the rules on virements needed amending. The budget contained a £1m
contingency fund. A detailed risk assessment of the budget would be referred to the
Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee (GARM), and the schools’ budget

11



was ring-fenced. The Greater London Authority (GLA) budget precept was expected to
be set at zero but had yet to be agreed as a result of which the Council meeting date
had been changed to 10 March 2011.

The Corporate Director highlighted the challenges that lay ahead as a result of the
settlements which would be reduced by £7m in 2012/13 and £5m in 2013/14. However,
a 0% Council Tax increase for 2011/12 was proposed. She was recommending a
budget to Cabinet and Council that was robust and had adequate reserves.

The Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care, Health and Well-Being updated paragraph
39 of the report under the Adults and Housing section and it was agreed that it should
read: ‘There are a number of areas which were currently subject to consultation which
were shown in the budget. No decision had been made on those areas. However, the
pre-consultation phase had now been concluded. The Steering Group met this morning
and agreed that it go forward to a full consultation. The full consultation has to be over
12 weeks. It is anticipated that it will conclude in the early summer. The results will be
report to Cabinet later in the year. There were no alternative plans to achieve these
savings if proposals were not implemented post consultation. Covering these savings
was therefore the first call on the contingency fund established as part of the 2011/12
budget.’

Cabinet noted the tabled reference from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in this
regard and the feedback received from the stakeholders.

Resolved to RECOMMEND: (to Council)

That, subject to the update on paragraph 39 above,

(1)  the budget be approved to enable the Council Tax for 2011/12 to be set;

(2)  the policy on the use of contingency at appendix 7 to the report be approved;
(3)  the schools budget at appendix 8 to the report be approved,;

(4) the reserves policy at appendix 10 to the report be approved;

(5) the virement rules at appendix 11 to the report be added to the financial
regulations;

(6) Members’ Allowances be frozen and the current Members’ Allowances Scheme
be adopted for 2011/12;

(7)  the model Council Tax resolution at appendix 1 to the minutes be approved.
RESOLVED: That

(1)  the Medium Term Financial Strategy at appendix 1 to the report be approved;
(2)  the planned investment in services and efficiency programme be noted;

(3) in relation to schools, the proposed changes to the formula be approved;

(4) the risk assessment at appendix 9 to the report be referred to the Governance,
Audit and Risk Management Committee for consideration.

12



Reason for Decision: To ensure that the Council sets a balanced budget for 2011/12.
FOR CONSIDERATION

Background Documents:
Minutes of Cabinet

Contact: Daksha Ghelani, Acting Senior Professional, Democratic Services
Tel: 020 8424 1881 (or Ext 2881) daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk

13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



Agenda Item 8
Pages 15to 76

Governance, Audit and Risk
Management Committee

Date of Meeting: 29 March 2011

Subject: INFORMATION REPORT - Audit
Plan for 2010 -11

Responsible Officer: Julie Alderson
Interim Director of Finance

Exempt: No
Enclosures: Appendix 1 — 2010-11 Accounts
Opinion Audit Plan

Appendix 2 - 2010-11 Pension Fund
Annual Report Audit Plan

Appendix 3 - Audit Report on Grant
Certifications 2009-10

Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

This report provides the Committee with an opportunity to see the 2010-11
Accounts Opinion Audit Plan and Pension Fund Annual Report Audit Plan.

Recommendations:

The Committee is requested to note:

1. The 2010-11 Accounts Opinion Audit Plan and Pension Fund Annual
Report Audit Plan; and

2. Audit Report on Grant Certifications for 2009-10

Reason

To keep the Committee informed of planned work.

LONDON

(Harroatouncr)
. arroanCOUNCIL



Section 2: Report

Audit Plan for 2010-11

1. The Accounts Opinion Audit Plan provides the Council with clarity about how
the external audit of the accounts for 2010-11 will be conducted and highlights
the key audit risks. It is an extremely useful document, as it will help the
Council to plan and prioritise its work on the accounts. It also gives the
Committee early sight of the issues that will be pertinent.

2. The Committee is asked to consider the plan and in particular the key audit
risks. The External Audit has already carried out some preparatory work for
the audit of the 2010-11 accounts, and the Council is working to address the
key audit risks.

3. Committee will receive a verbal presentation of the report.

Grant Certifications 2009-10

4. The Report on Grant Certifications in relation to 2009-10 is attached as
appendix 3 to this report. Eight grant claims and returns were certified for
2009-10 of which six resulted in an unqualified opinion. Adjustments were

made to two grant claims, both of which were greater than £10,000. A
qualification letter was issued in respect of one grant claim.

Financial Implications

5. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Section 3 - Statutory clearance

Name: Julie Alderson | V| Chief Financial Officer

Date: 5 March 2011

Name: Sarah Wilson \ | On behalf of the
Monitoring Officer

Date: 17 March 2011

Section 4: Contact details and background papers

Contact: Hasina Shah (Finance Business Partner — Financial Accounting,
Treasury and Pension Fund) tel: 020-8424-1573

Background Papers: None

16



Deloitte

Report to the Governance, Audit
and Risk Management Committee

Accounts opinion audit plan for
the 2010/11 accounts

March 2011

17



Contents

Executive summary

1 Scope of work and approach 7
2 Key audit risks 9
3 Consideration of fraud 14
4. Internal control 16
5 Communications timetable 17
6 Client service team 18
7 Responsibility statement 19
Appendix 1: Prior year uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies 20
Appendix 2: AlU public report on Deloitte 22
Appendix 3: New accounting pronouncements 224

18

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 2



Executive summary

We have pleasure in setting out in this document details of our proposed audit plan for Harrow Council for the year

ending 31 March 2011,

Audit scope

Our audit will be carried out in accordance with the Audit Commission’'s Code of Audit Practice Page 7
| 2010/11. Our primary audit responsibilities are also summarised in the “Briefing on Audit Matters”

paper which is circulated to you with this document.

The Council will need to prepare accounts under International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS")
for the first time for the year ended 31 March 2011. A number of the key audit risks we have identified

below relate to transition issues.

The Audit Commission have made changes to the scope of work to be performed on use of resources ‘
following the abolition of the Comprehensive Area Assessment and in response to issues facing local
authorities in the current funding environment. The work we are required to perform to support our ‘
conclusion in this area will focus on the Council’'s arrangements for securing financial resilience and

challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In summary, under the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice we have responsibilities in two main
areas: the financial statements and the Statement on Corporate Governance; and aspects of the
Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Key audit risks

The key audit risks which we have identified as part of our overall audit strategy are: Page 9
1. Accounting for, and the assumptions underlying, the IAS19 pension liability;

2. Property valuations;
3. Presumed risk of fraud in revenue recognition;

4. Presumed risk of management override of controls;

5. First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the new CIPFA
IFRS Code of Practice, including segmental reporting, leases and contracts; capital grants; and

holiday pay accruals; and
6. Capital mis-coding.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 3



Executive summary (continued)

Value for money conclusion — capital miscoding noted in 2009/10 audit

In our 2010 audit of the financial statements we, along with management, noted a weakness in relation = Page 7 &
to the management, control and monitoring of certain capital projects within Children’s’ Services —this = 13 ‘
led to us issuing a qualified VFM opinion with the 2009/10 financial statements and a delay in their

issuance whilst the matter was investigated by management, with assistance from third parties.

At the time of the findings, a risk arose as a result of the control weakness that led to a significant over- ‘
spend against budget. When our audit and VFM opinions were issued in the previous year, sufficient

work had been completed by internal and external teams to assure us there were no material

misstatements in the financial statements. However work has continued during the 2010/11 financial

year, with formal reporting to the GARM on a regular basis. In planning our audit we must make an

assessment as to whether the control weakness has been addressed and whether additional controls

and procedures have been put in place across the Council to ensure that a similar issue does not arise

again. Or indeed whether a risk was present during the financial year that we are auditing.

Internal audit are preparing a review of the implementation plan that has been constructed as a result
of recommendations received from the third party investigators. We will review the findings from this
before making our conclusions. In the course of our audit procedures we will also:

— Perform detailed testing of cost allocations in the current year, ensuring approvals are sought for
any business cases and purchase orders;

— Consider the sufficiency and operation of controls introduced; and
— Review the documentation around the ongeing reviews and follow up work.
Section 1 explains in more detail our approach to the 2010/11 VFM conclusion.

Challenging risks, uncertainties, estimates, assumptions and forecasts

The FRC has made it clear, in its ‘Update for Audit Committees — November 2010, that it expects audit | N/a
committees to focus activity on assessing and communicating risk and uncertainties and reliance on

estimates, assumptions and forecasts. To support this activity, we will seek to challenge the GARM

and management on the following matters during the audit process and report back to you on: .

» consistency of disclosure of risks and uncertainties within the annual report and those taken into
account when preparing budgets and forecasts that support going concern and impairment
assessments;

o validity of estimates, assumptions and forecasts for matters such as asset valuations,
impairment reviews and the going concern assessment; and

« the adequacy of disclosure of those assumptions.

Timetable

| The main deadlines remain unchanged at 30 June for draft accounts and 30 September for the audit Page 17
opinion. We will carry out a planning and controls audit visits in February 2011 and our final audit visit
from the start of July 2011. We will issue our formal report to the GARM Committee on the audit at
their meeting in September 2011. We will issue our audit report as soon as practicable following that
meeting.

The audit deadline for the Whole of Government return is 30 September 2011.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 4

20



Executive summary (continued)

Materiality and prior year uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies

For the 2011 financial statements, we have determined materiality of £4,600k (2010: £5,545k). We will | Page 7
report to the GARM committee on all unadjusted misstatements greater than £230k, (2010, £277k) and
other adjustments that are qualitatively material.

We take this opportunity to remind you of the misstatements identified in the prior period. Uncorrected
misstatements in 2010 increased net result and net assets by £463k.

We also remind you of the disclosure deficiencies identified in the prior year in Appendix 1, with a view
o addressing these at an early stage of the current year reporting process.

i Further details of the 2010 uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies are included in
Appendix 1 for reference.

In addition, for your information, we would like to report that at the end of the prior period audit process
£82.1 million of audit adjustments were recorded following discussion and agreement with
management. £29.7m were reclassification journals and £49.0m related to an error noted by
management in the revaluation of the HRA property portfolio.

Other matters for those charged with governance

We have previously communicated to you separately in our publication entitled "Briefing on audit Provided
matters” those additional items which we are required to report upon in accordance with International previously
| Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) and the Listing Rules. The document also provides detail of the
| safeguards and procedures we have in place to ensure our independence and objectivity. Appendix
' We also present in Appendix 2 the findings of the AlU report on audit quality within the firm. This o

summarises the findings of the recent Audit Inspection Unit visit which reviewed a sample of 2010
audits for publicly listed companies.

Independence
Deloitte have developed important safeguards and procedures in order to ensure our independence N/a
‘ and objectivity.

| These are set out in the “Independence policies and procedures” section of our Briefing on audit
matters document.
|

We will reconfirm our independence and objectivity to the GARM Committee for the year ending 2011
in our final report to them.

Fees

Our proposed fee for the 2010/11 audit (excluding the audit of the pension scheme annual report and N/a
fees in connection with the certification of grant claims) is £367,342 (2009/10 planned fee - £374,520).
This is in line with the Audit Commission’s scale rates.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 5

21



Executive summary (continued)

Liaison with internal audit

We continue to liaise with the group’s internal audit function to maximise our combined effectiveness N/a
and eliminate duplication of effort where possible. This co-ordination will enable us to derive full benefit
from the internal audit function, their systems decumentation and risk identification during the planning j

' of the external audit.

New accounting and legal pronouncements

j New International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) have been issued which apply to accounting periods N/a

- ending on or after 15 December 2010. These “clarified” ISAs impose many new requirements on

| auditors and as a result the GARM committee will see a change in the scope of audits. Changes are

| introduced in section 1.
There is ongoing debate in the corporate IFRS arena around accounting for leases and accounting for
revenue. Whilst they are neither endorsed or included in the current Code of practice, we include a
summary in appendix 3 for your interest.

Appendix
3

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 6

22



1. Scope of work and approach

1.1 Auditing standards

We will conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISA (UK and
Ireland)”) as adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (“APB”). The following changes have arisen since the
prior year which will have the following impact on our audit:

s Objectives are included for each ISA and there is a need for auditors to determine whether any audit
procedures in addition to those required by the ISAs are necessary to achieve those objectives when
planning and performing the audit.

» Management override of controls is a presumed “significant” risk which cannot be rebutted.

« \Work in relation to related parties is more fraud risk-based and additional audit work is required on
transactions which are outside the normal course of business

» The requirements relating to materiality have changed; in particular a lower amount (“performance
materiality”) is used when assessing risks of material misstatement and determining the extent of audit
procedures to perform.

e Auditors are expected to use confirmation requests more widely to obtain audit evidence.

e There are enhanced documentation requirements such as in relation to significant professional judgements
made during the course of the audit and more mandatory procedures when an independent reviewer is
required (“engagement quality control reviewer”).

¢ Where misstatements or control deficiencies are identified, if these are to be classed as “anomalies”, further
audit work is required.

e There are several new communication requirements such as where significant difficulties are encountered
during the audit and there is a clearer definition of what control deficiencies should be communicated to
those charged with governance.

e There are more specified procedures in respect of auditing accounting estimates and fair values including
audit responses where risks of misstatement are assessed as significant.

1.2 Our audit opinion
The audit opinion we intend to issue will reflect that the Council will be adopting the IFRS financial reporting
framework.

varall econ
verdall SCOp

We will conduct cur 2010/11 audit in accordance with the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice 2010/11 and
other guidance issued by the Audit Commission.

We have responsibilities in two areas:
o the financial statements and the Statement on Corporate Governance

» aspects of the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.

We are also asked to provide an assurance statement on the Council’'s consolidation pack for Whole of
Government Accounts purposes and to carry out procedures under instruction from the Audit Commission to certify
grant claims and other returns on behalf of the Audit Commission.

Financial statements and statement on corporate governance
i -

o

(

We will conduct our work on the accounts in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
(“ISA plus") as adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (‘APB"). The audit opinion on the accounts we intend
to issue will reflect the financial reporting framework adopted by the Council, being the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting (“the Code”) which is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"). This is
a change from last year when the accounts were required to be prepared in accordance with the Statement of
Recommended Practice for Local Authorities 2009 (the “Local Government SORP" or the "SORP") which was
based on generally accepted accounting practice in the United Kingdom (“UK GAAP").

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 7

23



1. Scope of work and approach (continued)

For the 2010/11 financial statements, we will use the latest estimates of gross expenditure on services as the
benchmark for our materiality assessment as this benchmark is deemed to be a critical component of the financial
statements for a spending organisation. We determined a materiality of £4,600k (2010: £5,545k). This figure
takes into account our knowledge of the entity, our assessment of audit risks and the reporting requirements for the
financial statements. The concept of materiality and its application to the audit approach are set out in our Briefing
on audit matters document.

The extent of our procedures is not based on materiality alone but also on the quality of systems and controls in
preventing material misstatement in the financial statements and the level at which known and likely misstatements
are tolerated by you in the preparatian of the financial statements.

Value for money conclusion

The Audit Commission has advised that in 2011 the auditors’ statutory value for money (“VFM”) conclusion will be
based on the following two criteria specified by the Commission:

Specified criteria for auditors’ VFM conclusion Focus of the criteria for 2011

The organisation has proper arrangements in place  The organisation has robust systems and processes to

for securing financial resilience. manage financial risks and opportunities effectively, and
to secure a stable financial position that enables it to
continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

The organisation has proper arrangements for The organisation is prioritising its resources within

challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and tighter budgets, for example by achieving cost
effectiveness. reductions and by improving efficiency and productivity.

The financial environment in which the Council operates has changed significantly in the last two years. In
particular, the recession, the state of the UK's public finances, and the scale of funding cuts have led to increased
pressure on public spending. The new approach is more focused and less costly and allows us to plan our work
based on consideration of the risks that might affect the conclusion.

Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) are commercial-style accounts covering all the public sector and include
some 1,700 separate bodies. Auditors appointed by the Audit Commission have a statutory duty under the Code of
Audit Practice to review and report on the Council’s whole of government accounts return. Our report is issued to
the National Audit Office (“NAQ") for the purposes of their audit of the Whole of Government Accounts.

Other areas of work which are not covered by this audit plan

As last year, we have prepared a separate audit plan covering the work we carry out in relation to the Local
Government Pension Scheme. As a result, this aspect of our work is not covered within this document.

The Council will need to prepare accounts under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for the first
time in 2010/11. We will agree a timetable and fee for this work with you. This plan excludes any work which we
will carry out on the opening IFRS balance sheet as this will form part of our 2010/11 accounts audit plan.

We also carry out work on behalf of the Audit Commission in respect of the certification of grant schemes. This
was discussed in our April 2010 fee letter.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 8

24



2. Key audit risks

Based upon our initial assessment and following our planning visit, we will concentrate specific effort on the
significant audit risks set out below:

Accounting for, and the assumptions underlying, the IAS19 pension liability

This continues
to be an audit
risk in view of
the size of the
liability and the
complexity of
judgements in
this area

Deloitte
response

The liability relating to the pension scheme is substantial and its calculation is sensitive to
comparatively small changes in assumptions.

A risk arises due to the inherent judgement in choosing these assumptions, which include
considerations around future changes in salaries, price and pensions, mortality and other key
variables.

In the prior year, between the balance sheet date and signing the accounts the Chancellor of
the Exchequer anncunced in his Emergency Budget on 22 June 2010 that the consumer prices
index rather than the retail prices index would be the basis for future public sector pension
increases. In the prior year accounts, this was disclosed, alongside an estimate of the impact
this change would have on the pension liability.

The 2011 calculations will be the first under IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ rather than FRS 17 that
was used in previous years.

We will consider the qualifications, expertise and independence of the actuary engaged by the
Council. Consistent with prior years, we include our specialist pensions group within our
engagement team. They will assist in the review of assumptions used to calculate the pension
liability.

In the prior year a restatement was made to the initial liability, reducing the underlying assets by
£1,158k. This arose as a result of the actuary’s methodology (consistent with previous years)
being impacted by the volatile markets — the expected return for the final quarter being 1.5%
different to the actual return. Whilst we assume the approach taken by the actuary will remain
consistent, we will consider whether any material differences arise from this.

Property valuations

A highly
judgemental
area of the
balance sheet,
also affected
by the
adoption of
IFRS

Deloitte
response

The Council holds a substantial portfolio of properties, subject to a rolling revaluation
programme. The markets have been particularly volatile in recent years owing to ongoing
challenging economies and the recent recessionary conditions.

Increasing the complexity in the current year, the CIPFA IFRS Code of Practice will apply for the
first time, effective from and including the 1 April 2010 certified valuations and then for updates
made for the financial statements. The changes predominantly affect terminology, although
there are some changes to approach — for example valuations of operational assets will no
longer include finance costs.

We will review the arrangements in place for updating market values and assess their
compliance with the new Code of Practice. This will include an assessment of the qualifications
and experience of the in-house specialists that carry out the valuations.

Once again, included in our audit team are valuation specialists from Drivers Jonas Deloitte.
They will assist us in reviewing the reasonableness of key assumptions.

The accounting treatment for impairment/revaluation losses under the Code differs to past
practice under the SORP. We will check compliance with the Code in this respect, including any
restatement of prior period amounts.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 9

25



2. Key audit risks (continued)

Presumed risk of fraud in revenue recognition

A presumed
risk in our
work

Deloitte
response

Clarified International Standards on Auditing establish a presumption of a risk of fraud in
revenue recognition.

Accounting for grant income can be complex as the timing for recognising income in the
accounts will depend on the scheme rules for each grant.

The new IFRS Code sets out changes to the accounting for grants and contributions related to
capital expenditure. Under the Code, the Council will need to restate its opening balance sheet
as at 1 April 2009 and 2009/10 comparative information, for the change in accounting policy.
Activities which the officers will need to perform include a review of grants and contributions
unapplied at 1 April 2009, together with grants received but not applied subsequently, to
ascertain whether there are any conditions attached to the grant or contribution.

We will test the design and implementation of controls in place at the Council for detection of
benefit fraud. We will perform additional detailed substantive testing of benefit claims.

We will also test that recognition of income properly reflects the grant scheme rules, that
entitlement is in agreement with the draft or final grant claim and that the grant control account
balance has been properly reconciled.

All areas of revenue will be tested in the course of our audit, should we have any concerns
around the recognition we will perform additional testing where necessary.

Presumed risk of management override of controls

A presumed
risk in our
work

Deloitte
response

New International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) have been issued which apply to accounting
periods ending on or after 15 December 2010. These ‘clarified’ ISAs presume management
override of control to be a risk in all of the audits we undertake. Recognising that management
may be able override controls that are in place to prevent inaccurate or even fraudulent financial
reporting.

The Council has segregation of duties in place — for example review of journals before posting
and regular review of management accounts and budgets, with challenge made on variances
and unusual movements. In light of the capital mis-coding noted in the prior year audit,
management have also strengthened and reviewed their controls around capital spend against
budget and the review procedures that operate.

We will perform tests of journal entries and review the controls in place around the posting and
authorisation of journal entries. We will review all material provisions at year end to ensure they
meet the requirements of IAS 37 and are supported by appropriate audit evidence.

Financial reporting disclosures will be reviewed. In all our work we will engage professional
scepticism with regards to management bias which might be noted during audit testing.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 10

26



2. Key audit risks (continued)

First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and the new CIPFA IFRS Code of

Practice

The first time The 2011 audit is the first year for which IFRS and the new code of practice will be adopted by

adoption of the Council. The date of transition has been determined to be 1 April 2009.

IFRS and th? The key challenges to management are:

new code will

bring a new set e Setting the IFRS accounting policies which will be applied prospectively from the date of
of challenges transition;

o management e Posting of the adjustments where retrospective accounting is required; and

e Construction of an IFRS set of financial statements, including full disclosures.

The key areas where there are expected to be significant change as a result of the transition to
IFRS from UK GAAP and the 2009 SORP are:

Property, plant and equipment — change in valuation basis (see page 9),
Leases and contracts and componentisation —discussed below;

Related party disclosures;

Employee benefits — discussed on page 12;

Segmental disclosures — discussed on page 12; and

Grants and contributions for capital purposes are to be recognised as income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are received (subject to
any outstanding conditions) — discussed on page 13.

In the first year of adoption, IAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statements’ and IFRS 1 'First time
adoption of IFRS' will also be relevant.

Deloitte We will review the accounting policies documented by management to ensure they are
response consistent with IFRS and ensure that they have been consistently applied in the preparation of
the financial statements. We will review the adjustments posted by management to each of the
3 years under IFRS from 1 April 2009, including the adjustments required to align the opening
reserves to IFRS. Finally we will review the financial statement disclosures, once prepared, to
review for compliance with IFRS. Further detail around the areas listed above is found on the
following pages.

Lease accounting

This is a key The 2009 SORP amended the previous accounting requirements for the Private Finance

area of Initiative (PF1) and similar contracts to come into line with International Financial Reporting
difference Standards (IFRS) in 2009/10. Where contracts were in place before the 2009/10 financial year,
between the prior year restatements were necessary. This year, with full IFRS implementation, the scope of
SORP and the  the exercise performed last year is widened to include lease arrangements embedded in

new IFRS contracts other than PFI and similar contracts.

based The Council will also need to evaluate its standalone leases.

Deloitte We will review documentation prepared by officers which shows how they have reviewed
response contracts which may contain an embedded lease. We will review accounting analysis papers on

the accounting treatment for leases identified.

We will review the current year journals posted to the financial statements in relation to the ‘on’
balance sheet PFI contracts to ensure they have been accounted for correctly, and in line with
the transaction models that management use, that our own specialist reviewed in the prior year.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 11

27



2. Key audit risks (continued)

Segment reporting

A number of
judgements
need to be
made in
identifying
reportable
segments. The
Council will
also need to
present
information in
different
formats and
disclose
reconciliations
between these

Deloitte
response

Under the Code, the Council will need to disclose an analysis of income and expenditure for
each reportable segment (a subjective analysis), with segments drawn up to reflect the structure
of financial information reported internally to the “chief operating decision maker”.

The Council will also need to disclose:

e a reconciliation between the internal segmental reporting analysis {the subjective
analysis) and the net cost of services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, analysed under BVACOP;

e A reconciliation between the internal segmental reporting analysis and total income and
expenditure; and

» An analysis of assets and liabilities by reportable segment, where this information is
reported regularly to the “chief operating decision maker”.

Under the SORP 2009, the Council was not required to prepare a subjective analysis within the
statutory accounts, but was required to do so in its reporting to the Treasury for Whole of
Government Accounts purposes. There were issues in preparing that analysis and in
reconciling it to the analysis within the accounts.

We will focus our work on reviewing the Council’s rationale for the reportable segments it has
identified and the reconciliation between the different analyses of its income and expenditure
which it is required to prepare and disclose.

Holiday pay and other compensated, short-term absences

The Council did not Under the Code, the Council will need to make provision for the first time for
previously make compensated, short-term absences such as annual leave and flexitime.

provision for such This will require the Council to determine the amount and value of individuals’
absences under the entitlement accrued up to the 31 March each year which has not been used by that

previous SORP.

Deloitte control
recommendation

Deloitte response

date. A number of authorities have experienced difficulties in capturing data needed to
estimate the accrual.

We have commenced our audit of the restated balance sheets. In doing this we have
reviewed the methodology for obtaining details about entitlement to compensated
leave across the council and we make a recommendation from this work which has
been discussed with management.

Neither the human resources department nor individual department heads monitor the
days being accrued and built up by individuals in relation to un-used leave. To
estimate the level of the accrual under the requirements of the IFRS code, the finance
team have needed to circularise all staff (excluding teaching staff for which there is a
simple CIPFA calculation to create the accrual) requesting them to confirm the level of
carry-forward holiday retrospectively. This method is time-consuming and may lead to
inaccuracies in recording, given that only 963 of the 2,506 payrolled staff responded.

More critically, of those responses, 20 staff were noted as having accrued more than
the 30 days allowable (largest was 58 days) and many of these staff were senior
management.

We recommend that HR hold a central spreadsheet which is circulated to individuals
regularly. This will ensure adequate central monitoring and ensure staff are not rolling
forward more leave than is allowed.

We will consider the systems used to collect data to support the calculation. We will
also test other assumptions used in the calculation. We will review new procedures
introduced as a result of our recommendation above.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 12

28



2. Key audit risks (continued)

Accounting for capital grants

The transition to IFRS The Code sets out changes to the accounting for grants and contributions related to
will require changes to  capital expenditure. Under the Code, the Council will need to restate its opening
the accounting for balance sheet as at 1 April 2009 and 2009/10 comparative information for the change

capital grants

Deloitte response

in accounting policy. Activities which the officers will need to perform include a review

of grants and contributions unapplied at 1 April 2009, together with grants received but
not applied subsequently, to ascertain whether there are any conditions attached to the
grant or contribution.

We will review documentation relating to the process carried out by the Council to
review grant offer letters and related records and arrangements over the preparation
and review of journals needed to restate the opening balance sheet and comparative
information. We will test an extended sample of grants and contributions to check they
have been accounted for in accordance with the Code.

Capital mis-coding

As a result of
the issues
highlighted in
the course of
last years audit

Deloitte
response

In our 2010 audit of the financial statements we, along with management, noted a weakness in
relation to the management, control and monitoring of certain capital projects within Children’s’
Services — this led to us issuing a qualified VFM opinion with the 2009/10 financial statements
and a delay in their issuance whilst the matter was investigated by management, with
assistance from third parties.

At the time of the findings, a risk arose as a result of the control weakness that led to a
significant over-spend against budget. When our audit and VFM opinions were issued in the
previous year, sufficient work had been completed by internal and external teams to assure us
there were no material misstatements in the financial statements. However work has continued
during the 2010/11 financial year, with formal reporting to the GARM on a regular basis.

In planning our audit we must make an assessment as to whether the control weakness has
been addressed and that additional controls and procedures have been put in place across the
Council to ensure that a similar issue does not arise again. Or indeed whether a risk was
present during the financial year that we are auditing.

Internal audit are preparing a review of the implementation plan that has been constructed as a
result of recommendations received from the third party investigators. We will review the
findings from this before making our conclusions. In the course of our audit procedures we will
also:

— Perform detailed testing of cost allocations in the current year, ensuring approvals are
sought for any business cases and purchase orders;

— Consider the sufficiency and operation of controls introduced; and
— Review the documentation around the ongoing reviews and follow up work.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 13

29



3. Consideration of fraud

4.1 Characteristics

Misstatements in the financial statements can arise from either fraud or error. The distinguishing factor between
fraud and error is whether the underlying action that results in the misstatement of the financial statements is
intentional or unintentional. Two types of intentional misstatements are relevant us as auditors — misstatements
resulting from fraudulent financial reporting and misstatements resulting from misappropriation of assets.

We are aware that management has the following processes in place in relation to the prevention and detection of
fraud.

4.2 Responsibilities

The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with management and those charged with
governance, including establishing and maintaining internal controls over the reliability of financial reporting,
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As auditors, we
obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.

4.3 Fraud inquiries

We will make the following inquiries regarding fraud:

Management Internal Audit GARM Committee

Management's assessment of the Whether internal audit has How the GARM committee exercise
risk that the financial statements may  knowledge of any actual, oversight of management's processes
be materially misstated due to fraud | suspected or alleged fraud for identifying and responding to the
including the nature, extent and affecting the entity, and to obtain | risks of fraud in the entity and the
frequency of such assessments its views about the risks of fraud ‘ internal control that management has
Management's process for established to mitigate these risks
identifying and responding to the Whether the GARM committee have
risks of fraud in the entity knowledge of any actual, suspected or
Management's communication, if . alleged fraud affecting the entity

any, to the GARM committee
regarding its processes for
identifying and responding to the
risks of fraud in the entity

Management's communication, if
any, to employees regarding its
views on business practices and
ethical behaviour

Whether management has
knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alleged fraud affecting the entity

We will make inquiries of others within the Council as appropriate. We will also inquire into matters arising from
your whistling blowing procedures.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 14

30



3. Consideration of fraud (continued)

44 Concerns

As set out in Section 2 above we have identified the risk of fraud in revenue recognition and management override
of controls as a key audit risk for your organisation.

4.5 Representations

We will ask for you and management to make the following representations towards the end of the audit process:

¢ \We acknowledge our responsibilities for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud and error.
¢ \We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.
¢ \We are not aware of any fraud or suspected fraud / We have disclosed to you all information in relation to
fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the entity or group and involves:
i. management;
ii. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
iii. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
* \We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the
entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or
others.

Management override of controls
In addition to the procedures above we are required to design and perform audit procedures to respond to the risk
of management's override of controls which will include:

s having understood and evaluated the financial reporting process and the controls over journal entries and
other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements, test the appropriateness of a sample
of such entries and adjustments. We will utilise our computer audit specialists to extract a report of journals
posted in 2010/11 and to analyse this information using computer audit technigues to identify journals with
features which may be indicative of fraud.

e areview of accounting estimates for biases that could resuit in material misstatement due to fraud, including
whether any differences between estimates best supported by evidence and those in the financial
statements, even if individually reasonable, indicate a possible bias on the part of management. We will also
perform a retrospective review of management’s judgements and assumptions relating to significant
estimates reflected in last year’s financial statements.

We will focus on impairment allowances against balances with customers and outstanding statutory charges; and
obtain an understanding of the business rationale of significant transactions that we become aware of that are
outside the normal course of business or that otherwise appear to be unusual given our understanding of the
Group and its environment.

We are also required to presume that there are risks of fraud in revenue recognition and conduct our audit testing
accordingly (unless the presumption is rebutted). (See Key audit risks in section 2).

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 15

31



4. Internal control

Cyhtasinminm am 110 retandi
Obtaining an unaerstandi

)

R — el s L e S e ra e
na or Iinterna ontrol reievant 1o the auadit

(4]

LI

(

As set out in the "Briefing on audit matters” circulated to you previously, our risk assessment procedures will
include obtaining an understanding of controls considered to be 'relevant to the audit’. This involves evaluating the
design of the controls and determining whether they have been implemented (‘D & I"). Our audit approach
consists of the following:

Obtain and refresh our understanding of the entity and its environment including the identification of relevant
controls;

Identify risks and any controls that address those risks;

Carry out ‘design and implementation’ work on relevant controls;

If considered necessary, test the operating effectiveness of selected controls; and

Design and perform a combination of substantive analytical procedures and tests of details that are most
responsive to the assessed risks.

The results of our work in obtaining an understanding of controls and any subsequent testing of the operational
effectiveness of controls will be collated and the impact on the extent of substantive audit testing required will be
considered.

Our audit is not designed to provide assurance as to the overall effectiveness of the controls operating within the
Group, although we will report to management any recommendations on controls that we may have identified
during the course of our audit work.

Liaison with internal audit

We will liaise with the Council’s internal audit function on a constructive and complementary basis to maximise our
combined effectiveness and eliminate duplication of effort. This co-ordination will enable us to derive full benefit
from the Council's internal audit functions, their systems documentation and risk identification during the planning
of the external audit.

The audit team, following an assessment of the organisational status, scope of function, objectivity, technical
competence and due professional care of the internal audit function, review the findings of internal audit and adjust
the audit approach as is deemed appropriate. This normally takes a number of forms:

» assessment of the control environment;

s discussion of the work plan for internal audit;

¢  specific reliance is placed in certain areas (as we expect our approach to be largely or fully substantive (see
above), we expect this aspect of reliance to be limited),

o where internal audit identifies specific material deficiencies in the control environment, we consider adjusting
our testing so that the audit risk is covered by our work; and

e review of any fraud investigations to determine their potential effect on our work.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 16

32



5. Communications timetable

Set out below is the approximate expected timing of our reporting and communication with management and the
GARM committee.

f annual audit letter

Whok =
acco VFM con
retum

ccounting
arning report to

Agreement of al

== ion on areas
to impri inancial

Feb-March2011 Feb-March 2011 Feb-May 2011 p July-September 2011 August-September 2011 October 2011

Ongoing communication and feedback

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 17

33



6. Client service team

Paul Schofield will continue to lead the audit. He and the other key members of the team are shown below:

Paul Schofield
Engagement
Partner

Matthew Hall
Engagement
Director

Nighat Khan Neil Yeomans ~ Anna Parker
Grants audit Computer audit | ‘Accounts audit |
manager Partner Senior Manager

Helen Perkins

Pension audit
Director
Morre i
 Pensionaudit

Charlotte
Gribben Mark Wood
Computeraudit UoR manager
Manager

Audit team

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 18

34



7. Responsibility statement

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission explains the
respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body and this report is prepared on the basis of, and our
audit work is carried out, in accordance with that statement.

This report should be read in conjunction with the “Briefing on audit matters” circulated to you with this report and
sets out those audit matters of governance interest which came to our attention during the audit. Our audit was not
designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to the members and this report is not necessarily a
comprehensive statement of all weaknesses which may exist in internal control or of all improvements which may
be made.

This report has been prepared for the members, as a body, and we therefore accept responsibility to you alone for
its contents. We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since this report has not been
prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose.

Yelorte (L

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants
St Albans

17 March 2011

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 19

35



Appendix 1: Prior year uncorrected
misstatements and disclosure deficiencies

Uncorrected misstatements

We are required to communicate to you the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the
relevant classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. The
following uncorrected misstatements were identified during the course of our prior year audit:

Credit/ (charge) Increase/ (decrease)
to prior year income in prior year

statement net assets
£'000 £'000

Factual misstatements

Proposal costs 1] (219) (219)

PFI capitalisation of costs [2] - -

Judgemental misstatements

Overstatement of insurance provision [3] 400 400

Overstatement of council tax bad debt provision [4] - C
| Overstatement of housing benefit provision [5] 748 748
| Capital mis-coding in Children’s Services [6] (466) (466)

Total 463 483

[1] Through our testing of fixed asset additions, we identified £47k of proposal costs that had been
capitalised. This is not line with the SORP which requires proposal costs to be recognised in the I&E. A
review of additions by management identified £219k of proposal costs had been capitalised during the
year. We have proposed an adjustment for this to be expensed.

[2] £3.1m of capitalisable costs have not been treated as fixed assets. The effect is on a cumulative basis
since the inception of the contracts and accordingly the I&E impact is the current year is immaterial and
has not been calculated.

[3]  The actuary who performed the valuation of the insurance provision has recommended a surplus
provision of £400k to be prudent. The council has included this in the insurance provision, which is an
overprovision, thus we have proposed for this to be reversed.

[4]  Through our testing of council tax bad debt provision, we have estimated a likely overprovision of £1,291k
based on projected cash recovery. This adjustment will be credited to the Collection Fund rather than the
main I&E of the council. Thus, this will impact the carried forward surplus on the Collection Fund. This will
then be credited to the main I&E as part of the Income from Council Tax movement. Under the new
SORP accounting for local taxes guidelines, the Collection Fund surplus for the year that it recognised in
the main I&E is then taken out in the Statement of Movement of the General Fund balance. Thus, there is
a nil impact on the general fund balance for this adjustment.

[8]  Through our testing of housing benefit debt provision, we have estimated a likely overprovision of £748k
based on projected cash recovery.

[6] Errors arising in relation to capital mis-coding, discussed in more detail in the executive summary. Net
reduction to the balance sheet of £466k as a result of capitalising deferred charges in error.

We obtained written representations from the Council confirming that after considering all these uncorrected items,
both individually and in aggregate, in the context of the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, no
adjustments were required.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 20

36



Appendix 1: Prior year uncorrected
misstatements and disclosure deficiencies
(continued)

Disclosure deficiencies

Auditing standards require us to highlight significant disclosure deficiencies to enable audit committees tc evaluate
the impact of those matters on the financial statements. The table below highlights those areas of disclosure that
we considered required consideration by the committee in the prior year:

Source of disclosure Quantitative or qualitative

Disclosure requirement consideration

The foreword (3.2.2) to the - Quantitative
accounts refers to £96m of

capital spend compared to the

fixed asset note (7.15) referring

to £99m of additions. The

difference arises from ‘additions’

| of assets previously owned, but

not held on the balance sheet.

| This has been discussed in the

ISA260 report.

In the prior period, Coroners - Quantitative
Court amounts were treated as

levies, however in the current

year, in line with BVACORP, the

current and prior year amounts

have been classified within net

cost of services, as disclosed in

appendix 10.2 rather than in

note 7.2, levies.

We obtained written representations from the Council confirming that after considering all these disclosure
deficiencies, both individually and in aggregate, in the context of the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole, no adjustments were required.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 21

37



Appendix 2: AIU public report on
Deloitte

AlU public reporting

In July 2010 the AIU issued its Annual Report which provides an overview of the findings from its 2009/10
inspections. In September it issued individual reports on each of the four largest firms, including Deloitte. The
Audit Inspection Unit (AlU) is part of the Financial Reporting Council, the UK's independent regulator
responsible for promoting confidence in corporate reporting and governance. The AIU is responsible for
monitoring the audits of all listed and other public interest entities. The AlU currently inspects the four largest
audit firms, including Deloitte, annually and this is the third year the AlU has reported publicly on individual
firms.

“The AlU’s inspections in 2009/10 confirm that major firms have policies and procedures in
place to support audit quality that are generally appropriate to the size of the firms and the
nature of their client base. Nevertheless, improvements to these policies and procedures have
been recommended at all firms.

Notwithstanding the quality of firms’ policies and procedures, the number of audits assessed as
requiring significant improvement at major firms (eight audits or 11 % of audits reviewed at
major firms excluding follow-up reviews) is too high. Firms are therefore not always
consistently applying their policies and procedures on all aspects of individual audits.”

All the AlIU public reports on individual firms are available on its website: nhip:.//www.fre.org uk/pob/audit/firmreports.cfm
as is their Annual Report: http://www frc org uk/pob/audit/reports. cfm

AlU comments on Deloitte

Deloitte's policies and processes supporting audit quality were reviewed as were 14 individual audits. The
AlU’s conclusion on Deloitte was as follows:

“The firm places considerable emphasis on its overall systems of quality control and, in our view, has
appropriate policies and procedures in place for its size and the nature of its client base in the relevant
areas which are subject to our review. Nevertheless, we have identified certain areas where
improvements are required to those procedures, which we set out in this report. Our principal findings,
largely relate to the application of the firm's procedures by audit personnel, whose work and judgments
ultimately determine the quality of individual audits.”

The AlU identified areas where they believe we should pay particular attention in order to enhance audit quality

and safeguard auditor independence:

+ Ensuring that the appropriateness of the basis for clients’ identification of cash-generating units is properly

assessed, given its importance in the audit of goodwill and other intangibles.

+ Ensuring sufficient evidence is obtained relating to the reasonableness of growth rates, sensitivity testing
and other assumptions and the adequacy of related disclosures in relation to the audit of goodwill and other
intangibles.

+ Ensuring that appropriate and sufficient evidence is obtained relating to the firm’s evaluation of going
concern, including the available headroom and how specific concerns identified are addressed.

* Ensuring the completion on a timely basis of partner and staff appraisals in accordance with the firm's
requirements.

« Ensuring non-audit services provided to audit clients do not in substance stray over the boundary of what
Ethical Standards permit. Assessing whether the actions taken to address those issues which have
continued to occur from year to year are effective and whether there are alternative solutions that could be
implemented to address them.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 22

38



Appendix 2: AIU public report on
Deloitte (continued)

Review of individual audits

The graph below compares the AlU’s assessment of audit files by audit firm. The AlU categorises audits as:
e Good with minor improvements required (green)
¢ Acceptable but with improvements required (amber)
e Significant improvements required (red)

The percentage of Deloitte engagements assessed as good with minor improvements required was 71%,
compared to 52% for the other three largest firms.

The overall analysis of the AlU file reviews by grade for the last two years evidences that among the largest
firms Deloitte routinely produces the highest quality audits.

Deloitte Emst & Young

g ]
w 1
ne| x|
nx w
L1 - ;7 - [
gl 1 anx it 7,_.
u—g x| :‘1 =y

| —— R
il TT_H g 5=

090 08109 0sHo o0gl03 0310 08109 0910 08/09 0sro 08109 0510 08109

Good Acceptable Significant improvements Good Acceptable Significant improvements
required required
KPMG PricewaterhouseCoopers

] i

n 1)

" nxl

ux T— x|

nx | ol

ax - ax

—
ny F swx| =

1y s

- ; — w
! =,
03110 08109 09410 08409 094190 08i09 08110 08109

Good Acceptable Significant improvements Good
required

I @ e
09/10 08M09

Acceptable Significant improvements
required

09/10 0803

Deloitte response

The AlU's recognition of the emphasis we place on our overall systems of quality control is welcome. We are
committed to retaining our focus on audit quality and recognise that we are on a journey of continuous
improvement. The external inspection process provides further impetus to our quality agenda and we confirm
that we have implemented a number of actions to respond to the AlU findings.

Deloitte’s Audit Transparency Report for 2010 provides further comprehensive information regarding our
approach to delivering quality and is available on our website:

http://annualreport.deloitte.co.uk/interface2010/pdfs/deloitte-audit-transparency-report-2010. pdf

We will inform you if the AlU selects your audit as part of the sample of files reviewed and will share its final
report with you when it is complete.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 23

39



Appendix 3: New accounting
pronouncements

Leases — discussion paper
On 19 March 2009, the IASB published a discussion paper on leases. This proposes a pessible new model for

| lease accounting. The model is based on the principle that all leases give rise to liabilities for future rental payments

and assets (the right to use the leased asset) that should be recognised in an entity’s statement of financial position.
Operating leases, such as property leases, are likely to be included on the balance sheet and may therefore
materially impact the banking covenants.

This is currently a discussion paper; the exposure draft is expected later this year, with the final IFRS by mid 2011,

Revenue recognition — exposure draft

The IASB issued and exposure draft on 24 June 2010 with a view to develop a single standard for revenue
recognition. The new standard will replace the existing standards on revenue recognition: IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and IAS 18 Revenue.

A new revenue recognition model based on a contract with a customer is proposed, with revenue being recognised
when goods and/or services are transferred to the customer. Under the proposed model, an entity should:

» |dentify the contract(s) with a customer,

Identify the separate ‘performance obligations’ in the contract;

Determine the transaction price;

¢ Allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and

¢ Recognise the allocated revenue when the entity satisfies each performance obligation.

In addition, under the proposals, the customer’s credit risk affects how much revenue is recognised rather than
whether revenue is recognised. An entity would adjust the transaction price to reflect the customer's credit risk
using a probability-weighted approach.

As this is currently an exposure draft, there is no date finalised for application.

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 24

40




Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (*DTTL"), a UK private company limited by guarantee, and its network of
member firms, each of which is a legally separate and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the

legal structure of DTTL and its member firms.
Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom member firm of DTTL.
© 2011 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its registered office at 2
New Street Square, London EC4A 3BZ, United Kingdom. Tel: +44 (0) 20 7936 3000 Fax: +44 (0) 20 7583 1198.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 25

41



42



Deloitte

London Borough of Harrow Council

Audit Plan for the 2010/11 Pension Fund Annual
Report Audit

March 2011

43



Contents

Executive summary

1.
2,

6.

Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters

Scope of work and approach
Key audit risks
Consideration of fraud
Internal cantral

Timetable

Responsibility statement

44

12
13
14
15



Executive summary

We have pleasure in setting out in this document details of our proposed audit scope
for the London Borough of Harrow Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 2011.

Audit scope Based on guidance issued by the Audit Commission, auditors
are again asked, for audit purposes, to treat the Local
Government Pension Fund {LGPS) as a stand-alone body, with
separate audit plan and reports to those charged with
governance.

Our audit of the pension fund is planned in accordance with the
Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission and in
accordance with additional guidance issued by the Commission
in relation to the audit of pension funds. However, this only
extends to the audit of the accounts and there is no requiremeant
for a value for money conclusion on the pension fund accounts
specifically. Aspects of the use of resources framework will
infarm the value for money conclusion for the Authority and
cover issues relating fo the pension fund.

The pension fund accounts remain part of the accounts of the
Authority as a whole. The LGPS Requlations reguire
administering authorities to prepare an annual repert for the
pension fund, which should incorporate the annual accounts.
Qur audit report on the Authority accounts will continue to cover
the pension fund section of that document. In addition, we are
asked by the Commission to issue an audit report for inclusion
in the annual pension fund report.

Materiality We calculate materiality on the basis of the net assets of the
fund, but have restricted this to the materiality established for
the audit of the Authorty's financial statements as a whole. We
estimate materiality for the year to be £4.6 million (2010: £5.5
millign). We will report to the Governance, Audit and Risk
Management ("GARM) Committee on all unadjusted
misstaternents greater than £0.23 million {2010: £0.27 million)
unless they are qualitatively material. Further details on the
basis used for the calculation of materiality are given in our audit
plan for the audit of the Authority's financial statements.

A 45 far the audit of the 201011 Pemnsion Fund Auwdit 1



Executive summary (continued)

Key audit risks The key audit risks which we have identified as part of our overall
audit strategy are detailed below:

1. In view of the complexity arising from the participation of
different admitted bodies within the fund, together with the
fact that members may pay diffzrent rates depending an their
pensionable pay, we have included the calculation and
payment of contributions as areas of specific risk.

2. As there are a number of complexities to the calculation of
both benefits in retirement and benefits paid on ill health and
death, we have identified benefits payable as an area of
specific risk.

3. The pension fund in the past has made some use of
investments in private equity and derivatives. Such
investments can give rise to complexities in accounting,
disclosure and measurement, accordingly we will treat the
appropriateness of the accounting for these investments as a
risk.

4. The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting sets out
the new reparting framework for Local Government Pension
Schemes. this framewaork is based on International Financial
Reporiing Standards. As this accounting treatment is new
this year we will treat this as a risk area for the audit.

Prior year There were no significant unadjusted misstatements or
uncorrected uncorrected disclosure deficiencies reported to you in respect of
misstatements the 2009/10 accounts.

and disclosure

deficiencies

Timetable The timetable is set out in Section 5. The fieldwork will be carried
out at the same time as our wark on the Autharity's financial
statements in order for us to have completed the audit of the
financial statements in time for inclusion in the Authority’s annual
report.

2 Audit Plan for the audit of the 2010011 Pensicn Fumd A1 46



Executive summary (continued)

Independence Deloitte have developed important safeguards and procedures in
order to ensure our independence and objactivity.

These are set out in the “independence policies and proceduras”
section included at Appendix 1.

We will reconfirm our independence and objectivity for the year
ending 31 March 2011 in our final report to the GARM Committee.
We have discussed our relationships with the Authority in our
separate audit plan for the audit of the Authority's financial
statements.

Fees We propose a fee of £35,000 (PY: £38,500) which is in line with
the fee scale advised by the Audit Commission.

Engagement Paul Schofield with continue to be Engagement Lead and will be
Team supported by Helen Perkins, a director, and David Hobson, as
Senior Manager for this work.

LR GTE TR We have attached at Appendix 1 our "Briefing on audit matters”
charged with which includes those additional items which we are required to
governance report upon in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK & lreland). We will report to you at the final audit
stage any matters arising in relation to those requirements.

i 47 for the audit of the 211011 Pension Fund Audit 3



|. Scope of work and approach

Overall scope and approach

Based on guidance ssued by the Audit Commission, auditors are again asked, for
audit purposes, to treat the Local Government Pension Fund {"LGPS") as a stand-
alone body, with separate audit plan and reports to those charged with governance.

Local LGPS schemes administered by administering authorities are not statutory
bodies in their own right. Therefora, it is not possible for separate audit
appointments to be made for LGPS audits. We are therefore appointed to the audit
of the LGPS through the existing Audil Commission appointment arrangements.

Our audit of the pension fund is planned in accordance with the Code of Audit
Practice issued by the Audit Commission and in accordance with additional guidance
issued by the Commission in relation to the audit of pension schemes. However, this
only extends to the audit of the accounts and there is no requirement for a value for
money conclusion an the pension fund accounts specifically. Aspects of the use of
resources framework will inform the value for money conclusion for the Authority and
cover issues relating to the pension scheme.

The audit opinion we intend to issue as part of our audit report on the Authority's
financial statements will reflect the financial reporting framewcrk adopted by the
pension fund. This is the Code of Audit Practice on Local Authority Accounting

2010/2011,

For pension fund statements, we have initially considered the net assets of the fund
as the benchmark for our materiality assessment as this benchmark is deemed to be
a key driver of fund value, is a critical component of the financial statements and is a
focus for users of those statements, However, we have restricted our estimate of
matenality to the amount set for the Authority's financial statements as a whaole,
which is £4.6 million. Qur separate audit plan for the audit of the Authority’s financial
statements includes further information on how we derived this estimate. The
concept of materiality and its application to the audit approach are set out in our
“Briefing on audit matters” document attached at appendix 1.

The extent of our procedures is not based on materiality alone but also on the quality
of systems and controls in preventing material misstatement in the financial
statements, and the level at which known and likely misstatements are tolerated by
you in the preparation of the financial statements.

4 Audit Plan for the audit of the 201011 Peasion Fund A 48



|. Scope of work and approach
(continued)

The Audit Commissian has alsa determined that auditors should give an opinion in
accordance with auditing standards on the financial statements included in the
pension fund annual report. This entails the following additional work over and
above giving an opinion on the pension fund accounts included in the statement of
accounts:

comparing the accounts to be included in the pension fund annual report with
those included in the statement of accounts;

reading the other information published within the pension fund annual report
for consistency with the pension fund aceounts;

where the pension fund annual report is not available until after the auditor
reports on the financial statements, undertaking appropriate procedures to
confirm that there are no material post-balance sheet events arising after
giving the opinion on the pension fund accounts included in the Authority's
Statement of Accounts;

the financial statements included in the Fund's annual report are prepared on
the basis of the same proper practices- the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting 2010/2011- as the financial statements included in the
Authority's Staterment of Accounts; and

the annual report has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 34 of the
Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulation 2008,

Qur audit objectives are set out and explained in mere detail in our “Briefing on audi:
matters” document (Appendix 1).

2 49 for the audit of the 2010/11 Pengion Fund Awdit &



2. Key audit risks

Based upon our initial assessment for the 2010/2011 audit we will concentrate
specific audit effart on the following areas:;

Contributions

Audit Risk Unlike the position in the private sector, we are not required to
issue a statement about contributions in respect of the LGPS.
However, this remains a material income stream for the pension
fund and in view of the complexity introduced by the participation
of more than one employer in the fund, together with the
introduction of the new benefit structure with its tiered contribution
rates, we have identified this as a specific nsk.

HOIONIS TNEPONRS. . vyl perform procedures to ascertain whether employer and

employee contributions have been calculated, scheduled and
paid in accordance with the schedule of contributions.

8  Audit Plan for the audit of the 2010011 Pansion Fund Au 50



2. Key audit risks (continued)

Audit Risk

Deloitte response

Changes were made to the local government pension fund from
April 2008 which introduced complexities into the calculation of
both benefits in retirement and benefits paid on ill health and
death.

In respect of benefits in retirement, benefits are accumulated on
two different bases for service pre and post 1 April 2008. The
calculation of the pensionable pay on which benefits will depend
may be varied by the individual opting to take account of pay
earned in any of the 10 years prior to retirement. Also individuals
now enjoy greater flexibility in their choice of the mix of pensian
and lump sum.

In respect of ill health and death benefits, the calculation of the
pensionable pay on which benefits will depend may be varied by
the individual opting to take account of pay earned in any of the
10 years prior to retirement. Some employers may not have
retained all the necessary records

We will perform procedures to ascertain whether benefits payable
have been calculated correctly in accordance with the fund rules.

51 3 for the audit of the 2090011 Pension Fund Audit 7



2. Key audit risks (continued)

Financial instruments

Audit Risk

Deloitte response

The pension fund makes some use of investments in private
equity and derivative financial instruments.

Private equity funds are complex to value and include an element
of judgement on the part of the investment manager. Given that
these funds form a material balance within the pension fund
accounts, we have identified the valuation of these funds as a
specific risk.

The fund also makes use of derivatives which can be complex in
terms of accounting, measurement and disclosure requirements.

For the private equity investments we will seek to understand the
approach adopted in the valuation of such investments and
inspect supporting documentation such as cash flow reports,
quarterly investment advisor reports and audited financial
statements. We will tailor further procedures depending on the
outcome of that work and our assessment of the risk of material
error taking into account the fund's investment holding at the year
end.

We will update our understanding of the rationale for the use of
the derivatives and then test compliance with the accounting,
measurement and disclosura requirermnents of the Code of Audit
Practice on Local Authority Accounting. The use of expert advice
may be required for testing these balances.

8 Audit Plan for the audit of the 201001 Pension Fund Au 52



2. Key audit risks (continued)

Financial instruments

Audit Risk The Code of Practice on Local Authonty Accounting sets out the
new reporting framework for Local Government Pension
Schemes, this framework is based on International Financial
Reporting Standards. The main implications for the Harrow
Pension Fund are as follows:

« requirement for actuarial present value of promised retirement
benefits to be disclosed — with three options for disclosure:

= Opticn A —in the Net Asset Statement disclosing the
resulting deficit or surplus;

« Option B - in the notes to the Financial Statements; or

s Option C - by referring to the actuarial information in an
accompanying actuarial report.

If an actuarial valuation has not been prepared at the date of
the financial statements, |1AS 26 requires the most recent
valuation {which should be prepared on IAS 18, not the
pension fund's funding assumptions) to be used as a base
and the date and valuation disclosed.

» additional note disclosures required around the actuarial
position of the fund and the significant actuanal assumptions
made; and

« additional note disclosure requirements in IFRS 7 to report on
the risks to which financial instruments expose the entity.

Deloitte response We will review the additional disclosures in the pension fund
accounts for compliance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting.

A 53 ‘or the audit of the 2010111 Pension Fund Audit 4



3. Consideration of fraud

The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with
management and those charged with governance. These responsibilties include
establishing and maintaining internal controls over the reliability of financial reporting,
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. As auditors, we obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error,

ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 — 'The auditor's responsibility to consider fraud in an audit
of financial statements' requires us to document an understanding of how those
charged with governance exercise oversight of management's processes for
identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in Harrow Council and its local
gavernment pension fund and the internal control that management has established
to mitigate these risks.

We will make inquiries of management, internal audit and others within the Authority
as appropriate, regarding their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud
affecting the Authority and the Fund. In addition we are required to discuss the
following with the GARM:

s Whether the GARM has knowledge of any fraud, alleged or suspected fraud?
»  The role that the GARM exercises in oversight of:

. Harrow Council's assessment of the risks of fraud in respect of the
pension fund; and

s the design and implementation of internal control to prevent and detect
such fraud?

. The GARM's assessment of the risk that the pension fund financial statements
and annual report may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We will be seeking representations in this area from the Corporate Director of
Finance, in due course.

10 Audit Plan for the audit of the 209011 Bengion Fund A 54



3. Consideration of fraud
(continued)

Management override of controls

In addition to the procedures above we are required to design and perform audit
procedures to respond to the risk of management's override of controls which will
include:

s Understanding and evaluating the financial reporting process, including the
controls over journal entries and other adjustments made in the preparation of the
financial statements. Testing the appropriateness of a sample of such entries
and adjustments.

+ Reviewing accounting estimates for bias that could resuit in material
misstaternent. We will also perform a retrospective raview of management's
judgements and assumptions relating to significant estimates reflected in last
year's financial statements.

« Obtaining an understanding of the business rationale of significant transactions
that we become aware of that are outside the normal course of business or that
otherwise appear to be unusual given our understanding of the Authority and its
environment,

f1 55 or the audit of the 201011 Pensien Fund Audit 11



4. Internal control

Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit

As set out in "Briefing on audit matters" attached at Appendix 1, for controls
considered to be ‘relevant to the audit’ we are required to evaluate the design of the
controls and determine whether they have been implemented ("D & 1"}  The results
of our work in obtaining an understanding of controls and any subsequent testing of
the operational effectiveness of controls will be collated and the impact on the extent
of substantive audit testing required will be considered. Our audit is not designed to
provide assurance as to the overall effectiveness of the controls operating within the
Authority or its pension fund administration, although we will report to management
any recommendations on controls that we may have identified during the course of
our audit waork.

Liaison with internal audit

We will ligise with the Authority's internal audit function on a constructive and
complementary basis to maximise our combined effectiveness and eliminate
duplication of effort. This co-ordination will allow us to denve full benefit from the
Authority's  internal  audit functions, their systems documentation and risk
identification during the planning of the external audit.

Following an assessment of the organisational status, scope of function, objectivity,
technical competence and due professional care of the internal audit function we will
review any findings relevant to the pension fund and adjust the audit approach as is
deemead appropriate

12 Audit Plan for the audit of the 201011 Pension Fund Au 56



5. Timetable

G [

Pregare plan besed on discussions
with managernen

Early discussion of Autharily's
approach to nsks graas

Perdorance of delailed audit
planning fiekiwors

Bugd fealghworkiaudil issues
meslings

Rewew af pension furd annual
fapost

Preparation of our repart ¢n the
207041 audit

Audit plan

FReport o ke GARM Committes an
1ha #1101 accounts audt,

Our work during these visits will be closely co-ordinated with the work carried out on
other parts of main audit of the Harrow Council,

AL 57 or tha audit of the 2010/ 1 Pension Fund Auwdit 13



6. Responsibility statement

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the
Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the
audited body and this report is prepared on the basis of, and our audit work is carried
aut, in accordance with that statement.

This report should be read in conjunction with the “Briefing on audit matters”
attached at Appendix 1 and sets out those audit matters of governance interest
which came to our attention during the audit to date. Our audit was not designed tc
identify all matters that may be relevant to members and this report is not necessarily
a comprehensive statement of all weaknesses which may exist in internal control or
of all improvements which may be made.

This report has been prepared for the Members of Harrow Council, as a body, and
we therefore accept responsibility to you alone for its contents. We accept no duty,
responsibility or liability to any other parties, since this report has not been prepared,
and is not intended, for any other purpose.

Yottt il

Deloitte LLFP
Chartered Accountants

St Albans
16 March 2011

14 Audit Plan for the audit of the 3010041 Pension Fund 2 58



Appendix 1: Briefing on audit matters

Published for those charged with governance

This document is intended to assist those charged with governance to understand
the major aspects of our audit approach, including explaining the key concepts
bahind the Deloitte Audit methedalegy including audit objectives and matariality.
Further, it descnbes the safeguards developed by Deloitte to counter threats to our
independence and objectvity.

This document will only be reissued if significant changes to any of those matters
highlighted above acour

We will usually communicate our audit planning infarmation and the findings from
tha awdit separately. Where we issue separate reports these should be read in
conjunction with this "Briafing on audit matters”.

Primary audit objectives  We conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK &
Ireland) a5 adoptad by the UK Auditing Practices Board ("APB"). Our statutory awdit
abjectives are:

a toexpress an opinion in true and fair view terms to the trustees on the financial
statements,;

« o express an opinian as to whether the accounts have been properly prepared
in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework. and

a toform an apinion as to whether the financial statements contain the
information specified in regulation 3 and the schedule to the Dcoupatianal
Pension Schemes (Reguirament to obtain Audited Accounts and a Statement
from the Auditor) Regulations 1988,

Other reporting Cur reparting chjectivas are la.

objectives = present significant reporting findings to those charged with governance. This
will highlight key judgements, imporiant accounting policies and estimates and
the application of naw reporting reguirements, as well as significant control
observations, and

« pravide tmely and constructive letters of recommendation to managerment.

This will melude key business process impravements and significant controls
weaknesses identified during aur audit.

59



Appendix 1: Briefing on audit
matters (continued)

Materiality

Uncorrected
miiEstatements

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial
statemeanis and the audit process and applies not only 1o monetary misstatements
but atso to disclogure requirements and adherence to appropnale accounting
principles and statutory requirements.

“Materality” is defined in the International Accounting Standards Board's
"Framewark for the Preparation and Presentabon of Financial Statements” in the
following terms:

“Information is material if its cmission or misstatemnent could influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. Mateniality
depends on the size of the item ar erraer judged in the particular circumstances of its
omission or misstatement. Thus, materiglity provides a threshold or cut-off point
rather than baing a primary qualitative characteristic which infarmation must have i
it is 1o be useful ”

We determine matenality based on professienal judgment in the context of our
knowledge of the audited entity, including consideration of faclors such as
stakeholder expeciations, sector developments, financial stability and rzporting
requirements for the financial statements. We usa a different matenality for the
examiraticn of the summary contributions to that used far the financial statements
85 a3 whole

We determine matenality 1o
« determing the nature timing and extent of audit procedures. and
«  evaluate the effect of misstatements

The extent of our procedures is nat based on material ty alome bul the quality of
systams and controlg in preventing material misstaterment in the financal
staternents, and the leval at which known and likely misstatements are folerated by
you in the preparation of the financial statements

The materizlity in relation fo the audit of the pension scheme's financial statements
will net necessarnly coincide with the expectations of materiality of an individual
member of the scheme in relation to his or her expected benefits. Our judgments
about materialty are made in the context of the financial statements as a whole and
the account balances and classes of transacions reported in those statements,
rather than in the context of an individual member's designated assels,
contributions or nenefits

In accardance with International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) (1585 (LK
and Ireland)} we will communicate to you all uncorrected misstatements (including
disclosure deficiencies) identified during our audit, other than those which we
balieve are claarly trivial,

ISAs (LIK and Irsland) do nat place numenc kmits on the meaning of ‘clearly trivial
The Audit Engagement Partner, management and those charged with governance
will agree an appropriate limit for ‘clearly trival. In our report we will report all
indrvidual identified uncorrected misstatements in excess of this lirmit and other
identified errors in aggregale.

Wa will conzider identified misstatements in qualitative as well as quantitative larms.

60



Appendix 1: Briefing on audit
matters (continued)

Audit methodology

Other requirements of
International Standards
on Auditing (UK and
ireland}

Cur audit methodology takes into account the changing reguirements of avditing
standards and adopts a risk based approach. We utilise technology in an efficient
way to provide maximum value to trustees and create value for management and
those charged with governance whilst minimising a “bax ticking” approach.

Qur audit methodology 15 designed o give trustees the confidence that they

deserse,

For contrals considered fo be ‘relevant to the audit’ we evaluate the design af the
conirols and detarmine whether they have been implemented ("D & ). The
conirols that are determined o be ralevant 1o the audit will include thase

« whera we plan to obtain assurance through the testing of operating
effectiveness

+  relating to identified risks (incleding the risk of fraud in revenue racogmibion,
unless rebutted and the nsk of management override of controls),

« where we consider we are unable to obtain sufficient audt assurance tirough
substantive procedures aicne, and

« foenable us todentfy and assess the nsks of material misstatemant of the
firancial staterments and design and perform furthar audil procedures.

ISAs (UK and Ireland) require we communicate the following additional matters:

15 (L &
lreland)

152 1

Malter
Quality contral for firns that perform audits and review al financial stalemants
and ather asgurance and ralaled parvICES angagemenls

The audior's responsibiftes reiaing 10 fraud in an gudi of ingncial siatemants
Conasdaration of laws and ragubabions in an audit of financial stdements
Commumicaling deficiencias in inlemal cential 1o ihose charpad wih govamance
and managamaent

Ewsluglion of migsistemants idantifed dunng the awdit

Extemal canfirmaticns

Imflial sudit angagements — apaning balznoes

Related parties

Subseguan evenrta

{ining concam

Special contideraticas — gudis of group inenciai sistements (Including the wore
of componend auditors)

Madicabors i ihe ooinien N the ndependent audéor's mpors

Emphases of matier paragraphs and other maller paragranhs # the independent
BUGR0N S negpar

Comparative infomaban — carresponding figuras and camparaties financial
statempnts

Secton A: The auddsd's responaibililas migting 1o olher mfarmation

documents containeng awdited frnancial slatements

61



Appendix 1: Briefing on audit
matters (continued)

Important safeguards and procedures have been developad by Deloitte to counter threats or parceived threals 1o
our objectivity, which include the items set out below.

Safeguards and « Every opinion {not just statutory audit opinians) issued by Delgitte 's subject to
procedures technical review by a mamber of our independent Professional Standards
Feview unit

« Where appropriate, raview and challenge takes place of key decisiens by the
Second Partner and by the Independant Review Partner, which goes beyond
I5As (UK and Irelard), and ensures the chjectivity of our judgement is
maintained

= We report annually to those charged with governance our assessment of
objectivity and independence, This report includes a summary of non-audit
services provided tagether with fees receivable

« There is lormal consideration and review of the appropriatenass of continuing
the audit engagement before accepting reappointment

s« Perodic ratation takes place of the audil engagement partner and, whera
approprate, the independent review pariner and key partners invo ved in the
audit in accordance with our policies and professional and regulatory
requirements

« Inaccordance with the Revised Ethical Standards issued by the APB, there is
an assessment of the leval of threat to objectivity and potential safeguards to
combat these threats prior to acceptance of any non-audit engagement. This
would include particular focus an threats arising from seff-intarest, self-review.
management, advocacy, over-familiarity and intirmedaton.

= Inthe UK, statutory oversight and regulation of auditors is carried oul by the
Prafessional Oversight Board (POB) which s an operating body of the Financial
Reporting Council, The Firm's policies and procedures are subject 1o external
monitaring by both the Audit Inspection Unit (AIU}, which is a division of POB,
and the ICAEW's Quality Assurance Directorate (QAD) The AlU is charged
with manitaring the gquality of audits of econormically significant entities and the
QAD with manitoring etatutory compliance of audits for all other enlities. Both
report to the ICAEW s Audit Reqistration Committee. The AlU alsa reparts Lo
POB and can infarm the Financial Reporting Review Panel of concerns it has
with the accounts of individual entities.

62



Appendix 1: Briefing on audit
matters (continued)

Independence policies Cur detailed ethical policies’ standards and indepandence policies are issued to all
partners and employees who are required to confirm their compliance arnually. We
are alsc required to comply with the policies of other relevant professional and
reguiatary bodies
Amongst other things, these policies:
+« state that no Deloitte partner (or any immediate family member} is allowed to

hatd a financial interest in any of our UK audited entitizs,

« reguire that professional staff may nat work on assignments if they (ar any
immediate family membar) have a financial interest in the audited enbity ar a
party to the transaction or if they have a beneficial interest in a trust helding a
financial positon it the audited entity;

«  state that no persan in & position to influance the conduct and outcome of the
audit {or any immeadiate family member} should enter into business relationships
with UK audited entities or their affiliates.

« prohibit any professional employee from obtaining gifts from audited entities
unless the value is clearly insignificant; and

+« provide safeguards against potential conflicts of interest.

Remuneration and Partners ara evaluated on roles and responsibilities they take within the firm
evaluation policies inzluding their technical ability and their ablity to manage risk

APE Revised Ethical The Auditing Practices Board (APB) has issued five ethical standards for auditors
Standards that apply a ‘threats’ and 'safzguards’ approach,

Tha five standards cover.

=  maintaining intagrity, objectwity and independence,

« financial, business, emaloyment and persanal relstionships between auditors
and their audited entities;

¢ long association of audit partners and other audit team members with audit
engagemenis;

«  audit fees, remuneration and evaluation of the audit team. itigation between
auditors and their audited enfities, and gifts and hospitality received from
audited entities, and

«  nor-audit services provided to audited entities

Cur palicies and procedures camply with these standards

63



Disdailbe melars to one of more of Delotte Touche Tohmalsu {GTT), & Swisg Weres, and its reoenrk of member irms, gach ¢f which s a
lagafy separate and independent enlity. Please sea waw peloitte oo ukifabout for a detaded description of the l6gal struciure of OTT and
ila. amber finrs

Detaitta LLF is the Unied Kingdom mamber fire of OTT

This publication has been written in general ferns and tharefora cannst be refed on jo caver specific silugtions; apeicaban of she
principies sat out will depend upon the parficular circumstances invalved and we recommeard that yau obiam professional advice betore
gcling or reframing from acting an any of (ke contenls of this sublcation. Deloitte LLP would be pleased bo advise readars 90 how ta apply
1he principles sef out in this publication to their specific circumstances. Deletle LLP accepls ne duty of cane or liabdity for any loss
gocasioned o BNy parson acting ar refraining from aclon &5 & resull of any matenal in this pubicatan,

= 2011 Daloste LLP Al nghts mesensed

Digfaitte LLP is @ imited liabilay parrarship registered in Englang and Wales with ragisterad number QC303675 and its registerad office at
Z New Stieel Square, London EG4A 3B2, Uniteg Kingzom. Tel +44 (0] 20 7928 3000 Fax. +44 (0; 20 7563 1196

Member of Deioitte Touche Tohmatsu

64



[Ieurd] 1107 Y2IBN ST

01/600¢ sunjal pue StWIe[d JO UOIIEdIJILId))

3310]2Q

65



N~

N ™ <

swie|) juels) Jo Alewwng ;| xipuaddy
juswaiels Ajjigisuodsay ‘G

$894 uoheoyia) 14

swie|p juels paylenp/pspusy €
saul|peaq UoieoyIad pue uoneldaid Z
uonoNPoAU| 1

Alewwins aAlnoax3

SIUQIUO0)

66



oday [eul4

‘pelIle0 am sjuelb Jybis ay) Jo yorse Uo pebieyo ssa) ay) IO S)es
Hodas. sIy) Jo ¢ Uonoss ‘SzZ9'0L L3 8Jem aplojeq Ag pelileo siuelb Jybie syl uo pswioad yom ay) Jo 10adsal ul pableyo ses) |ejo|

‘S|le)ep 8J0W JO) € UoN0SS 883

“Jeak Joud
8y} Ul auo 0} paiedwod ‘swielo JuelB om) Jo Joadsal Ul panss| alem siaps| uoneoliienb aAcge pejou sjususnipe syj 0} uonIppe U|

"000'0L3 uey) sso| Jo sjuswisnipe palinbal swie|o JueIB om) Jeak 1seT "000'013 UBY) J81ealb alam UYoIiym Jo 4log ‘UoieoIlie0 o)
Joud swieo uelb om 0] epell alem sjuswsnipe ‘seinpsooc.d INo Jo souewlopad ay) ybnoly) paiuapl siodls Jo ) nsal B Sy "SWIe|D
Juelb xis uo suojuido Jipne pailjenbun papiacid em 'esay) JO "sulnel pue swieo elb 1ybis 1ipne o) palinbal siem am |B)0) U|

"aul|peap pallnads syl UlyIMm [10UNoD 8y) Ag Sn 0] peniwgns aJem swie|o Juelb esay) Jo |je '1eak Q1/600Z 8ul Jo} swie|o Juelb
1B1s paljilad aABY BAA "aUlpBaP JUBAS|aI 8U) AQ panIlUgns pue pe)e|dwod alem suinjal pajipne ay) ||e 1ey) JWodal o) peses|d ale app

‘palinbal ylom Jipne ay) Jo yoroisdde pue adoos sy} 0} SE SN 0} SUOONIISUI 8PIACId oYM UOISSILULIOD JPNY 8y} 1o} sjusbe
SE JOM SIU} S3BMapUN SAA "[1oUno) 8y} Aq paJtedsud suinjal pue swieo Juelb payoads BuiAylieo yiom Jpne uno paja|dwod aABy SpA

"UolUS)IE INO 0] WD

aARy 1Y) sie)ew Jueolubis jsow ay) syybiybiy Ing sAlsSneyxe 8g 0) pepusiul Jou Sl Jodal SIYL "0L0Z YoIBI LE Papus JesA su) Jo) YI0m UONEDILS0 JIpne Juelb Jno wouy
sBulpuly A8y 8Y) U0 MoLIBH Jo yBnolog uopuoT ay) Jo ssjiwwo)) Juswabeuepy YSiy @ IPNY '80UBUISA0L) 8U) 0] Jodal JNo JUswnoop siy) ul 1no Bumes ul ainses|d aAsy apA

Arewriung 9ANNIIXH

67



Loday [euld sapUWOY Jipny ay) o) Hoday ¢

"a)jloja@ Ag palIle0 suinjal 8y} pue SWIeo ay) Jo |IeJep SI | Xipuaddy je papiroid

"} J8pun awWooUl 0} JUSWSIUS S [I0UNOD B} 8SIWIXEeW e
10 [uinjal 1o Wiep e Ul Jodls Alans Ajjuspl e
:Jaylie 0] AJljIgisuodsal e Jojipne pajuliodde ayj uo aoe(d jou op senjiqisuodssal asay |

"SUOIIONJISUl UONEDIIMNSD JURIB 8y) Ul souepInb |eisusb syl Ylim soueploode Ul ‘Alessaoau se paljijenb ‘ejeoiniso s Joyipne pajulodde ay) 8)e|dwoo
pue ‘JaW ale saul|pesp Jey] 0s uolyse) Ajawi & Ul yiom Jno a)e|dwod pue ue|d
‘uinyad Jo Wiejo ay) 1081e Ajuedipubis ‘malA sJojipne pejulodde sy Ul 1ey) SI8)ielU 8S0Y) 0] 3JOM INo J08lIp
‘suonon.IsUl uoneolIuao Juelb oioads ay) Ylim 8oUBPIO2oE Ul AJlJoyINy [B20T 8U) 1O SPJ0J8) PUB SJUN0Do. Pajejal PUB Uuinjal Jo WIe|o 8y) sulexs
‘SUOI)IPUOD pUR SWIS) JUBAS|S. 8U) U)IM 80UBPI00DE Ul puR palels Ale)
s| (11 Jo 'spiooal BulAlispun sy) Ylim 8oUBpIooo. Ul (1 :SI ulnja. Jo WIeo ay) Jayleym UoISnjouoo B ssaldxe 0) pue uinjal Jo WIBO B Ul PaUIBIUOD UONRWLIOUI 8] MBIAS) e
:0] palinbal ale spp

10M ano jo adods .

"UoISSIWWOY JIpNY ay) Ag psonpold Suononljsu| UoHeolllsl) [Blauso),
8y Ul 1IN0 18S 8Je suln)al pue SWIB|O 0) Uolejal Ul siolpne pajulodde pue uoissIWWOog PNy 8y ‘seiuoyine ‘Apoq BuiAed Juelb psiipne ay) Jo sailjigisuodsal aAljosdsal sy |

"MO[|0} }SNW 10}IPNE 8Y} UdIYM SUOIIONIISUI UOHEDIHMSD 8s1IdWwod YdIym UoISSIWIWOD)
8y} Aq epew sjuswabuelle uoneoled Japun UoISSIWWOD a8y} Jo Jusbe ue se SWIe0 [BNPIAIPUI UO 3JOM N0 salled Jojipne pajuiodde ay| "sjuswsbuelle uoneosiylisd bupew
Jo} Ajljigisuodsad ey sey ‘siojipne pajulodde s}l uBy) Jeyled ‘UoISSILIWOD 8yl "Ajuoyiny [Bo0T B 0} AJoyiny 2lignd B 1o JuswulaAoD) enus) Ag pied 1o epew seipisgns
Jo sjuelb Jo 10adsal Ul suinjad pue swieR BuiAied Joy sjuswabuele Buew 1o a|gisuodsal S| UOISSILUWOD JIPNY 84} ‘GE6L 10V UOISSIWWOY 1PNy 8y} JO §Z Uoo8s Japun

sapIiqisuodsaa anQ
‘suJnjad pue swieo ul buisiie suopedyyjienb pue sjuswisnlpe ‘siole Aue Buipnioul suinjal pue swied juelb Jo Buijodal pue
uoneledaid sy} ul eouewIOUad S 1I0UNOYD BY) JBA0D [|IM SIUL "600Z Joqueldas ul paysiignd suinjay pue swie|D BulAple) 1oy sjuswabuely Jo maiAsy, ‘Wodal UoISSILWOD

HPNY 8] Ul PapusLLWooal SB |IoUNoD 8y) AQ JNO Pallied 3Jom UONEDINLISD 8U) JO S)Nsal ay) Uo soueulsAob yiim psblieyo asoy) Jo uonusa)e ay) MeIp 0) spusiul 1odal sy

310daa siy3 jo asodang

uononponuy |

68



oday [eul4

"PBAIOAUI 80U} WOJ) Juswabeuew Jus||@oxse Sjos|jal pue Jeak snolasid ey} 0} Juswaoidwi Juediyubis
S| SIYl "Saullpesp JueAs|al sy} UlyIm salioyine sjeldoldde ay) 0) sn AQ palsAllep pue palliled pue ‘swin uo Ajlloyine syl AQ papiwgns usaq aABy suinjal pue
swiep |e jey} Jodal 0} pesesaid ale apn “Apog Buifed juelb ay) woly paaisoal Buleq sjuswAed juelb jenpisal Aue ul Aejap 0} pea| pinoo JI se Ajuouine |eoo| ayj 4o}
suoned|dwl sABY UBD sulpesap UoREJINSD JIpne paljioads sy 1@eW 0} ainjiey Auy "uinjal 1o wieo juelb ay) A0 0} palinbal ale am usym AQ 8)ep puooss e pue
JpNe 1o} J Jwgns pue wieo ay} aledsaid o} palinbal si Ajldoyine suj yoiym Aq ajep oy} Jussaidal ssey] ‘ssipoq BuiAed juelb Ag 1no }8s ale seulpesp UoiBOYILSD

SAUI[pea(] uoIedlJnIad pue QOE@HQ@H& "

69



Loday [euld sapUWOY Jipny ay) o) Hoday b

‘Moaq 8|ge) 8y) Ul papnjoul SWiejo Juelb ay) Jo 10edsal Ul penss| alem Sla)ie| UoNeolljenb ‘eAcqe pejou sjuswisnipe ay) o) uolippe u|

'sesodind uopelsedaud wieo Joy ejep ay jo Bulpuey
pue waejsAs sy} wouj eyep palinbal syy Bunoenxs pue Buunydeo Jo W8)SAS 8] Ul SSauMeam 8U) J08|jad SACJR Palyjusp| Siols 8yl asuodsai ayjlojeQ

‘uone|n2eo Jual Apj@am pue seiuadold pioa
JO Jaquinu ‘uoije|noleo jual ssoub 1oy pasn Bulaq ejep 1084100U] JO JINS8] B SE WIOJ WIBID S} UC 9pBW aJam sjuswisnipe Jo Jaquinu v s|iejeq uawysnipy

"20UBpPING UOISSILLIWOY 1IPNY YlIM 80UBPIODDE. U Pa)e|os| S pajesl)
useq sey Jouls siy) ‘) nsal e sy ‘Al0joRJSIES 8q 0) punoj sem s)lodsal BuikjJepun 0] WIL|O JO UONEI|I0U008Y — t 1S9 Jepun paulopad
Bunse) ay) ‘eJowlsylng "puly SIY) JO SIOLS JBYI0 pUlj JoU PIp sljeusq Jo sadAl Unoj ay) o) sesed g 8yl Jo Bunssl [eniul ay) ‘Jolse
8] Jo alnjeu ol0ads 8yl 0) 8N "€Z |82 Ul JusWS)eISIapuUn puB (Z |80 Ul JUSWS)BISRISAO Ul P8)|Nsal aA0ge pallijuapl Jolie syl asuodsai aylojag

‘AlBucim peleno|ed alam 81egsy Jusy YNH UON Joj Jusunsnipe
[NUBW 8Y) 1BY) paluapl 0LOZ YoJe LE pepus Jesk ay) Joj juelb swayog s)ijsusg Xe| |1ounod pue BuisnoH ayj Jo Bunse) Ino s|iejeq Jusunsnlpy

"MO[8g pepnoul Usag 8ABY U2Iym Jo S|IRjep 8yl ‘'000'0L3 uey) Jejeslb junowe
ue pejussaldal sjuswisnipe sssy) (| xipuaddy) uoneoliso 0) Jold swie|o JUelb om) 0] spew alam Sjususnipe ‘'seinpeoald 18] INo WO} Pallluspl SIoLI Jo nsal B sy

SWITR[D) JUBLD) PAYI[EN()/PIpUslly “¢

70



oday [eul4

‘s)InsaJ paacidwi spiemo) sjuswabuelle Jo Jed se pasesoul 8q os|e pinod Bupoayo jods pue Buiuiely sejnbay spoliad
aimn} ul siolle asjwuiw o) Japlo ul sasodind Apisgns oy Buipod 1081100 jJo souepodwl 8y O} UCHIPPE Ul SIOSS8sSe }ijsusaq
Buisnoy o3 pesiseydws s| jndul ejep ajeinode jo souepodwl ay} ey} 1sabbns pinom am ‘yons sy “jndul weisAs |njeled ybnouy)
8|gBPIOAR 8Je SI0JI8 UoNeoISSe|D APISgNS puB JUSWSSaSSE alooul Ulog UeAamoH "pejoadxaun Jou ale siolls Jossasse ‘polad ay)
ul passaooud swielo Jjeuaq Buisnoy Jo Jaquinu sy} pue ‘swsyds sjieuag Xe| [1ouno) pue BuisnoH ay) JO 8ZIS pue ainjeu sy} UsAlD asuodsal api0j2g

"Jape| uoneoylienb e
Ul papn[oul 8Jam SJ0le aU) JO S|Ie}ap 8y} }nsal B se pue AJuoyine sy} Yyiim Juswpuswe ue aslbe o) s|gqissod Jou sem
J1 S8SED PBJe|0S| 8 0} PAJISPISUOD Jou atam Asy) 18U} 108} 8U) PUB SI0L8 8U) JO 8injeu paleA ay) UsAID) "sadA) ainus)
(vyH-UoN) uojepowwodoe Alelodws) pue sjeqay Juay Jo uonedlysse|o sy} o} Buied Jenoied ul ‘sesodind
Apisgns o) pspod Ajjosliooul useq pey Juswsjius Jijsuag Uolym JO) S80UB)SUl JO Jaquinu e paiijuspl Bujsey InQ -

uoneoljisse|D Apisgng 1081100U| e

"J8))e| uoneolliienb e
Ul pepnjoul 8Jem slolie ay) Jo S|I_jep 8y JiNsal B se pue AjLuoyjne ay) Ylim Juswipuswe ue as.be o) s|qissod Jou sem
I S8se0 Pa)e|0s| 8 0] Jou alem Asy) 1BY) 10B) 8] PUBR SIOLS 8Y) JO 8InjeU PaliBA 8U) USAIS) ‘0] Pajilue alam Asy)
uey) sse| Jo alow pied Jaylie alem SJUBWIBI ) Nsal B sy 'sjijausq Jo sadA) Inoj |[e o} JuswWws()ilus 8)e|nojed o) pasn
ussqg pey awooul Buolm ay) Yoiym 1o SBSED |BISASS Pajou am JuslUs|lilua Jijsuag JUewWIe|o jo Bunss) Jno Jo ued sy -

810113 10SSOSsyY .

:Apoq Buifed
eIBb ay) 0} sanss| Bumoloy ay) Bunybiybiy penssi sem Jspe| uocieoienb B ‘)nsal e sy ‘pajels Alle) sem Jey) wieo juelb e ul
1INSaJ PINOM UDIUM [IDUNOD) 8Y) UM Juswipuswe ||e aaibe 0} 8|qissod Jou sem )l ‘ueAnsmoH pajsnipe pue pasibe alem way) JO 8WOS
‘si0Jle |BIBASS PBIIIUSPI OLOZ USIBIN LE papus Jeah auj Joy Juelb sweyds sjsusg xe| |1Iouno) pue BuisnoH ay} jo Buiiss) JnQ s|iejaqg uoneaijeNDd

"MO[8g pepnoul Usag 8ABY U2Iym Jo S|IRjep 8yl ‘'000'0L3 uey) Jejeslb junowe
ue pejussaldal sjuswisnipe sssy) (| xipuaddy) uoneoliso 0) Jold swie|o JUelb om) 0] spew alam Sjususnipe ‘'seinpeoald 18] INo WO} Pallluspl SIoLI Jo nsal B sy

@oﬁﬁﬁﬂoov SWIIe[) Juels) @oﬂﬂmﬁo\@uﬁﬁoaﬁa XS

71



Loday [euld sapUWOY Jipny ay) o) Hoday 9

"onss| siy} ssalppe 0} djgy 0} 0LOZ J8qWaA0N Ul saipoq BulAed-juelB o) souepinb eoijoeld poob, penss| sey UoISSIWWOD JIpny
8yl "UoWWOD aJe s)senbal UONBOIISD 821j0U LOUS PUB Pasniuod ag ued $sad0id 8yl Jey) UMOUS SBY XJOM UONBIMSD UOISSIWWOD JIpNy-uou Jo aousuadxs
INQ ‘pawlopad 8g 0] SPasU HIOM JBUM PUB UOIEDINSD 8yl Op 0} palinbal s1 oym 0} Joadsal yim Apoqg BulAed-juelb ay) wWod) SUOHRONIISUI Jes|o aAledal Asy)
1By} ainsus 0} paau |Im AJLIOUINE 8y} INg MJOM UOBIISD SIU) Wiopad ajge aq ||I1S PINOYS am ‘OLIeuads SIY) U] "uoiediyiled Jojipne alinbal (|38 Aew Ing yJomawied)
UONEBOII8D S UOISSILIWOD 1PNy 8y} Jo Jed ag o) ssesd Aew sswwelboid Juelb ainjny ‘umop punom ale salousby juswdojaasq |euoibsy ay) se ‘|eieusb u|

sawwelboud sjuelb jeyiden
‘8injnj} sy} Ul psounouue

41 sebBueyo jueoubBIS Aue Jo pawlojul noA desy |Im em pue JesA Yoes SUOIIONJISUl UONEDINLSD 8y) 0) SjuslupuaWwe Joull swos Ajjensn aie aisy) I8ASMOH "L 1/0L0Z
W uoneoyiueo Jpne Juelb jo adoos ay) uo joedwi 0) Aj@yI| UOISSILWIWOY 1PNy 8] Ag paounouue sebueyd ou ussg aAeY alsy) ‘Wodal siy) Bunum jo swi syl 1y

LL/0LOZ — paemioy Bunjoo

Al
N~
'sosodind wejo Joy Indul 1084409 Jo souepoduwl

8y} 0} uonIppe Ul "uinjad Juelb sy} Jo) elep ay) Jo Juswsbeuew 8y} Ul PaAJOAUl 8s0y) 0} pasiseydws siindul ejep sjeinooe
JOo aouepodwi sy} jey) 1sabbns pinom app “wied juelb siyy Jo uopeolyiienb syl Ul pa)NSal SACJE PalNuUSpl Jodle sy asuodsal aploj2g

"0102Z 1snBny Ul 1sai8)ul URO| Jo ).l sbeleAR pue Jual BInwo) Apjsem abelsae
‘sBuljjlemp pIOA UO SSO| JusJ ‘poLiad 8y) Ul JUsJ 8U) JO BN[eA [2)0) “JBaA JO pus 8y 1e sBuljsmp PIOA JO Jaquinu 10811oou|

Buipn|oul sloLe [eleASS palyuspl 0LOZ UYDJBN LE pPepus Jeak ay) Jo) uiney eleq aseq Apisang wyH au) Jo Bunssy 1nQ s|ieja@ uonesend

@oﬁﬁﬁﬂoov SWIIe[) Juels) @o@ﬂmﬁo\@wﬁﬁoaﬁa XS



oday [eul4

002901

06£'ZL

GZr'y
GEL'B
080°2
oLe'S
021°L
G619

TA

09G'6Y

uinyay uoisusd si8yoes

uinidy ¥AanNN

uinyey ejyeq eseg Apisans vyH
Apisgng BuisnoH

84B0p|IYD pue siesh Aues ‘Ue)s aing

21eop[IYd pue siesh Ales '‘ue)s aing

sydiaoal |ejideo Buisnoy jo Buljood

awayog slijeusg Xe] |1ounod pue BuisnoH

:wirepp uelb Ag sBuljjig Jno sesiBWIWINS MOja( 8|de) 8y) Pue 8)8|dWwod MoU S| 6007 U2JBI LE pepus Jesh au) Joj sjuelb molleH Jo ybnolog uopuoT ayj Uo 3Iom InQ

$99,] UOTIBOLJILIY) “}

334 Lianv 1vlol

pa.inoul ]SO0 UIWpY / [BJouso)

GON3d
LoV

ZONOH

LONOH
(60-8002) 2OOAZ

¢00Ad

90440

LON3d

73



Loday [euld sapUWOY Jipny ay) o) Hoday 8

‘asodind uayjo Aue o) ‘papusjul jou si pue ‘peiedaid usaq jou sey podau Siy) eauls ‘seiued 1oyjo Aue o3 Ajjiqel 1o Ayjqisuodsal ‘Ainp
oU 1dBooe Bp 'SJUBUOI S 10) Buole NoA o] Ajjiqisuodsal jJdeooe aiojaiay] em pue ‘Apoq e se ‘sisquisyy sy} 1o) paiedaid ussaq sey podal siy |

"opew aq Aew Yoiym sjustusAodul jje JO 10 [OU0D [eulajul Ul JSIXS Ael YoIym
SOSSBUBaM [jB JO JusLalr]S aAsusyaldwoo e AjLuessaosu jou Si podad Siy} pue sioquuoyy ayj 0} Jueasjal oq Aew jey) siopeuw [je Ajuspl o}
paubisap jou sem 3iom inQ "sainpoosoid uoieoliieo Jueib sy} Buunp uouale INo 0] LRI YIIYM JS8dlul JO Sid)ewl 8soy) Jno s}as uodal siy |

‘pajusajdwi aie Asyj aiojeq suoneoldul [jng 48y} 10f SjusLusAoIdl
10} SUOIBPUBLULLIODS] SSOSSE PINoYs NoA ‘epew 8q Jybiw jey) sjuswanoidull e JO JO ]SIXS Jey] SOSSaUyBaM [[e JO JusLs)e)s anisuayaldwoo
e Ajuessadsu jou ale pue sainpooodd uoneodlpie juelb ino bulnp uonusiie 4no 0] swed jey) asoy) Ajuo aie podead Siy}] ul pesield sispewl 8y |

Juswisle}s
JBY] Ylm aouepiodde ul ‘Jno paLued ale sainpadodd uoneolied juelb ey} pue ‘o siseq ayj uo paiedaid si Jodal siy) pue sioypne psjuiodde
se saljIqIsuodsad ino o suonelwll 8y} pue ‘seiued asay) JO saljijiqisuodsal aAjoadsal 8y} JNo SJ8S ‘UOISSILULIOY) JIpnY 8y) Aq panss! ‘suinjoi
pue swielo o} uoljejal Ul siojipne psjutodde pue UOISSILLLWIOY JpnYy 8y} ‘sanoyine ‘seipoq buifed-jueib jo saiiqisuodssy JO JusWole]S 8y |

1 LOC Yolen Gi
SJUBIUNODDY palalieyd

d171 @nlojeq

"Jioddns pue uclnesedood
JNoA Jo an[eA ay) asiubooal app “epusbe umo s |Iouno) eyl spoddns yoiym uonnguued [eopoeld pue aAllisod B SeyeW UdIym 821A19S JO plepuels ybly e JeAsp 0} S| Wie
JnQ ‘sainpaooud uonjeoiyad Juelb sy Jo 8s1n0o sy} Buunp papiacid uojjeladooo pue 8ouBiSISSE ay) U0 uojeloaidde Jno ssalidxas 0} Ajlunpoddo siyj 3.} 0} 83| PINom SpA

‘Alunuoddo jssides sy 1B sa)IWWOY) JuswWwabeuBy 3SIY R JIPNY ‘©0UBUISAOL) BY)
1e pejussald aq [|Im Jayis| 8uy) Jo Ad0D v '010Z Y24B t U0 8ouBUl JO J0josli 8y} Aq paslbe Buipiom ay) pue gL0Z Aleniged gg uo |1ounog ay) o) papiroid sem Jens| siyl

Juowdle)s AIIqrsuodsay ¢

74



oday [eul4

oN oN 0LOZ/LLIZL  0LOZ/LLIOE y¥0'89€'EL3 uinyas suojsuad s18yoes | GON3d
oN oN 0L0Z/60/22  0L02/60/SC 69Z'0€6'8F3  UIN)aJ SB)R] DlISBUOP-UOU [BUOHEN LOV1
ON ON B/U g/u ¥8¥'L/8'¥3 ©1e0p|iyo pue siesh Ales 'uejs aing (60-80)200A3
oN oN 0L0Z/0L/ZZ  0LOZ/0L/LE 0000163 salj|ioed pejgesiq LZNOH
soA soA 0LOZ/OL/LL  0LOZ/OL/LL Y/N uinjey eyeq eseq Apisans vyH ZNOH
oN oN 0LOZ/ZL/SL  0LOZ/2L/LE 6G6'926'93 Apisans vH LNOH
ON ON 0L0Z/0L/8E  010Z/0L/LE 18E£'60/'83 ©4e9p|IYo pue sieah Ales ‘Uejs aing Z00A3
ON ON 0L0Z/60/8C  0102/60/0€ 199°108'L3  sydieoal [eyded Buisnoy jo Buijood 90949
, , awsyos
soA soA 0L0Z/LL/6Z  010Z/LLI0E LLLZLZT2IL 3 qusueg xe) 1ounos pue Buisnon LON3E

‘'sainpaosoid Buijsse) Jno Jo Jed se payyuad sulnjal Jo swiepo Juelb jo Alewwns e sjussaldal a|qe} Buimo||ol sy

swire[)) juein) jo Arewwung (1 xipuaddy

75



nsjewyo| ayosno| apio|aq Jo Joquiajy

‘8611 €862 0Z (0) v+ :Xe4 000€ 96 02 (0) ¥+ (1oL "wopbury papun ‘Zg¢ VO3 uopuo
‘alenbg 19811 MaN Z 1e 9910 palsisiBal s| pue G29€0S D0 Jequinu passisibal yum sele s pue puelbul ul passisibai diysieuped Ayjigel pauwl| e si 4771 swopa

"pensesel sIYBU IV "d17 8o A 6007 @

‘uoneolignd sy} Ul [eusiew AUe Jo }nseJ B Se UoRoe woJy Bululelel Jo Buioe uosled Aue o} pauoise000 sso| AUE Joj Alljigel| Jo 81ed Jo Ainp ou sydeooe
d71 ewloje ‘seouelswNoIID o110eds Jiayi 0] uolieolignd syl Ul ino jos sajdiound ayy Aldde 0} moy uo siepeal asiApe 0} pases|d g pjnom 477 e1ioje( ‘uoneoygnd
SIY} Jo slusuod B} Jo Aue uo Bunoe woJy Bulurelsel Jo Bunoe alojeq aolApe [euolssejoid Ulelqo NOA 1ey) pUSLILIODS] 8M PUE PBA[OAUI SBOUBISWINDIID Jejnoied ay)

uodn puadap |im 1no jos sediound ay; jo uoneoydde ‘suoljenys 21198ds JOAOD 0] UO palje) 8 JouUeD a10eJay] pue suwe) [essusb ul usliluim useq sey uolieslgnd siy|

*11Q Jo uuy Jaquiaw wopBury| pauun sy st 471 swoea

"SULl Jequiaw s pue | | ( o ainjonis [ebs| ayy jo uonduosep pajieiap e Jo) 1Nogep|n o0o-aliojep mmm 89S ases|d "Alllus juspuadapul

pue aleJedas A|[eba] B SI Yoiym JO Yyoes ‘Sulil Joquisll JO YI0MIBU S)i PUB ‘UlBIe A SSIMG B ‘(,] 1 (,) NSlewyo | aYyono | a1Ioje( JO 8J0W Jo 8UO 0} SI9jel alioed

76



Agenda ltem 9
Pages 77 to 126

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT &
RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 20 March 2011
arc

subject: Draft Internal Audit Plan 2011/12

Responsible Officer: Tom Whiting — Assistant Chief Executive

Exempt: No

Enclosures: Appendix1: Draft Internal Audit Plan 2011/12
Appendix 2: Corporate Strategic
Risk/Opportunities Register
Appendix 3: Corporate Operational Risk
Register

Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

This report outlines the draft Internal Audit plan for 2011/12

Recommendations:
The Committee is requested to:
(a) Note the process employed to develop the plan.

(b) Consider and comment on the draft plan.

( %/'/WMDUNC“L )
LONDON

77



Section 2 - Report

Background

1.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit requires the Audit
Committee (GARM) to approve (but not direct) the Internal Audit Plan.

Current situation

2.1This report sets out the draft Internal Audit annual plan of work for 2011/12
(Appendix 1). The projects set out in the plan are split between
reliance/assurance reviews and risk based reviews. The risk reviews have
been derived and prioritised from the review of the Corporate Strategic
Risk/Opportunities Register (Appendix 2), the Corporate Operational Risk
Register (Appendix 3), the governance framework, taking into account
cumulative audit knowledge and input from managers including the
Service Manager, Corporate Anti-fraud.

2.2 Consultation with Corporate Directors and their management teams has
begun and the remaining Corporate Directors, Directorate Management
Teams, the Chief Executive, the new Director of Finance, the Service
Manager, Scrutiny and the External Auditors will be consulted in due
course.

2.30nce all consultation has been completed and any changes made to the
draft plan as a result of this consultation, including any changes requested
by this Committee, a final plan will be produced reflecting a work plan

achievable with available audit resources. The final plan will be presented
to GARMC for approval at the next meeting (June).

Financial Implications

3.1The functions of the Internal Audit service are delivered within the budget
available.

Risk Management Implications

4.1 The work of internal audit supports the management of risks across the
council and the Internal Plan is derived from the review of the Corporate
Strategic Risk/Opportunities Register, the Corporate Operational Risk
Register and risks identified by management.

Corporate Priorities

5.1 The work of internal audit supports the corporate priorities.

78



Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Julie Alderson N, Chief Financial Officer

Date: 16/03/11

on behalf of the
Name: Jessica Farmer v | Monitoring Officer

Date: 17/03/11

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact: Susan Dixson — Service Manager, Internal Audit
Background Papers: None

If appropriate, does the report include the following
considerations?

—_—

Consultation YES

2. | Corporate Priorities YES

79




This page is intentionally left blank

80



Appendix 1

DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/12
RELIANCE/ASSURANCE REVIEWS

Key Control Reviews

These reviews are designed to confirm the presence, or otherwise, of critical high level controls
within each of the council’s core financial systems. They are undertaken as part of a 3 year
cycle in which each system will be reviewed at least once to satisfy the requirements of the
External Auditors and to enable them to place reliance on the work of Internal Audit. Coverage
of each system is assessed annually having regard to a range of risk factors including changes
to systems and key personnel. For 2010/11 the following systems will be reviewed, managers
will be asked to update systems notes and walkthrough tests will be undertaken to confirm
systems in operation:

¢ Housing Benefits
e Business Rates

In addition for the following systems managers will be asked to update systems notes,
undertake a controls self assessment and walkthrough tests will be undertaken to confirm
systems in operation:

Housing Rents

Corporate Accounts Payable
Corporate Accounts Receivable
Payroll

Council Tax

Treasury Management

Capital Programme

With the exception of the systems notes for the Capital Programme these reviews will be
undertaken in the early part of the financial year to enable the External Auditor to utilise them to
inform their risk assessment that guides the external audit approach for work on the 2010/11
accounts. At the conclusion of this work an assurance statement will be produced for the Chief
Finance Officer and inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement.

Capital Programme
Continuation of the follow-up of the implementation of the recommendations arising from the
Capital Investigation including audit input into the new processes and the use of the project
management toolkit.

Assurance Mapping

Working with Risk Management and the Corporate Governance Group to complete the
assurance mapping exercise. To include a review of officer, member and partner groups
providing assurance on controls in place to mitigate corporate strategic and operational risks.

Management Assurance

Revision of the management assurance exercise in light of the outcomes of the assurance
mapping exercise; co-ordination of the 10/11 annual management assurance exercise; input to

81



Appendix 1

the 10/11 Annual Governance Statement; follow - up of action planned and the development
and instigation of the 11/12 exercise.

Corporate Governance

Organisation of the Corporate Governance Working Group, development of governance
assurance processes, collection of governance evidence to support the Annual Governance
Statement and support for the Corporate Governance Group and the Governance, Audit and
Risk Committee.

Corporate Strategic Risk Group (CSRG)
Attendance and contribution to Strategic Risk Group

Information Governance Board
Attendance and contribution to the Information Governance Board

Schools, Sports Partnership Grant (SSC5)
Reconciliation of grant claim to SAP and audit sign-off.

CORPORATE RISK BASED REVIEWS

Application of Contract Procedure Rules
Currently consulting with Procurement on how best to approach this review with the aim of
assessing compliance and the robustness of the rules and processes.

Purchase Cards
A review of the adequacy, application and effectiveness of controls in place over the use of
purchase cards.

Members and Officers Declarations of Interests and Gifts & Hospitality (SR 9 & OR 2)
A Council wide review to ensure that declarations of interests, gifts & hospitality are being
appropriately managed.

Complaints
Covering both corporate and Adults & Childrens teams. Assessing the implementation of the
corporate complaints system across the Council.

Information Management
A review covering adequacy of and compliance with policies, mitigation of risk, communication
and engagement with staff and effectiveness of controls in place.

Petty Cash
A review of a sample of petty cash imprests/floats held across the Council to ensure robust
financial controls in place.

Management of HR Policies

A review of how HR policies are disseminated and communicated to managers and staff and
action taken to ensure that they are understood and implemented.

82



Appendix 1

Organisational Learning

A review of how lessons learnt from good and bad experiences e.g. a tribunal case, a court
case, an emergency, are cascaded throughout the Council.

Agency Staff

A review of the Council’s longest serving/highest paid temporary staff to ensure their
employment is being actively managed and that VFM is being obtained.

IT REVIEWS
The following IT reviews are planned:

e Bank Automated Credit System (BACS)

¢ Electronic Criminal Records Bureaux (ECRB) — adequacy, application and effectiveness
of new processes to be introduced from May 2011

¢ Internet/telephone credit card payments (including refunds) (CAFT)

DIRECTORATE RISK BASED REVIEWS

Children’s Centres
Review to assess controls in place for collection of income and banking at the Children’s
Centers.

Re-Enablement (SR 2)

A review of the Resource Allocation System for Personal Budgets to assess the adequacy,
application and effectiveness of the controls in place to ensure clients are paid the correct
amount and mitigate the risk of overpayment/loss to the authority.

Pensions
A review of the pensions process.

Transformation Programme — Implementation of Savings (SR 7, 10),
A review looking at the success of the implementation of savings identified from transformation
projects.

Communications (SR 6, 7, 8, 9)
A review of the effectiveness of communication across the council.

Carbon Reduction Commitment (SR 3)
A review of the governance processes for the Councils carbon reduction commitment.

Green Travel Plans (SR 11)
A review of the development and application of the Council’s green travel plans.

Social Care Petty Cash/Client Finances

83



Appendix 1

A specific review of petty cash and client finances to determine whether robust financial controls
are in place.

Housing use of Temporary Accommodation
A review of the use of temporary accommodation by Housing to ensure approapriate controls in
place over allocation and VFM is obtained.

Contract Monitoring
A review of contract monitoring processes across Community and Environment.

Energy Procurement
A review of the process for procuring energy.

Equalities Framework
A review of the accuracy and robustness of data collected for assessment against the Equality
Framework for Local Government and an assessment of Council’s likely success in achieving
an ‘excellent’ external assessment.

SCHOOLS
As the Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS) has been discontinued Audit focus
at schools has been changed to reflect the high risk areas identified by the FMSIS
assessments, the review of Risk Registers and risks identified by management.

¢ Income and Expenditure Reviews

Review of a sample of schools to assess the adequacy, application and effectiveness of
controls in place relating to income and expenditure.

e Petty Cash

Review a sample of schools to assess the adequacy, application and effectiveness of controls
in place relating to petty cash and petty cash cheque expenditure.

e Schools Financial Services Health Checks

Review to assess the adequacy, application and effectiveness of procedures in place relating to
the health checks carried out at schools to mitigate the risk of poor financial practices.

e Schools Interface with Council

A review of the interface between the schools’ SIMS system with the Council’'s SAP system with
particular emphasis on information security.

SUPPORT, ADVICE & FOLLOW-UP

An allowance will be made in the plan for support and advice to managers across the Council
and for the development of the Internal Audit service:

84



Appendix 1

Suspected Financial Irregularities + Control Reviews

Guidance will be provided, in liaison with CAFT, to managers undertaking investigations and
specific investigations will be undertaken on behalf of managers. Plus system control reviews
will be undertaken where weakness have been identified as a result of fraud.

Professional Advice

Professional advice will be provided to managers, as required, on risk and control
management/issues with particular emphasis being given to providing control advice for Lean
Review outcomes.

Follow-up

Follow-up of Red and Amber reports to ensure implementation of agreed audit
recommendations

85



This page is intentionally left blank

86



jyouag
Jeuol}daosxy
/3yoedw] 9
1ydouijsejen

2

jjouag
lole

/3oeduwi

leann

[4

1ovdwi

Hjaueg Hjsusg

10Ul /3oeduw|
/3oedwi| ajqibybanN
leuibie ¢ 74

a|qissodw)

jsow|y

E|

mo Kiap

3

Mo

a

jueoaiubr g

o

ybiy

g

ybiy Ausp

v

dOOHIT3IMIT

Z Xlpuaddy

awweiBboid uolewiojsuei] s,|1ounos ay} saAlep o} Aioeded paywi -0}

(dH) uoneindai [1ouno) oy ahewe(
(ML) ye1s asianlp pue Ayijenb uiejal pue Joeiye o} ainjieq

(ML) saniolid pue uoISIA S |19uno) ay)
suoddns jey; uonesiuebio ayj ul 8inynd e aAsIYde 0} ainjie

(@o) ainjiey asinias ajyoad ybiy
(Nd) pajedionue jou saiydesbowap Buibueys jo joedw
(ML) diysiauped aibajesis 1no uiyum bunjiom diysiauped aansayau|

(Z1 H09 Aq paaejdai — pasojd s1 HS puawiwiodsy)
(Hg) yuawuouaiAud 3y} Bulureisns 0} LU0 AjdAIoe 0} |Ie4

() was) wnipaw ay} ul deb Buipunj ayy ssaippe o} ey

6

'8

¢

(Lv) Awouo9a Japim ayy ul syuswdojanap astanpe 1o} uejd Ajaa1joaya pue ydwa-aid o} jle4 -}

‘seluNwWwo? Jabuons Buipiing -

‘g|doad s|gelaunA Joj Woddns anocidw| — g2

'S190J]S JaJes pue Jaues|o JaAleq — |
€1/2102 — 01/6002 Saniolid 8jelodio)

1102 YoSeN 6 ‘0¥ MaIAeY gSD IXeN
1 10g Areniga g :ejeg mairey HSHD IXeN
V/N :9S0 Aq pameiney

V/N 19SHO Aq pamainey

pleog (sauewopad) Abajens ajel0dio) aumQ

(suoidweyn ysiy Aq sajepdn sajelodioou))

0102 JoqUWIaA0N ¥ weiq — Jaisibay Ajunpoddopisiy d1bajens

87



" uolun Ipaln ABUOI 4o} A, S,J1ouno?)
‘wnio4 Ayjigede [eioueul4 moieH

"dnoig) uoieoNp3 BouRUI4 [BUOSIAd
'sJ911ddns [820] JO WBWaIN0Id
paonpoiul Aaljod Jaijey diyspreH
aWaYOS Jaljel SS8UISNq [[ewS

8500 0}
P8040} BuIsq BUIOS LM
‘Buire) sessauIsng 2907

A

‘wnio4 Ayjigeden [eioueul4 moseH
‘dnoJg uoneonp3 8oueBUI4 [BUOSISd

pun4 sqopr ainin4

uswiojdwa JuswAojdwaun

[200] sjowoid 0} snjd 81U qop yum Hiop [ Ul 8SBaI0U|
-awayas diyssonuaiddy [1ouno) )

"aul JO S18AIS pue 310X

spuewap 8ed

'Sjijauaq 1o} S80IAI8G uofjesijeuosiad | ¢—— (21908 Ul 8588I0U|

"Spuewap Aue Jo

AlipifeA pue sfenpiApul JO JUBWISSASSE [louBul4

"sjuapIsal
"spuewap Aue Jo uo ainssaid
AipijeA pue S[ENPIAIUI JO JUSLISSSSE [EloUEUl | €——  pUE SSBUSSA|AWOY
"9l|and 0} 821ApE BuisnoH ul esea,ou|
(Jeua]Xa) S8IUBNDASUOY) AHUNWWOY)
Aunwwos
"SjuapIsay Jo} [eaq Jenag e ‘sjorduw uo joedwi
asIoApe asiwiui 0} sjosloid Jo uoisuadsns | - s)oaloid pauueld
0] yoeoidde paiepIsuod pue pauue|d JOAI[op 0} [Ie4
“JusWAedal Jo peaids moje \SquEBy VIpUEIGY| U 9)

A

0} JUBLULIBAOE) UM uosIel| BuioBuQ "IIsodep AusWISaAUI UE JO SSOT

A

A

MaIAaY J0)ga( g JoNpal) )
"SMAINSY UeaT SOOINSS
SJUapISaY 10} S|eaq Jeneg Jaquinu asea,Jo8p 0} pasu
‘peOpIOM (SIesile JuB) /PeO] oM Juswabeuew
Jour) JuswieBeuew 1qep Joj 10sfoid 4|0 | €T 1g8p pasealoul /S8dInI8s
‘syjauaq Jo Buroyuow BuiobuQ 10 dn 8y} pasealoy|
(1euJajur) saauanbasuo? uonesiuebig
soouanbasuo) saouanbasuo)
10} S|0JJU09) |enualod

‘Buiseaioul "SMaIADY UBaT % SJUapIsay 1o} sjea( Janeg
S3JIMIBS UIyiIm ‘oeudoidde
» $1800 pue Buije > asaym ‘ye1s Aouabe ui uononpay
S|9A8| BWOJU| (90dy) "gs o1 bunseosio} Alyiuopy
‘awwieibold Buluresy Juswabeug|y s suonnoeld
-~ yeam . 'Sjuapisay 10} s[es( Jeneg
» S| ssao01d (sjuswasinbai
Bunseosioy 904y) Buipodas pue Buuoyuow 196pnq Ajyiuoly
196png ‘Buuresy Jaysaial dvs
“uolun HPaID ABUOI 10} A, S,1ouno)
'sjuapisay Jo} sjeaq Jeneg
L '§9ssauIsng [ed0| 'SOW0JIN0 SHIIN
> puR S80IAI8S | Jonuow o} preog Aousiolg 8a1n8g Alyiuop
uo Joedwi 8y} g "$91RI0}08I(] SSOIO. OjUl BIeyS
aedionue jou op 0} sBunasw dnoif younio upal) Ajyuop
/osiuadxa Jo yoeT ‘ABoleng [eloueul4 WIa] WNIpaj
Aaljod wuswabeue|y Ainseal |
Ajopim pealds -SI0SIADE
10 paydIessal jou > INL HOLD3S UM uopounfuod isii
sjuswisoe|d sysodapy Buipus| Auedisejunod jo meinal Jejnbe
»| Sjuswisenu| :ABsjells %
JuBLISEAUL pUnosun ‘pun4 suonisinboy / swweibold [eude_
"(mainay Auadoid Buideyg aoely) “sddo
SIanoodal Joj 10xew Auadoid Bunioyuow AjpAnoy
Awouoos uaym > ‘wnydn aoeIqus 0} Spaloid
1o} senunuoddo 10 swweiboid - dnoir) Auadold/sede|d
> Aynuapi Jou oQ
(8N4 3 D) Malnay swiweiboid [enden
Mainey . ; .mEmm:m%c%cE mau Ayusp! o
Buipuads 1109 19 mcw_\/_ ulpun4 aleiodion yum uosel] 8sojD
dd 10308 Arejunjon yum sdiysuonelal piing
/ s8junyioddo “dnolr) Bunsng uoisseday Aq
Buipuny ue|q A19A02aY 91Wou0d3 pue dnos moLIeH
[euldiXe L—p Buisudisz Aq a3 Jo Buuoyuow Buiobup
» asiwixew "(s@3) ABareng uswdojersq o1WOU00]
jou oQg '$$8001d SWWO0I puB iomjau 049
soshe)
sosne’) |enualod 10} S|0JJUO0Y)

Awouo9o3 J1apIpp ul sjuswdojanaq — | ON Ysiy d1bajesys



/0102/0}/9¢ U0 HSHO
0} sBuipuiy oday “aunjre; Jojgep pue Joypald

"0102/./8¢ uo Bunssw goy9 woiy Buise gg uondy | WepAH Auusp I 10Z Aeniged punoJe sl Jo [oA9] [enusiod ayy Ajuap) MBIABY J0ige( 3 Jolpal)
Jauing uop 0102 Jequiadaq awuwelboid Buiures; 1o [joy Buurel| wswabeueyy s suonnoeid
'ss820.d [encidde 1adoon [oued
pieog ubisaqg pue pieog Aousiolyg 901G ‘winio4 [ende) | -puegao diyd Buiobup abus|ieyn pue siepea o} buuodas Jejnbay mainey Auadoid buideys aoeld
SWealls YIom ‘Smalnal
"paoUBWIWOD Kousioye Bumno ssoio ‘japojy Bunesado
ng4 pue auipno jo swweiboid ‘ey8|dwod Hg oibsiens | Buniyp woy €102 aInin4 {palsnijep S8IIAIBS JO Jaquinu 8onpay SM3IASY UBaT pUe Sjuapisay Joj [eaq Janeg
(-o1sajuRW
S UoljeJISIUILUPE MaU B} O} paull 8q [IIM) "Ueld 8leiodion
1 swweibold [ended yeip L 1/010g ‘sjeued abusjieyn <[] 0102 AON suonoe diysheyysioaloid jo Jaquinu 8anpay peopiiom Joj sjosloid 419
"wnJo4 [enden ay) BIA SBWI0JINO MOIASY
1102 Judy Buipuadsg jsod sjuswaiinbas Huwwelboid
[endeo ainyny Jo uonesiioud pue mainey
S||IH uopus.g 0102 AON MaIney OMd MmaInay swwelbold [euden

sjuawwo?) / ayepdn

¢ Op [[IM 9M MOH

&ISU SI} SSaIPPE 0} Op [|IM dM 3S|3 JeUM

- uoiun upain Asuop 1oy I, S,1ounod pue wnio Aljigedes) [eroueul4 molieH ‘dnoi) uoiieonp3 8dueuI4 [BUOSIOd
"3WI} JO SIBAIIS puR J1|DX ‘SHjaUSQ 10} SBIIAIBS UONESI[BUOSIB pue ‘spuewap Aue Jo ApiieA pue SjenplAIpul JO JUBLISSSSSE [BIOUBUI PUB dljgnd 0} dIApe BuisnoH
‘SJuapISay 40} [eaq Jenag 68 ‘syoedwi asiaApe asiwiuiw 0} s1sloid Jo uoisuadsns 0} yoroidde paispISuod pue pauue|d
(90dY) 'gs9 o1 Bunseosaioy Alyuop pue (sjuswaiinbal 9ogy) Buiiodas pue Buuoyuow 1obpng Ayuop
"SaWO02IN0 S I\ JoNUOW 0} paeog Aouaiolyg 891A18S Ajyiuow pue S8jelo}aailq SSoIo. ojul aleys 0} sBuleaw dnolb younio upaid Ajyiuopy
‘Buures) Jeyseljal S pue s1osiApe L HOLD3S Yum uoioun(uod 1si) Buipus| Auediajunod jo meinsl Jejnbay
‘(ereudoidde aiaym) yeis Aousbe ul uonodnpal pue ‘pun Sqor ainjn4 pue pun4 suonisinbay [euden
"(mainay Auadoid Buideys aoeld) senunpoddo 4oy 1axew Auadoid Buuojuow AjgAnoe pue (uinjdn adeiquie 03 s1osloid Jo swwelboid) dnoir) Auedoid/sede|d
‘swieal}s Buipuny mau Apuapi o} sebeue)y Buipun4 aye1odion Yum uosiel| 8Soj0 pue 1030as ArejunjoA yim sdiysuonelas piing
"Juawhojdwa [eo0| d10WoId 0} SN|d B13UBD GO YIM HIOM PUB BWBYIS Joljal SSaulsng [[ewS ‘ewayds diysaonuaiddy [1ouno)
‘dnoJg) Bunsng uoissaoay Aq ueld A1anoday olwouod3 pue dnoir) moueH Buisudieiug Aq Sa3 jo Buuoyuow Buiobup
o104 Jaiiey diyspieH ‘Aaijod Juswebeue|y Ainseal| ‘ABejeng [eroueul4 wia wnipspy {(Sa3) ABereng juswdojaraq o1wou0o

uawAhedas jo pealds moje 0} IA0L) Yim uosiel| % siyeuaq Jo Buojuow Buiobu pue ‘sienddns [820] Jo Juswiaindold ‘SS8201d SUOHBIIUNWWOD pUB YI0MIBU 049
sl ssaippe o} a9ejd ul Apealje sjoiuo)

Ajlunwwio? Japip\ Ul Sjuswido[aAaq 9SI9APY — Ue[d UONIY | Ysiy d1bajens

Buiuonoe spasay / pauueld sjosuo)
as90

Aoy jo1u09

JBUMQ STy

uisyai] malpuy

:uoidwieys ysiy

€d

:Buney ysiy yabue

ca

:Bungey ysiy juasiny

14

:fyuond ajesodion

89



g4Sd

*saljuoud pue 186pNnq JO UONBDO|[ea) PUB S32IN0S8I |0 MaIASY
(pasijeal s1ysi J pajeAnoe aq 03) salouabunuo)

90



skeq Aemy pue

sbuiyelig Jaqua} Jejnbey
awweiboid

uonoNpu| SIequIsy

‘Buipuads epiosp
0] fyoeded sueionijod

"SOXI)

wJa] Uoys Aq pagiosqge
awi Juswabeuew

J0 Junowe abie

"S|aued
abus|jeyn 196png Buipnjou
'$5800.d 196pnq [enuuy

"106pnq [eb9) 19s 0 ain|ie

‘long)
1UB.IND JB S80IAISS JOAI[ap
0} $80.N0S8J JUBIDIYINSU|

sasuanbasuo)
10} S|0JUO0Y)

saouanbasuo)
[enjuelod

wia}
wnipaw ay} ul

sdeb Buipun} ay}
ssalppe 0} |le4

soel
9Se] PUB SJBWIIO JILIOU0DT

A\ 4

MaIAS)
Buipuads 1xau ul %01-Gg 0
sino Buipuads JusWUIBAOKL)

—>

S9SBaJOUI XB)
(15U punoJe Aurepsoun
pUE SjuIRJ)S8l [BOI}I|0d

$s900.d

Bumes 196pnq Jo 1ed

Sse) S41IN Ul suondwnsse
1O MaIABI Jejnbay

‘Buipuny Janeq Joj Buikgqqo

IIN

\4

‘awwelboid [eydes
ayy Buroueur Jo 1509

*019 ‘uoneysiba)
'3 Soxel [|ljpuej
‘solydeibowap
0}

anp sedINIeS
101509
Buiseasou

"Joddns Juswa|gesy

1
(o)}

"uonesijendes uo
8ouel[el / suoisinoid
| SOAIBS8I MO

\ 4

*90In0saJ sdujsino
S9OIAISS 10} puBWIAp =

anoJL) AIBA0DSY 1ge( 81eioaio)

S9OUBUI S,[10UN0Y BY)
Ul 8oUB[BqWI [RINONAS

sasne) |enuajod

\4

‘punoi 186pnq [enuuy

sasne)
10} S|0JJU0)

sder) buipung - g ysiy oibajens



ds?d

‘uoledo|[eal J86pnq / seAeniul Bunng 1509 [euonippe Juswsjdwi 0} g0 0} 8je[eds]
(pasijeas s1 ysu JI pajeAllde aq 0}) salouabunuo?

naueg AmuejAp 0102 190 SJUBLIBINAS / JUBWIBdUNOUUY MalAsy bBulpuadg
naueg AmuejAp
/ Bumym woy 0102 98Q Jouiqe) o} }aBpng yelp pue sjafipng moirey sjaued abusjiey) 1efipng 0102
"uonoe siy} Juswadwi
Ajarenbape 0y Ayjige s j1ouno) ayy "1ayjebo | Jayeg R 99e|d ‘Sainseaw aAlejuanald
10edwi Aew sjuelf y17 Ui sinD | naueg AmueiApy ZL/1102 [e10] - swweibold Syuapisay 1o} s|eaq Jenag ybnouy Ajnjaseo ajow Spuewap 81ed [Blo0s abeue|y|
naueg AmuejAp
/ 81seM\ ‘sjue|d Juswieal) Joy $s8201d Juswainooid
uopuoT 1ss\ +102/0+02 VBIS pUe [|Ijpue| 0} soAleuss)e Ajjusp B]SEA\ UOPUOT 1SBAN YIM YIOM
BuiobuQ ‘punol ‘punoJ 186pnq yoes uoisod 1ouno)
naueg AmuelAy | % 2102/2102 | 186png yoee ul seAlasal 0} uonnguUIucd dn pjing anoidwi pue suoisinold pue saniasal plingal o} Abajens
ueloQ aulayle)
/YalesleN Ined | 0102 1890100 ‘Buljjepow Jo Juswadueyud SYNPY R S,UBIP|IYD Buiiseoa.0} lep 81RINOR BIO)
(N7
Bunesw gs) Je uowisod | preog “boid / ‘pouiad wis} Buo
1U81IN9 18 ¥007 :Buoisallly | neueg AmuelAN | $102/5102 0} wnipaw ul sdef Buipuny |1} 01 sAkem Apuap) awweJboid sjuapisay Joj Sjea( Janeg
naueg AmueApy 010z AON ‘pouiad jpued abusjieyd sy} OJuI uni 0] MaIASY
‘uonebnsaul swweiboud [eynden
“1ouno?) Jo sanuoud yum swweibold
ajbur] anals 010z AON [euden Bunjuil panssi 8q 0} 8oueping | -swiweibold [ended Jo j04uod pue Juswabeuew paroidu|

sjuawwo?) / ayepdn

&} 0P [|IM MOH

¢YSH Sy} Ssaippe 0} op ||IM am ey

'07Sq Bunabiey pue sjouno) uopuo ybnoay} ‘Buipuny Japaq 1o} buikqqo
sfeq Aemy pue sbulang Jaquia|y Jeinfial pue swweiboid uononpu| siequiajy
"(sse204d Bumas 186pngq jo Wed se) S4 1|\ ul suoidwnsse jo mainal Jejnbay

‘sjaued abuajjeyo 196pnq Buipnjour ‘ssaooid jebpng pue punol 186png [enuuy

‘Moddns juswajqesy
-abusjeyo Aousiolye uopuo
‘dnoig Aanooay 198 alelodion

:)sU ssaippe 0} ade|d ul Apealje sjonuo)

sdey Buipung — ue|d Uondy ¢ ysiy d1bajens

Buluonoe spaay / pauue|d sjo3u0)

*§]03u09 Bunsix3 / adejd ul sjosuo0)H
A8y jo1u09

gsd

JBUMQ YSIY

poasleg AmuejApy za

:uoidweys ysiy | :Buney ysiy jabie)

cd 14

:Buney ysiy juaiiny

:fyuond ajesodion

92



Buipuny [eulalxe aso| ‘Xe} ||lipue]
‘B8 — 10edwi [e1oueul aAebaN

"$$9204d JusWaIN0Id
10 Ued Se palapisuod
10U JUSWUOIIAUT

A

A

"uoljesejoa(
weybunjoN 0} JusWHWWOD
Buiiessuowap jou [1ouno)

"UolUSE BIpaW aAlebaN

juswiuoliAus
ay} buiuieysns
0} 3)nqLuod
Ajanjoe o} jre4

A\ 4

‘fioud ajelodiod
oy e se padeiquie
Jou Ajiqeurelsng

\ 4

v

'seaJe usalb,
uo ymolb Juswdojenag

A\ 4

A

1500
[eLiayew mel / ABisus asealou|

A

saouanbasuo)
10} S]04)U0)

saouanbasuo)
[enusjod

A

‘awwelboud
Buiohoas eenbapeu;

\ 4

93

v

v

‘ybnoJoq ul pue
[louno)) je pajsem ABisu3

sasne) |enuslod

sasne)
10} S|04)U09)

JuswuoJiAuz ayj buruielsng - ¢ ysiy d1baje.ils



1BUMQ XSl @S9 01 8jejedsy
(pasijeas s1 )s1 JI pajeAjoe aq o)) sajouabuiuo)
¥102 ‘ueld uonae Juswaldw
layeg maipuy 0102 AON ‘[eAoidde Joj Jouige) o} uonoy parepdn ‘ue|d uonoy Abajens abueyn srewi|n

sjuawwo?) / ayepdn

¢ Op [[IM 9M MOH ¢Sl SIY) SSaIPPE 0} Op [|IM M ey

sjeb.e} buipAoai jo Bunoyuow Aapeny

-a0e|d Ul wea| Abiau]

*sBuines 1509 |qissod Ayjuapl 0} S}S09 JO MalAal Ajispent)

"9P07) UBWSINI0Id USBIL) SI0AB)\ BY} pauIop

"passalppe aq 0} Ajjiqeureisns salinbai 10afoid yoes — ABsjelis Juswainoold Jo Ued

140 UBIS yum spodal 1auige) uo palapisuod suonedldwi [ejuswuoiIAug

‘ue|d uonoy abueyn arewn|n pue (600g euiqen Aq pasibe) Abareng abueyn syew|n

‘awwesbold 4jo 3 uiny, pue ‘siasn ajeaud pue ayei0diod 1o} swwelboid Bulohosy

*aWayas BulALp 099 "68 ‘siasn 10108s ajeAld pue ajelodiod jabie} 0} saAijeiul Jo swwelboid Buljjol BuiobuQ
sjosloid |e 1oy ubredwed eipsw ajyoid ybiy pue ubredwed suonedUNWWOD Udalb, [eussiu|

:)sU ssaippe 0} ade|d ul Apealje sjonuo)

JUSWUOJIAUT 8y} Bulure}sng — uejd Uondy ¢ ysiy d1bajens

Buluonoe spaay / pauueld sjo13uo)

Aoy jo1u09

gsd

JBUMQ YSIY

SlitH uopusa.g ¢d €0 b

:uoidweys ysiy | :Buney ysiy jabie) :Bungey ysiy juasiny :fyuond ajesodion

94



"uolesIuBbI08. UBALIP JUBWUIBAC (o
[e2uad / sepuabe [euoibai femy ouncg) Sm
snid ‘suonesiueblo Jauped —» " sBuiesw
> 10 uoljesiuebl0-81 UOPUOT Ued dnoip 30H Jejnbay
[eue® B[RRI | SUONEOINLILIOD
- Uoljedlunwwod Jood Jo dn uiol [eanoe |

'Sn "SA wiay) - abueyo HpQg uo om Juiop
aInynd 0} souejonjey | sbuneew dnoig 304 Jeinbay

wnIHosuo) 4o 0} 190d

0 JuBWYsIoge B8 *dn ulol [euonesiuebio

A4

ul 201jod Lym Buisiom Jujop

\4

‘Juswebeuew sebueyo enyejsife] (S)winiposuo) 4o yum Apoauip ebebug
suiweiboig SEEMWM% | 'SJUSPISaY 10} Sjea( | ¢
pue Bupoda) 39H Jejnbay Jepag jo Aianyep pasiwoidwo) 'senoud Hvag uo siom o |
> Bunoiuod juoisia > ‘preog £q panoidde g sieak z fian
n___._m._wctmn_ paleys Jo xoeq parepdn - ABareng Ayunwwo) s|qeureisn LE)
SUONEIUNLILIOD ~
J0 dn uiof jeonoe | < "90U8pPIju0d o__Q:n_ jossoq | o_mmum.:m 1
ulyum Bunpiom SUOIJEPUSWILI08] DM Juswa|duw]
— diysiauped ‘|lopou
S0UBUION0D awm_ _omﬁ“m_oo_ﬂ CAUVRETTEY| —| 9ouruIon0D > aor|d Ul s193s16a. ysu dnols Juswabeuepy
sioko uaLUABEUEL (G 181y oifelens oos) | 1004 *Y0ogpUBH UONINpU|
souewiopad JOH ain|ie) 9oInes ajyosd ybiH | PUE Y00GPUEH 8OUBWIBAOD dSH Patepdn
JUBUISSASSE YS! bUNUNYS 1500 X - gUEN
‘sbunesw | g juiol rejnbay $5900.d AioA0dal ‘buipun yy7 psonpal MBIABI 0} SBUNSBW HGT/10d IOp
“0[oko [etoueul sjenbapeul < > / seinssalid [eloueuly spuny vy uojyeao|[eay dSH
JuswaBeuew souewiopad JOH pue Bununys 1509 Uo7 % Jauped _ Aeq Aemy 30H
uoIJeoo|[e JuRlB paAisoal Yy
sbunesw dnoig) 39H Jejnbay
sajuanbasuo) sajuanbasuo)
10} sjoJjuo0) jenualod Sesheg
) soshe) |eljuslod 10} sj0J}u0)

(dSH) BUDIIOM dIUSIoUMEd — b YsIY JIDaleS




dSd

pieog diysiaupeg pue 3)H O} 81ejeds3

(pasijeal s1su Ji pajeAljoe aq 0}) sarouabunuo)

sjuawwo?) / ayepdn

as9 110Z [udy SUOIEPUBWIWO93aI DM Juswajdw|

ddeusme( xa|y 110Z [udy "pIeOg dSH 1O SSBUBAIDBYS dlenjeA] pIeog 4dSH oienjea
"SWNILOSUOI d5) YIM

POOMYI0T |SRYIIN BuiobuQ abebus 0} uaym Ayjuapi 0} 19d yum uostel| BuiobuQ "SWINIJOSU0Y) 49 yum Ajjoaaip abebu3

POOMYI0T [SRYIIN 010z Jaquiada( ‘Rep Aemy feq Aemy 39H

uosdwoy |

eul] / Jabeuepy sdiysieuped ¥ Ad1j04

Ysiy wualu| 010z Jaquiads( pue 39H “Uebeue|y %siy wua| yum Buiyiom juiop Ja)sibay ysiy o168jenS IO dSH dojersq

youesleN [ned BuiobuQ % 11/0102 "puno. 186pnq jo Yed se (1 Dd) UBWSSoSSe Ysiy "JUBISSASSE Yysu buiunys 1509

&1 Op [[IM 9M MOH ¢)SU S1U} SSIPPE 0} Op [|IM dM 3S| JeyM

(OINd) uswabeuew awweibold uoleuwiojsuel |

"YOOQPUBH 89UBUIBAOKE) dSH palepdn

JUBWISSasSe ysii Bununys 1509

*910A0 Juswiebeurw souewiopad J9H

*SUOIe2IUNWWO9 Jo dn ulol [eonoe |

*dn uiol jeuonesiuefio ul 821104 yum Buiyiom juiop

"Hiag uo 3iom juiop

‘pieog Aq panoidde R sieak g Aians pajepdn - ABejens Ayunwiwos) ajqeureisng
-90e|d Ul sie)siBal ysu dnolg) Juswebeuep dSH

"YOOQPUBH UOIONPU| PUB Y00gPUBH 82UBUIBAOL) dSH palepdn
"Jgep mains) 0} sbunesw HgT/10d uior

Spunj Y\ 10 UOIBI0|[eal dSH Pue Uoledo|[e Juelb paAlsdal Yy
‘sajepdn pue sbuieaw dnolr) 3OH Jejnbey

sl ssaippe 0} 99ejd ul Apealje sjoiuo)

(dSH) Buniiom diysiauled - Ueld UoNoy  ¥sid dIbatens

96

Buluonoe spaay / pauue|d sjo13uo)
as90 Buniym woy cd [4:] v

£ay| jonuo)

:Buney ysiy usaung

LIBUMQ YSIY :uoidweys sy | :Buney ysiy yobie] :Ayuonid ajesodion




2SIy oifsjens e9g
Z1/110g Buluueld soinies

"S90INIBS
JOAI|Bp 01 S82IN0S8I 1UBIdNINSU|

"UONOBJSITES JBUIOISNI JIOYUOJ

Z1/110z Buiuueid somies | €]

‘JosW Jou spasu slasn 8dIAI8S

'sdnouf Jasn [esisAiun

(dv00

10 uoneiuswa|dwi Joyuow) dnolr
Buionuopy uoisayon Ayunwiwio)
Ue|d UOROY UOISayo) Ajunwwon
dnolr) swabeuep

uoIsayo) Ajunwiwio?) 4sH
*Aunwwiod Jo aAijejussaidal

S| BJep aInsusd 0} — Oy

“ABoyens [einn9

‘Abatens wewdojarsg Anunwiwon

‘Bunssw dnoig

sanenb3 arelodio) Apsueny
‘MoJIeH ul uone|ndod ueisy
Burebe Jo spasu ainjn} 1e %007
"8WaYdS

Aurenb3 ajbuig meiney

‘uoljejosiyuonehaibas
pasealoul - aaoidwi Jou
S90p U0ISBY09 Ajunwiwon

A

*J00d
aJe forinaoe /Ayjenb ejeq

"dSH Aq
pasiopus Adijod Alfenb ereq
‘ABarens Ajenb ereg

sojyde.Bowap
Buibueyo

0} Uolusje

10 yo'T

\ 4

RUETTETET

90IAI9S WOl 0} pasn Buieq YNSI ysaljey

JUsWaEIS

peayy JesA oJul pea) 0} DY/ UOISSIWLIO)

‘ABaens Anunwwos) ajqeurelsng
1102 Snsuan

“aburyd ||Im eale ay) moy pue solydeibows
MOLIBH Ojul yoreasal 1no Buikiied — uepadx ™

(o)}

A

"UONBJSIES JAWO}SND Jojuopy [ SEN
21/ 10z Buiuueld sainieg 0] paI8)ed Jou S8JIAIBS
s99uanbasuo) s9auanbasuo)

10} sjoJjuo) jenualod

\ 4

"Speau Jesw jou >
seop Buluue|d wiey-HuoT

ue|d uoniquy BuisnoH
‘awwelBold uonew.ojsuel |
Womawes) juswdo|anap [ea07]
"yom pajebie)

9BUapUN 0} PaUOISSIWIWIOD DY
"poeyepdn sajyoid Auen

A 4

‘|reiep

ybnous ui ejep 1e Bunool
10U / suoiyedydul Japisuod
0} Pa}eoo|[e 82IN0Sal ON

"siauped ssoloe
elep Jo sishjeue pue Buijood

\ 4

Ylim pexse] — paysi|qelss
dnoJf sisAjeue jyaleasal uiop

sasne) |eljuslod

sasne)
10} S|0JJU0)

soiydeibowag Buibuey) — G ysiy o1bajens



(pasijea s1 ysu JI pajeAljoe aq o)) salouabunuo?

"0102 uwnny aje| Aq sybnoiog uopuoT
159 Aq yo ubis [ewlo4 010z 1dag Ag suswwiod ybnolog

‘sybnolog
uopuo i1sap Ag Lodal euly uo yo ubis ureyqo
pue sjuawiwod ydnoiog Ag pawoul si Yyaiym

yum pasinal Buiag Loda. elp [eul4 ‘paiejdwod yoressey Bbad uosiy 0102 JaquianoN pu3 ‘Buisnoy a|qepioye ol yosessal 1onpuo) | (YINHS) Juswissassy 1axep BuisnoH [euoibey qng
"anssi siyi 0} yoeoidde EERIER
dn pauiol oibsjells € Jo YoE| B S| 18y} ‘senss a|buls apIeA NPy uyum Assnljep eoinles ajeldoldde "MOJIeH
punose auop Buiaq yom pue sdnoib Aqqo| /e aisy sjIyp | 04e) / Aejuie suep 2L/11022d Ajleanyna Joy jesodoud e Buidojensq ur uoneindod ueisy buisbe Jo spasu ainjn} 1e %007
"Jakojdwa ue se
pue diysiopes| AHuNWwod ‘edIAIas Jowolshd
"gS9 01 papinosd podai [eiu sef|| pawweyopy 0102 Jequiadaqg jo ued paweasisurew e si Ayjenbs Buunsug awayds Aufenb3 sjbuig mainey
‘Buiuueld eo1n1es
siesesfeN |ned 2H1102 ut papnjout suoleoyduwi Aysienq pue Ayjenb3 2}/110g Buluued sojnieg

‘sBunssw dnoiry BuIOp | 10Z SNSUB) Je passnasip
Joyunj 8q 0| *(M0S3) oui} siyi e s|qe|ieae jou Buipun

eysuIlLeY 8ng

*MO|[e $80IN0S8) SY

"}IOM SIy} JO Led Se palspIsuod
8q 0} JueJb JusWUIBAOB Jo SBIN|IISSOd

BRI
abus|jeyo 0} JopIo Ui (Jusig pue JoISUILISOM
o} Jejwis) Apnig mayAely sy Buisn Aupigissod

‘Apnis Juspuadapul 19npuoy — | |0z SNSuUsn

"yoeoidde

‘sleak Z pue | aseyd e Buiye; jJuswdojanap “aburyo |ImM BaJR By} Moy pue salydeibowap
¢ Ixau Joj solydelBowiap paseq — | aseyd buisieul4 Souop uag L1/0102 8oInas Buiwoyur Buiyoad olydelbowsq MOJIBH OJUI Yyosessal ino Buikiied — ueladx3
yolesleN |ned ZH/L0z SjUapISaY 10} [ea( Jajeg YIm yul| 0} 8nuiuo) "awweiboid sjuapisey o} Sjeaq Janeg

‘uondope Joj [eroidde

pue algnd ul uoijeuIweXxs 1o} Jojoadsul

"9]elS Jo AIB}a108g 0} UoISSIWanS Juspuadapul ue juiodde usy |jIm oym
-81d 10} 01.0Z JoquIBAON Ul Jauiqeq) o} ABajens 8100 |  uoslelied maynep 1102 Jequiaoa( ‘a1e1g Jo Aieyeloag 1oy ABsjels 8109 dojansq "Yomauwel} Juswidojpasp (8207

"spuaJ} uonendod ybnolog ojui sishjeue pue ‘ejep

aWILID ojul Juawissasse difsle.lS :pale|dwod ylom oy (39H Aq pauoissiwwod
"UoIONPU| SIBQUIB uoiburiey ylom 5y BuiobuQ) yom pajebie} axeuspun
0102 10} 8|qe|rene aq 0} spodai ajijoid AleUA MOLeRH | piAeq / S8ljeq ZI Buiobup *AIUNWIWo Jo aAlejUsSaIdal SI Bep ainsug 0} PaUOISSIWWOI (DY) dnoiy) sishjeuy iop

sjuawwo) / aepdn

&1 0P [IIM @M MOH

&)SU s1y} ssalppe 0} op [|Im am Jey\

"JuswdojeAap 821AI8S WOl 0} pasn Buiaq YNSI paysalel pue buesw dnoig Ayjenb3 sjelodio) Auauenp
‘ABajeng [einyny pue swsyds Aljenb3 eoey ‘Abareng juswdojeasq Alunwwos ‘ABajens Ayunwwo) sjqeuleisng
dSH Aq pasiopua Aaljod Anfenp eleq ‘Absrens Auenp eleq
(sJaupied ssouoe ejep Jo sishjeue pue Buijood yum paysel) paysigeiss dno.b sishjeue jyoseasal juiol pue uonoejsies Jawoisnd Joyuow ‘payepdn seyyoid Ayeip

is1 ssalppe o} a9e|d ui Apealje sjosjuo)

soiydeibowaqg Buibueys — uejd uondy g ysiy dibajens

Bujuonoe spaaN / pauueld sjo.juo)

£ay jou0)

gs0

J1aUMQ YSiy

yaJesleN [ned

:uoidweys ysiy

cd

Buney ysiy jobie)

ca

:Buney ysiy usauung

v

:Ayuonid ajesodion

98



asd

'ss8001d Bumas 196png pue swayds Ayfenb3 sjbuig |

99



'$9|NY 8INP820Id 10BIU0D
"90UBINSUI pue
‘6 %Sy oIbejeng 983 "pueIq [10UN0Y sjuewabuele VO ‘S%8H 10 92UBPING BIUBAPE — S| | | PUB SDDJ
'$]0J1U0D 8A0QE JO || MOJIEH 0} mmmEmv co_ESQom < 9B11U0D DUB "80uBINSUI pue Ajuwapul
"ABejeng suoneodunwwo) ' 10B.JU0D p ) ‘Aunaer Aed pig BuLIBAOD UOIONIISUOI/SHIOM
Buiuoissiwiwiod Jolew g a1e [e190s ‘AOUBHNSUOD ‘SBOINIBS
; ; - "o[eIoW JJelS piepuels ¥ Spoob 10} J0BIIUOD [9POW SBIIAISS plepurlS
‘preog JjuswaAoldw] SS83040 JusWwaleue\ A, 0)oe ‘alen) [e1008 R YleaH ynpy ‘IsniL s.uaipjiyn
iom sbueyo ainyn) | g— Jood ‘B8 SouewloLad it — ABoreng plomawel4 Buluoissiwwon palelbai|
sanfen 31v340 [euonesiuefio
0l/BUaIS U0 paseq asuodsal aAioeay u1 8sealoaQ JUBLISAOAUY/ UOIsadns S ——
> ! ol > I !
Juswabeue|y J01USS JO %oeT $9s59001d YD [EULIOS
ABajeng aaioppop BuisnoH
B S)npy ‘uawabeuew uoieindey
"Jeak jsed sy} Ul peonpel Useq seY | .g— 82In0ssy/ < o9hojdwd mmzw_“%m%;wmmo
JJBIS WnooJ JO 8Sh pue sajes Aoueoep }e1S/ 1essy JO ss0 | NRIENCIN —> (%0840 G [ou) mww,woh_g Em.EH_Eomm
ndui [ebe| | 4 ‘[9A8] ®3IMIBS "uoisinadns pue ||
U sseo0id Areudiosip HH SNSS| JONPUOTSI - 1« Je ssaualeme |, awuwesBoid Buiures; pue sueid S8H
L 3|  /Burenjoyoe] 'ss0001d QVd|
"sainpadoid [eba] y yoealq o 51y olberenS 665
lajsuel] ysu Jo uolenjens Soul{ /uoljoaasul K ‘uoljejosli d
: : C e ajes pue yjjes : :
seliuwepUl | €— 10 uonuanIBUl JAoL)jebe [ 19JEs pue ey ul Bunoe S pieog sinpy buipienBajes eoo)
Jay10 R [eba] 10} 8duRINSU| 10 aoo_mw: 9Jed 6 —» pue pleog diysisuled synpy ‘pieog s,.usipiiyn
BIJ0S se yans > Seloushe — ‘68 ‘Jojuow o) selousbe Jusnyisuod g 4g| O
n_ : Y ain|le} Jsuped qwbw diysuonejas buiobu; &
- 9njle} 9JIAISS —
6 %siy dlbsjeng 88s ’ d m
eis Aoy 1o} Buiures eipay | o uonuaye | 9|ljod ybIH ‘suonenbal ypm (SBH) ¥1
‘Bunsal oleusds g ueld 09 BIpaW pauleisng N soue||dwoo-uou ‘ebueyd ysiy do diog 883 suonoadsu| peisio
‘Bajeng suoneauNWWo) q S SJUSpIOUl WOJ} JUes)|
‘sbualiq _o___oc_jou 2 BIPSI\ > Bulbeuew ‘seinpsooid pio SUOSS3| S18PISU0D PIe0q YO "SMalnal
M , 60 sweyshs juswabeuew paseq JuapIoul pue [eusaUl ‘[enuue
(sabueyo 10 Y9B| J0 8jenbapeu| “Joul sainpad0id Jo smainal Jenfey
90InIes/AouBIole
wouj bunnsai "PUBWS ‘pieog
(S3H) 1 ¥sid do diog 0} sajeyd PueLlsp
.wwLSUQOOLQ 593&@ < ._OC_V all| u_.O mmo_ < | Ul asealoul _mco_uamoxm\@c__ Emrc®>o~_n_rc_ 0} Hodal PUE S[3A9)
"JJels 1o} seoljod yresH [euoirednddQ / Buuayns jusl) 1UOJJ 1B S|9AB) JjBIS MOT ’ wcwwm_m%cc%e@m“mww Lw %%_N%%
SYYUYINISULY SYIUIINPISUOY ‘sabueyd aainies / Aousioyig > UIWRIBO0I- UONRWIOSUR) |
10j S|0J1U0) jenjualod

sasne) [enua)od sasne?) 10} S|0Jju0)

(DY) JUBWIIWLIOD UOIIONPA. UOGJIBD SSalppe 0} [IBH (/| 3SiY [euonesad( sjelodio) yum paosejdal usaqg sey ysu sy
"MSIY 3SOTO ‘NOILVANININODIN

3In[eJ 39IAIaG a[1joid YBIH — 9 Sy JIBajens



naueg AmuejAp

‘b1 %siy [euoneiadQ a1eiodion 89S — sjuaplou| 81 Jo Aing pue SYHO 01 sesuodsey
(pasijeal s1su Ji pajeAoe aq 0}) sarouabunuo)

sjuawwo?) / ayepdn

¢ Op [[IM 9M MOH ¢Sl SIY) SSaIPPE 0} Op [|IM M JeyM

ABajens aai0pi0p BuisnoH g synpy ‘Juswaebeuew uoneinday “ieak jsed ayy Ul paonpal usaq Sey 4els Wnaoj Jo 8sn pue sajel Aoueoep

pieog synpy Buipsenbisjeg [eoo| pue pieog diysiauped synpy ‘pieog s,uaipjiy) -6-e ‘Jojuow o} saioushe Juanjisuod pue 4SH

"pIeog Juswanoidw| $$890.d Wawabeuely

“wom abueyd ainynd pue sanjea 31349 ‘indul [eba] yum ssaooid Areudiosip HH

J3JSUBJ} XSI JO UOIEN[BAS pUE ‘Saijuwapul Jayio ¥} [eba) 1o} sourInsy|

‘UB|d SUOIEBOIUNWILIOY) PUB SUOIBIIUNWIWIOD [eula)Xa/[eulaiul ‘Ueld Aousbunuos suonealunwwon
"0LIBUBOS UO paseq asuodsal aAoeal pue Bujuueld oeusds sisiy

jeis Aay 1oy Buluresy eipaw pue ABsyeng eipsyy ‘sbulaliq Jojjiounos 3 BIps

'sainpadoid Aiojnje)s pue sainpadoid [ebe

"Sjuswialinbal JIpne pue }onpuod Jo 8po?)

‘uoisiniadns pue sbunaaw || ‘(s08yd gyo Buipnjour) ssedoid Juswiinioay

“Jje1s 10} seldijod yieaH [euonednaoo pue ‘ewwelbold Buures; pue sueid SpH

'sse001d Qyd| pue Juswabeuew diysuonejal Buiobup

SJUSPIOUI WO} JuJea| SUOSSa)| SIaPISU0D PIeoq YY) pue Yo [Bwiod

"SMBIAB) POSB( JUBPIOUI PUB [RUIBIUI ‘|enuue Buipnjoul ‘sainpadoid Jo smalnal Jejnbey

‘spJeog Juswanoidw o) Lodai pue sjaAs| Bulyels pue aaIAIs o} puewap Jo Bulioyuow Apepenb Buiobup
‘b1 ysiy [euoneiedQ ajelodion pue ‘g pue ¢ Sysiy diberens 8ag

sl ssaippe 0} 99ejd ul Apealje sjoiuo)

JuspIou| 3)1j0id YUPIH - Ue|d uondy 9 ysiy dibajens

Buluonoe spaay / pauue|d sjo13uo)

£ay jou0)

gs0

J1aUMQ YSiy

ueloq auldylen cd (48] 4

:uoidweys sy | :Buney ysiy yobie] :Buney ysiy usaung :Ayuonid ajesodion

101



‘suofiesado pue sanjea _
Juswidojonap
»  [10uno) jo Buipuejsiepun BUI0BUO pUE SIUBAD
- pue ssauaieme P ‘Buures; Bupnjour ‘swwelfold
‘preoq ubisag ) 190WAIN 10 Yoe Juswidojars Jaquiay
‘Burpodal pue Sljsusq GUBIN J0 %9
Buioyuow ‘Bunesw senbas |« awuweiboid paonpai / 1961e)
— swweiboid uonewlojsuel | puiyaq Aeaijep swweibold
‘uonesiuefio Jo uonoalIp 'senfeA 31v3H0
0} pauBie 10U senfep 10 SSBUBAINOB)}D PaMBINGY
g 4— OOC@E\_O"_.\_OQ < "AOAINS JJE]S [enuuy
‘spJeog Jualianoidwi ‘ABo1e1S 92I0OM
*9]9A0 soueWwIopad [1Uno) [ouNoy psdNpay “(1/e1S Y1m SUOIiedIunWWoN
> . L 5 1einbay) ABeeng suoneaunwwo: N\l
sanpiold pue S[BIOoW JJels 1004 -fBoresg uowsbeuey sbuey
SUOISIA S,]19Uno) ‘soneA3Ly3y '
‘ABareng aa10ppuop 't Q d I
(14618 Ylm SUOIBOIUNWWOD 9y} spodans
JenBay) ABajeng suoneounwwo?) | P eyl :o_u_mm_:mm._o pJeog ubisa(
‘ABareng wewebeueyy abueyn o[eIoW Hels MO ay} ul ain}nd abueyo o "awwelbolg
Splemy 1340 % sonjeA 31340 > Juswabeurw Juswdojans dnoux) diysiepes ajelodion
€ 9A31yde 0} |le4 1004 awweibold Juawdojorsq Juswebeueyy
Abarens wawabeueyy abueyn

Buipodas | "PaIRIIUNWWIOD puUe Jspe|smeu 30 pue
pue JuswaBeuew 82ussqy 80Uasqge pasealou| pOOJSIOpUN Apeajo jou |—®| SN0} LeIS S90UBIeju00 1eBeuepy

A

\ 4

B|d SiuspIsay J0} S|ea(] Jale
LONOBIID PUE LOISIA Ueld Siuepisey Joj s[eaq Jeneg

sasne)
sasne) [enua)od 10} S|0J}U0D

sajuanbasuo) saouanbasuo)
10} S|0J3U0) [enualod

uonesiuebiQ ayj Jo ainyn) — 7 ysiy oIbajens



JBUMQ YSiY

'gSQ 0} 8je[eds]

(pasijeal s1ysu Ji pajeAoe aq 0}) sarouabunuo)

sjuawwo?) / ayepdn

¢ Op [[IM 9M MOH ¢YIS! SIY) SSaIPPE 0} Op [|IM M ey

Buiobuo pue syuaas ‘Buiures; Buipnjoul

‘awwelboid uswdojersq Jaqua|y pue swweiboid Juswdojaraq dnoir) diysiapes sjelodio) ‘swwelbold uawdojeasq Juswabeue|y

‘Buiodal pue Buuoyuow ‘Bunesu Jejnbal — swweifold uoieuwlojsuel |
"spJeog Juswanoidu|

*910A0 ouewIopad 1oUN0Y

Splemy 31vY34D B SenfeA 31v¥340

‘Buodal pue Juswebeuew souasqy

sen[eA 31340 JO SSAUBAINDBLE PaMBIASY

‘pieog ubiseq

Aoning Buyels [enuuy

*Ba1el1S 92100/

‘(121 Yum suoijediunwiwod Jejnbal) ABerens suonealunwuwio)
"Juswdojonap

ABajei1s aa10I0\\ pue ABajeng Juswaebeue)y abueyn
*Jo)8|SMaU 39 pue SWINIO} JJels ‘Saoualajuod Jabeue|y
Ue|d SJUapISaYy o} S[eaq Jeneg

sl ssaippe o} 99ejd ul Apealje sjoiuo)

uonesiuebiQ ay Jo ainjn) — Ue|d Uondy / sy dibajens

Buluonoe spaay / pauue|d sjo13uo)

*$104)u09 Bunsixg / aseld uj sj04U0)
£ay| jonuo)

gs0

J1aUMQ YSIy

Buyiym woy

:uoidweyn ysiy

Ae} o v

:Buney ysry jobie] :Buney ysiy usaung :Ayuonid ajesodion

103



6 siy oibereng seg

"SUOISSNISIP UOIUN 8pel L [ewlojul Jejnbay
80IM8g AloSIApY uoIsuad

selnpado.d sjurejdwod [ew.oy

9 (d4al) 8Inpadoid uoin|osay aindsiq [eussiu
80IIBS JO SUOIIPUOY pue Aed 10} BWIBYIS MOLIBH

A

uonoe [euisnpu

T

a|doad o} ABerens |¢—

piepue)g 8jdoad Ul $101S9AU|

Buizisumop Juswabeuepy

6 sy 2Bajeng 88g "uonendal (19UN0Y) 1004
fBayeng aoloptiom "aw Buoj e 1oj JuedRA SUONISOd
'S|ong| els

Kouabe Jo Buiuodal sejnbay

'sjana| Jyeis Aouabe / dway ybiH

T

uonoe [euisnpu

6 siy dibereng seg

80IM8g AloSIApY uoIsuad

sainpaooid sjuredwiod [ewio} ¥ 44ql)
801G JO SUONIPUOY) B ABd 10} BWSYIS

"J0j08s ognd  —»
pUE [10UN0Y) punoJe eipaw aAlebaN

FH/0OC Ueld
SUONBOIUNWILION

v

'S)ysuaq pue SlusWsjuUS
‘suoisuad ‘Aed uo ainssalg

*saBUBYO U0 UONB)NSU0D
pUB UONBIIUNWWOD [BNIU|

\4

A

awwelbold
awdojens( uswabeue)y
108l01d Juswabeue|y 8oussqy

A

"S[oA| BIUBSOE SSBUNOIS YBIH

A

ABarens swabeue|y sbueyn
L 1/0L0Z Ueld suolediunwiwo)
EINEl)

A

aouewIopad /aelow Jjeis Mo

A

(1ye1s Aouaby) 108l01d Buioinosay
‘diysuonejas pue Jaiddns Aouabe poor)

<« "SalnoIIp
uonus}al Juswyinioay

\ 4

"swwreibold Juswdojensq

‘Spesu dnoip diysiepes erelodion
Jelseawiou | swwesBoid juswdojanaq wewabeueyy
S80p jJuswidojensp sue|d Juswdojersq g BulusesT
pue Buiuies Buiuren avdi
‘awwelbold SgH

ERE T

A

saouanbasuo)
10} S]04}U0)

saouanbasuo)
|enusiod

® 8ARY J0U S0P [10UN0Y)

—> 100d pue sybnoiog soyo > "LpeeH [euolednoo
WOJ} YOBgPa8) JO 8sn

UBY) OljeJ JBIS/MIOM 8SIOM <

o

b pal
euonesiueblo wwowmw :MMM 1eloid Buioinosay
[euoljes| 1epIp [I] 1081U0D
> [enusiod Aq AjoaneBau pamain yum diysuoiejas
$$9201d U0I}0Bj8S BIUBWIINIOBY Ayrenb yBiIH
paulejurew 31v3dO
o J0u skanins . soAelul Bulag-(lam
> q o dIl eresodion
HEIS Ul juswsAo.aw| awuweiboid uoniubosal pue piemay
SELE] '403
|[E & 90I0}IOM BSIBAIP > Buimoyjo} mainal sanijenb3

yoed juswiinios)
10 Yed Aysianip pue Aljenb3

sashe) |eljuslod

sasne)
10} S|0J}U0T

1Je1s asiaAip/Aienb urelaljoeiy — g ysiy oibajens



(pasijeal s1)su Ji pajeAljae aq 0}) salouabuiuo)

louno) IuB|pRQ BYSIEA "[1oUn0) Weyn4 ¥ ylwsiswweH
wey|n4 ¥ ynwsiswweH :Aousby pea /Jauin] uop I 10Z sunp Yum 10e4U09 Jje1s Aouabe Jo uswainooid yuiop (yers Aouaby) 108l01d Buidinosey
Jauin] Y |ned
/Jauin] uop 1102 Jdy sanleniul Bulaqjiam Buionposyul
PBoUBWIWOD JON siabeuew o) uoddns Buipnjoul 198loid 41D MaN
luswidojonap
ur uejd mau H\NEH Aq pamainay lauin] uop 010z unp ue|d Buiaqiep [enuUe yseljal pue mainay "soAeniul Buieg-jlop
uona|dwiod Joj onsifeal ajow anleln Aajsa
S1 2102 JO 8)ep e pasIApe aAeY HSMD /Jauin] uop zLoz Ainp "UOIR}IPBIOI. [eWIO) UIRIGO dll 8relodion
ayle|n Ao|sa
'as9 Aq palepisuod Buiaq |jus suondo /Jauin] uop 1102 dUNp | YJomawel) piemal (10} e Juawaldwi 0} Joalold 41D MeN awweJboid uonuboday pue piemay

sjuawwo?) / ayepdn

¢l 0P [|IM am MOH

¢Sl SIY} SSaIpPE 0} Op |1 M JeYM

‘awweiboid Juswdojpra Juswabeue|y pue j0sloid wawabeuey\ aoussqy ‘ABejells wuswabeuepy abuey) ‘| 1/010g UBld SUOBIIUNWWOD
‘S|ong) Jeis Aousbe Jjo Buipodas pue sdnoib ABajels aoloppom ‘ABerens aoopuop

‘awweiboid uswdojprsg dnolr) diysiepes sielodio) pue swwelbold juswdojprsq uswabeuey
-awwelbold SH pue yiesH [euonednddQ wolj ¥oeqpas) o asn
‘diysuonejal R Jaiddns Aousbe poob pue ||| 10eIu0) Yum diysuonejas Aurenb ybiH

*SUOISSNOSIP UOIUN 8pe.] [Bwlioul sejnbay

'sue|d wawdojeasg ¥ buiutes ‘Buiuren qydi

"ejep Aonins yjeis pue 31340
“woed Juswyinioal jo ued Ausianip pue Ayjenb3
sl ssaippe 0} 99ejd ul Apealje sjoiuo)

1Je1s asIaAIp/Ajijenb urelaijoeiy — uejd uonady g ysiy Jibojens

Buluonoe spaay / pauue|d sjo13uo)

£ay| jonuo)

gs0

J1aUMQ YSIy

Buyiym woy

:uoidweyn ysiy

(o) €a

:Buney ysry jobie]

:Buney ysiy usaung

€a v

:Ayuonid ajesodion

05

1



‘Bulpuey pue uonuse eipaw 0} |0o0jo.d

‘uoleindal uo 1oedwi g suoisioap

[ewlo} g yoeoidde ue ssibe g dojarsp "SIND JOA0 | .b_M:%m:m__oo aANIsuas Ajjeol _Mm%c_ﬂ_mmw %m_%m %h Aw_..W,__%H
01 uaweBeuew Jojuss g siaqWa ‘030 | 4 Ayoignd obeuew o} k4 | uo joedull _ ; i
‘Jopea] yym abebus 0} SUONEOINWLOY Hod e SUOISIOBP JO  (—| 1O HEIS [1UNOD SSIADE O} SUOKEIIUNWLIOY

5o joBpng 10} Aberens ssaid — | AyAIjSuas [e1o0s - SUOISI0ap anfsuas Ajreanjod/Ajreloos jo
/ leomiod Jo yoe] a/eMB BpBW 8g 0} §S0 3 SUOIROIUNWWIOYN
'sdnoib Jasjun|oA pue (uowsaBeueyy
Aunwwod yym sdiysieuped | € "siapjoyoxels Aay pue < > 1x8juod [eoljod > [eonijod) Z1 YsiY [euoneladQ ereiodio)) seg
pue uosiel| BuiobuQ sdiyssaupied yum aousnjul jo YoeT - : :
> Juspiou| /einjre} 8dinies ajiyoid ybiH P 9ysiy olberelg 99g
*sdnouf JasjunjoA pue Aunwwiod ‘ diysiepes| |
yum sdiysieupred pue uosiel| Buiobup Aunwwoo jo yoe |
SSO| 01 %siy [euoneladQ ajelodio) 89S
uonewlojul "sjuswebuele 01|
/eled
‘pun; seniesey | ‘Buipuny jenuajod jo sso <
HO1 99HIWWOY) SPIEPURLS PEMBINDY
"uoIsayod ‘sBunesw ssIWLI0) spiepuels Jejnfisy
_ Rening 8y jo Aieno .| [onsjioes [P sieyo je1yo g siaqIsL Jolusas 1o} Bulurel} epajy
S2INY MOUBH PUB SNSUB) — S}oaUsIoey | | sjoedwi oydesBowsq [€—1 10 0T
skenins 801AI8S JoWOISNY) B Juspisey ©
Buipueyp O
uonuane eipsw 0} |02010.d [ewuo} @ yoeoidde Y
supa|ing Hd PoIe |y | oaiBe g dojorsp 0} Juswabeuew JoIas 1§ SISQUIS
[eUIBIUI % SIB1IBISMaU ‘Swinio} Auunwwod Jejnfsy |I9uno) uipioodun ‘03 ‘1epea yum abeBus o} suoleaIUNWWOY
aAoadsiad 1oedw| Jawoisno — pledalods suoleja! 0} wmmEmn_
peoueleg ajelodio) pue ABejeng uoneynsuo) | fyunwwod sood | -
'SpJepUElS 9018 JswoisnY djesodiod [~ [ uonoeysiessip |~ uonuaye ssaid paurglsng — Abejens suogeouNWLOY
(01/22 YaL) “éésovori) uoneinday® [enuuy Jawojsng
“UOIJONPU| SISqUIBJ
Fboreng SUONEONII0D R -ssaud N pue ue|d |\ ul Buipuey sseud / mmsboooﬂgﬂmmﬁ
seje|dwa) @ sauljepinf Buipueig |4 PueJq [10UN0 0 ebEwe] 1« 7| Butpueysiy Buluses|-e % Bulures; Jeak-ul juswidojera( Joquiapy
"UB|d ||\ Ul sainpadoid eipay — “abeyoB4 UORINPU]|
.n\_Aom wcw:mo_%geoo <+ uonusye elpsw pauleisng > o .vmm — s1aquiapy perepdn B 19npuoy) JO 8POY SJaqUISH
HEIS /19X 10} DUIUEA} BIDSI HHesT 'dDg suonesunwwo pue Aaljod Buimojgapsiym
mwo:mz—umw:oo soshe n
saouanbasuoy ———y oo % sasne)
! fjuay
10§ S|0J}UOY) el d 10} sjonuo0)

uonenday [1oUNo0Y) 0} abeweq - 6 ysiy JIbaje.IS



(pasijeas s1 ysu JI pajeAllde aq 0}) salouabunuo?

cH10e [louno) sy} ssoloe pequig
‘pieog
Juswiarosduwl | 10g AON 0} uodai pue yJewyousaq Uopuo
1surebe sjurejdwod 0} sasuodsal s [1ouno) sy jo Aoenbape
0102 AON Aynuap! 0} | rewyousg UOPUOT YIM siewyouag
‘MOLIEH SS90y
8PISINO |I0UNOY) 8Y} Ul SBBIR 9SO} SSOIJB SPIBPUBLS
Jaung joien 0102 AON 90IMIBS JBWOISNI JO JUBWIBABIYIE JONUOW pue 8a1by SpJepuBlS 82IABS Jawoisny
Buiuresy uononpul pue AJundas uoilewloul
pue ‘eauepinf pue saidljod uonewIOUI AV
10 1Ins mau e Jo Juswidojersp ay sepnjou | ojjayoeuo Auo 2102 ‘yoeoidde pabejs pasibe ul swweibold yiom uswsjdw] | pue | }/010g dwweibold Yo luswabeueyy uoiew.iop|
sInd 186pnq :81 SJUBPISI YIM/O} 81edIUNWWOI
100n2JB\ UBnsU) | 0102 98Q Ajaanoeoid o) ABsielis dojaasp 0} suoiedsIuNWIWOY 'sIno 186pnq Jo} ABsleas sseid
‘JuswaJinbai "SuoISIoap aAllsuas Ajeanijod
100n2Jep\ UensuD | 010z 98Q BuioBuo SIy} JO JEIS [19UN0Y) BSIAPE 0} SUOIEdIUNWWOY | / Aj[BID0S JO Bleme apew aq 0} §S0 PUB SUOIBDIUNWILIOD
‘Bulipuey
pue uolualie eIpaW 0} |090}0.d [BuI0} pue yoeoidde
‘Juswabeuew ue aa1be pue dojeasp 0} Juswabeuew Joluss pue
100n2JB\ UensuD | 0102 98Q 10JUS pue Sisquisl ‘03D ‘JopeaT YIm uoieynsuo) | siequisly ‘030 ‘JepesT yim abebus 0} suoleauNwWo)

sjuawwo?) / ayepdn

Juaym Ag

& 0P [|Im @M MOH

¢YISU SIY) SSaIPPE 0} Op [|IM M JeyM

"90U8J8JaY JO W8 Iy} pamalal pue sbuliesw aajiwwon spiepuels Jejnbey

"uononpu| siaquisy Ui seinpadoid eipsw g Bulpuey ssaid pue ueld || Ul Sainpadold eipay
-afeyoed UoioNpu| sisquisy paiepdn pue punj sanlesay

(¢¢) 4qoea] UoneINday [enuuy pue ‘skanins 89IAIBS JBWOISNI PUB JUBPISSY

(annoadsiad 10edw| Jawoisno) pJeaslods paoueleg sieiodio)

'sdnoJB Jasjunjoa pue Ayunwiwod yum sdiysiauped pue uosiel Buiobuo pue spiepuels 821M8S Jawoisny 81eiodion

"SUIJ9|INg [BUIBIUI ¥ SIBNBISMBU ‘SwinJo} Aunwwod Jejnfial pue ‘ssjny moleH pue snsua) — sjaaysioe ‘sejejdwa) @ saulapinb buipue.g

1je1s Aay pue SI8010 JaIyo ‘siaquis Joluas Joj} Buiures) eipsw pue ABsjess uoneynsuoy ‘ABsieng SuoneIuNWWOoD
a|npouw Buiuses|-e pue Buiures) seak-ur - JuswidojeAs( JaqIB PUB 1oNpUOY JO 8p07 S Jaquisly ‘Aaljod Buimoigsjisiym

"sjuswabuelle O]

Ue|d Anunuoy sseuisng Wes | SUoIedluNWWo))

:)sU ssaippe 0} ade|d ul Apealje sjonuo)

uonejnday [1ouno) 0} ebewieq — uejd Uondy 6 ysiy d1bojens

Buluonoe spaay / pauueld sjo13uo)

Aoy jo1u09

gsd

JBUMQ YSIY

uead ybnH 23

:uoidweys ysiy | :Buney ysiy jabie)

[40) 14

:Buney ysiy juasiny

:fyuond ajesodion

07

1



JBumQ %siy

gS0 0} 6je[eos] |

108



A

awweibo.id
uonewJojsuel]
S,]1ouno)

3} JaAl[3p 0}
Ayoedes pajwi

"sBulAes 1500
sjuspisay 1o} sjeaq Jeneg wuey-Huo| anaiyoe o} |re4
'Sord .
*sBuljeLIq UOIUN Bp.J} [BULO| abusjieyo
"SLUNIO} UOIUN SP&lL [eBs| pue uonoe [euIsnpu|
"ADBJEJIS SUOIEDIUNWWOY)
"SJUBPISA) YJIM LUOBDIUNWWIOD :
poob arey|ioe} 01 $8ss8201d a1enbape obewep
- kBajeng juswebebug Ayunwwor) |« uolejndeu / uonoejsies
‘6 %Sy oIbejeng 993 JBWo}snd paonpay
feq femy gs9
sjuapisay Jo} s|eaq Jeneg
gouewlIoed gS0
SO\ 8 93D ‘dSH 68 ‘sdiysieuped "80IMISS JO
10 8Bua|ieyo pue yoddnspusweaiby  |.g—| £
‘spieog Juswanoiduwy Aspeng MBAIISP JuslolyBul / paonpey
pJeog uoljewlojsuel] gS0
'$s800.d Juswabeuew souBWIOLAd oW

‘panjoAul siabeurw Jo Jaquinu JapIpL
‘pleog ubisaq

Jou sauo}sajiw osloid Aoy

saouanbasuoy
10} S|0JJU0)

saouanbasuo)
[enusjod

A

fyoeded g Ajigedeo
- $92In0sa1 Bulyes Jo yoe

\4

‘|apow poddns syenbapeu

—»>

‘posibe
ended/OMd Yyim [epow poddng

"Juswabeuew Jauonnoeld dain
Joyorl |

pue 8ouBUIBAOD —> awwelibold pue pieog UonewIojsuel] gS9
Joefoid pue "IN Jo ped JusweBeuew sbuey)
awweiboid 100d "IYj00} |\ d JO 8Sn 8A1j08)8 pue ONd
[eyae)

ool | |

a|dninw pue (Ayiqedes —» - 3500010

| Ayoedeo) $80inosal Jo 3oe

Buiuueld aoinas pue j1ebpng pajelbaiu)

\ 4

SN0 Jeak ul pue
Butpuny peywi| / paonpay

pJeog uoljewlojsuel] S0
‘Butpuny vy 8 Buipuny [eyded

pesiBe Jebpng 1 1/0102

sashe) |eljuslod

sasne) 10} S|04ju0)

awlweibolg uonjewojsuel] oy} buioinosay — O} ON Ysiy oIbojens

109



gS0

'suondo Buipuny sjeuls)je syeblisanu] ,

‘uonejuswaldwi pue JuswdojaAsp 8SeI SSBUISNG 0} [IfOBg pepund ,

"1eb.e) yoea 0} syebie) Buines p,elel-oid 81eI0||Y

(pesifeal sI ysl JI pajeAlOR 8q 0}) salousbuluod)

Jauin] uop 0102 Jaquiade( aWsydS 89ueIaNaS Arejunjop
102

ulayal] Malpuy 2102 |udy UBP SB0USWIWOD UoheusWa|dw| 108l01d Buyop 8|qixal4 B 9|IqoN

‘s109[04d

0L02/0}/9 suoldweyn ‘suoidwey?) ysiy eyelojoaliqg awweiboid uolewlosuel | Jiays jo Buioinosal

Bunesw gg9 1e pesibie uondy | ysiy BlA s1010811Qq 81e10dio) 0102 4890100 pu3 8y} asIApe 0} JaBeuBp\ YSIY | BYl punoie SySU 8y} 198]j81 0} SIisiBal ysu 81el010aI[
"SOAI08(q0 UB|d € JBBA

0L02/01/9 d.L JO JusWwa8IyOe By Joedwl [|iM ey uonesiueblo

Bunesw g9 1e pas.be uondy as9 1102 Aenuep (s)xsu BuiBiewe 1o} Buluueds uoziioH Jo adeys ainn; ssnasip 0} Aeq Aemy gsH
‘sjoued abuaj[eyo pue smairsl Jobpng

L L0Z [Udy [enuue sapnjoul pue 0.0z Aine suels Z1/110g 1o} ssaooud Buiuueld soineg

SsjusWWon / ayepdn

£11 0P [[1M M MOH

¢(pauueld pue Aemsspun

S|0JJU0D) XSl SIY} SSBIPPE O} Op [[IM BM 8S[8 JRYM

"SOrQ pue sbuialig uolun apeJ} [eulIOjul ‘SWNIO} UOIUM dpelL
‘gleldoidde alaym ‘syjuswssasse joedwi Ayienbs jonpuon

'SHIN B HID ‘dSH Bre ‘sdiysisuped Jo abusjeys pue poddnsjuswaaiby
"SUOIUN g JJBIS ‘SJUBPISAI YJIM UolBIIUNWIWOD pooh ajeyjioe} 0} 8oejd ul sassad0id pue ABsjelis uswabebus Ayunwiwon
‘sbuneaw pJeog juswanoidw| pue souewIONad gS) Alelenb pue ‘preog uonewlojsuel| gS) ‘preog ubisag

sse201d Juswabeuew souewiopad pue sjaued abusjieyo / mairal 186pnq [enuue ‘pasibe 19bpng | 1/0102

'SQld Buidojanep ur woddns sapnjoul - elden)/OMd Yim [opow poddns pesiby
"PaAjoAUl SJaBrurw JO Jaquinu Japipn pue Aloeded o} uonique Bulydlepy

‘N d Jo Led si juswabeuew abueyd Bulnsus pue 13|00} \d JO 8Sh BAI08YT

"SjuspIsaYy 10} sjea( Janeg

:)sU ssaippe 0} ade|d ul Apealje sjonuo)

Buluonoe spaay / pauue|d sjo3uo)

Aoy jo1u09

gsd

1BUMO YSIY

Buiym woy

:uoidwieys ysiy

¢d

:Buney ysiy yabue

[40) 14

:fjuond ajesodion

:Buney ysiy juaiiny

U] UOROY 0] "ON Sy JIBIEnS

10

1



| abed

(01 ¥s1y d16ajeng 2as
- 0L0Z/01/9) awweiboid uonewsoysuel] [19unod ay} Buiounosal Joy Ayoeded paywi | sty

(0102/2/51) SS81601d 30 B3E1 YYD UTEIUIRW O} [1e4 P YSIY RIS SRR B B0 5

‘g|doad ajqesau|nA 1oj poddns anoudw| g

('01L02/L/S1 - L YOO unm pabiaw) sasiaias 1oy Bujuueld piemioyjaining Juaidynsuj ¢ ysiy

(0L02/2/L1) 3uswabebus @ uone}nsuoy gl ysiy "S}991)$ Jajes pue Jsues|o JaAleg |

(0L02Z/2/51) ssaiboud jo ajes yyo ulejuiew o} jied :p Ysiy :saiuold djesodiod

(0L0Z/2/S1 - L HOD yHm pabiaw) sad1AI8s 10y Buluueld premioyaining Juaidynsu] :¢ 3siy

SYSI¥ @3Iso0T19
luouea | youcs S I (HE) JUsWHWWOD UoPINPaI UCQIED SSAIPPE 0} |Iled /|
saoedunio | /soedun / 1oedul o\_.ﬂw_n__n“._z (Nd/a9) "sseiboud jo ajea pajsyO pue HDI Ulejulew o} [Ie4 9|
T T eusen g v (aw) Jeah-u; 306pnq uo JaA19p O} 1B G
@ez-0) (gn) waysAs yuswabeuew Ayajes pue yjeay ‘jeuonednaso ajenbapeu; |
a|qissodu)
sowy (dH) yuswabeuew [eonijod aanodayau| zi1
d (Nd) Aleanoaye bunesado ale saoejiajul pajejal dy3 9insua 0} |leq L]
(%6-€)
mor »wmw, (gn) A3unoas uoneuuoju] / eyep ajyenbapeuj g
E (Nd) @91A18s @oueUdUIEW 9SUOdSal dAI}03Yd JOAIIBP O} [led 6
(%vz-oL)
o (Nd) s1ob.1e) sawoy jJuadap aAalyoe 0} ainjieqd g
a (g) Buruueld Aousbiawa ajenbapeu; 2
Em“.wm.mm_mm (gIN) 3uaiIsal ou A1ano9dal Ja)sesip/AlNunuod ssauisng 9
o) (dH) uoisioap 19uno) jo abuajeys |ebaj |[nyssadang G
(08-15) (gn) sdiysisuyed pue [19uno) uiyym juapioul uondniiod pue pneldj sofey g
uybIH
a
08<) 1 10Z UdJeN 6 :8jeg MIINSY 9SO IXeN
uBIH a_o<> 110z Aeniga- g :81eq mainey HSYHD IXaN
V/N :gS0 Aq pamainay
dOOHITIMIT

V/N 19840 Aq pamainay
010 J9QUISAON ¥ :UOISIA

¢ Xipuaddy 19)s169Yy ysiy |euoneiradQ ajesodion

111



Z abed

(010zZ 22Q) 'sON
dSH 8y} 0} Buipodal [eloueuly
1ejnba. jo Aouasedsuel) panosdw] ,

‘(010 22Q) sjuelb

1O auo ‘||lews Jo} awwelboid
sjuelb paddeo sjeledss

9 S921AI8S AdY Jo BuluoIssIWWOoD

‘ssa004d sjuelb vy

JO M3IASI UO SJ0}08S AJunwiwoo

%9 AlejunjoA yum uoneynsuod ,
(o102

293(]) "way epusbe Buipuels - SO
dSH Aq sjuswabueule Buiniodal
% Puloyuow aouewlopad paseq
29ouapIAe Jusws|dwi 1 dojaaa(
(010z 22Q)

‘(WS 40 Wud} [|n} J0}) SjUunoooe
|enuue pajpne jo uoisinoid

pue ‘sajuow juadsun jo uinjyal g
sajuow juelb Aq paseyoind sjesse
Jo diysiaumo uo AjJeo ‘pnely

10 JUBAS BU} Ul US) e} 8q 0} Uoljoe
‘pneyy Joy ayjadde ysu s, [1oUnNoD
3y} 9pnjoul 0} SY1S dSH =«

(z1o2)

‘Angedes yejs g pseog Buipnjoul
‘yoafoud Janijep o} Ayjigedes

3 Aj1oedes Jo aouspins uleyqo

0} ssao0.d ujdde juelb vy .
(Z1/1102) uononpu| siaquia|y pue

suoloy Jaypny

‘pneuy Jauped pabaje
ojul DM Ag uonebiisaaul Juspuadapul
"0}8 ‘90l|0d ueyjodoay

‘fouaby sleplog MN ‘dAa Buipnjoul
‘siauped ypm 1 4D Aq saseo julol

uo Buiyiom aso[o pue uosiel| BuiobuQ
‘uononpu| (syesodiod) sispels

M3 - Buluiely sssuaieme pneld ,
"sJouped |e[oIawwod pue [eusiul

ypm Buispdom julol pue uosiel BuiobuQ ,
‘sBuieaw \NYvO Apapend .,

‘wia)sAs aoueUIBNOS) 3)el0dio))
‘EIpPAW |BUOI}EU/|E0)|

(Juen3) sty

uosdwoy] slabeuely ul ssausieme pnel , ul suoindasold |nyssa09ns Jo Aydland
Bull ‘(L0102 ‘Ue|d Jipny [eulsiu]
‘(Jequuy) / uosxig €D - sdijjiyd unsnr) jooy Buiuies| ‘uonebisanul pnedy
€0 o Bunel ysu e yym uesng -9 ssaualeme pneuj dojanaq ., aAjoeoud jo swuwesboid [enuue | 40 ‘sdiysiauped
paaibe 5SHO - 0102/01/92 / sdijiiud (0L/g/LE - Olldyoeuoy ‘(14N) @Aijeniu| pnesd [euoleN Pue [I5unog ayj uiym
‘Jobeuely 92IAI8S 4yD| Nauleg ugsne Auo]) Ajundss || - swwesbold ‘Abajens uondniio) juapioul uondniiod
Ag pajepdn - 0L02Z/0L/LL| Amuelhin ZLL10z 23|/ piep pined Juswabeuey uonewlou , €0 €2 18 Aollod pne.4-juy ajelodio) . pue pney Jofem; ||V | ¢
(
(syeq@ uonejuswa|dw) ‘joul) 1 |sjonuos 2]
Jaum aje [Bunex Jaum eueno| Joye) (aAnoa. ue aoe|d uj) .w. %
sjusWIWo) 0 1ed ysry 0 jse | 49uend Bo943 p Id Ul uonduoasaq ysiy =« | x
ysiy sty jobae |ojuo) (pauueld 10 Aemiapun) sjoqjuon S|z
jobie) Buney| siyL i )
sjoJjuo)n FA B
Asiy | Buney S

IS

112



¢ abed

‘(eyeridosdde asaym)

2/61 10V JUSWUIBA0N) |e00T 8y} JO
suoisinoid ayy Jepun ajebisanul ,
"uoisioap

10} BAIIND3XT JaIYD Jo/pue adueul
10 J0j0al1q 8jelodio) ‘Ysiy B Hpny
J0joalI( [BUOISIAI] O} 8)e[eds] ,

salousbunuod

(L1oz

Yol - uinjoD epjasiiy/sdijiiud
uisnr) ‘sassaooud/saioljod
J1oUNoY Ul ssjoydoo) pue
$9101j0d WI0Jal aiBj|oM pue pnel}
Jjouaq o} sabueys juawianob
|lesua) jo yedw Ayuap]
(o102

AON) ‘dnous) diysiepea Auiniog
9 M3IAIBAQ 0} Jodal - Buipodal
% Buliojuow ssuewsopad

paseq SoUapIAS pue 1S
Buipnjoul ‘sjuelb Jayjo pue vy Jo}
uaye) aq 0} yoeoudde jusjsisuo) ,
(BuiobuQ) -syeudoidde

se siabeuel\ a2INBS 4y Woly
Jybnos a21Ape pue sjuswalinbal
Buipodal % Buuoyuow
souewsopad uo yiom diysisuped
wJojul 0y B 92IMBS VY|

(010Z 22Q) "@91ueIb € S| Jaquiaw
9N dSH alaym ‘B9 ‘Jsalajul

1O S}oI13u02 Joy sjodojoud Ajue|D
(o102

293(]) p,bas se syoayd Juspuadapul
1onpuod ¥ ‘waishs aoueuly
a9juelb ay} wouy spodal [eloueuly
10 Auiinuos 1 Aianiap josfoid
‘Buiojuow souewlopad Jejnbal
ul 8]0J 8pnjoul 0} 4o SOIN dSH «

"swiie|o Jus|npnel

"yseo

Buipnjoul ‘sjesse Jo Yoyl
‘abewep uolejnday
"$SO| |elouBUl

"elpa|\ anlebaN

(s)sousnbasuo)

‘suonjeoldde g swiejo
‘uoljejuswnoop asje
“Jomawely

|0Jju09 [eulsjul ajenbapeu)
‘Ajinoas ejep Jo yoe
‘uonyisod jJo asnqy

(s)asnen

SjusWIWO)

1BUMO
ASiy

ajeq
ysty jobue)

Buney
Asiy
jobae )

I8UMQ
jo13uo)

(8yeq uonejusws|dw) ‘|auj)

(pauueld 10 Aemuapun)
s|onuo9

auend
jseT

Buney
ASHy

(
S|043U09
Jo)e)
Jauend
siyL
Buney
ASIM

(2And23yy3 pue ade|d uj)
s|joJjuod

uonduoasaq ysiy

"ON 2AB23[q0

"ON YSIy

113



y abed

‘S

)siy |euoieladQ ajesodio)
ajebijiw o} (pauueld

10 Aemuapun) s|oJjuod
|euonippe Aue jo Jabeuely

(ueuloq usydayg/

umeH pseyary) (90) £¥S1
OHM3 [0102] 1Punod A§D speen
A Jal||adiuoly ‘68 ‘sbBuipuly s,unod
2y} Joajy21 souepinb/sainpasoid
juswainooud ainsug ,

(uewsoq

uaydsj}g) ‘(pauapoys 10 aAljO8yaUI
10e1}U09 B Buliejoap Jo sjoaye ay)
aujwIspuUN 0} SY38s SIy]) JapIo
Aewnd ay} ypm jusysisuodul

JOU 3JE YDIYM ‘SSaUBAI0ayaUI

10 uoljele|oap e yum bBuiiesp
suoisinoid [enjoeljuod Buisaibe
-a1d jo uondo ajeblysanul ,
‘(spouad |[spuels

PaJeIo0SSE Y)IM 90UBAISSO
2JNSUS 0} SPJEME J08lIp IO} 821}0U
Aouaiedsuel) Auejun|on e ysiignd
(0102 22 -unmeH preyory

1 KIayoIA ualeyy) sjsoo/sabewep
Bunynsas pue abusjeyo

|eba) |nyssao9ons |eljusjod

1o} 8)enbaspe ale syjuswabuele
QoueInsul Jaydym Ayuspy
(ziioz

- unmeH pseyory) |spo bunesado
19b1e] juswainoolid dojaaaq .
(zirioz

- uimeH pieyory) Absjens
juswebeuel joesuo) dojpnsq
(Z1/1102 - unmeH pseyary)
ABajen)s Juswalinoold dojaaaq

suoloy Jaypn

JSiY Wlisiu| sy} ssinpe T
0} ‘9)el0}08J1J SOUBUISA0S) (0L0Z AON|S
%8 [e6a ‘uoidweyD ysiy st - Jiead YBnH) suoisiosp jouiqeD |3
siy} a1ebijiw o} payuswa|dwi ueloQ Bulpuey uo gSD Yim uoissnasiq . W
aq p|N0d Suoljo. |euolIppE uaydals ‘(Buiobuo m,.
Jayeym pausnb inqg ‘(pay)| neueg / umeH - Head ybnp) sbusjjeyo |ebej Joy|Z
29 jo Buijes ¥su ayy yum| AmuejAp / pJeyory a)3adde ysu uo dnous) diysispesn
paaibe HSHO - 0102/01/92[Head ybnH €1/12102 23 |/ Vead ybnH| 8y} ypm suoissnosip panURUOY , 4]
(8yeq uonejusws|dw) ‘|auj) 1
JaumQ ajeq [Buney aumQ PHEND
sjusWIWo) ysiy jse]
ysiy sty jobae |ojuo) (pauueld 10 Aemiapun)
jobie) Buney
sjoJjuo)n S

sjo4puod
Joye)
Jauend
siyL
Buney

IS

‘Paysiiqe}ss

pJeog juswainooid oibajens

‘Heys

e jo Buiuiesy pue ayepdn [enuiuo) ,
‘plemioy Buiob 5SHO

ay} Aq sabus|jeyo jueoiiubis jusosal
woJ} Juses| suossa) /sisAjeue [ans| YbiH .,
‘suoIsioap ojul ndui |eba)

pue asueusanob punose 579 pue dnol
diysiapeaT ay} ypm yiom BuiobuQ
‘Buryew

uois|oap o} jndui [ebs| panoidw ,
‘(921n188 dnjeloowa Ag papiroid)
Buryew uoisioap uo swes) Juswabeuew
Q)elojoallq Joy suoissas Buuies)
'suolssas Bulyalg aAnoax3 AJYJUop
"dS0 Jo Hed JeoiO BulIoNuol
‘Bujew uoisioap pue sjuswalinbal
|lebs| uo uoissas e sapnjoul

uolonpu| siabeuey sjesodion ,
‘awwesbold

juswdojana juswabeuep ,

"'SMaIAa] 9)I

dnoug saijienb3 ajelodio) ,

‘sdnoub j08foid Jolew o} ndul |ebaT ,

‘ssauaieme pue Buiuiely
Hels/Iaquis| Jo oeT
‘uoloe

|eba) Joj ayjadde pue
sasuodal |eba)| a|qe|iene jo
ssaualeme Jaljddns Jsjeals
'ssauisnq sJaiddns
uo oedwy Jabie| ul Buynsal
S)JoMaWely/S}oeljuod
1abue| Buimoje ‘s|iounod
|1e20| Aq Juswainooid
9A1JeIOqE||0D pasealou|
‘sJaliddns Aq abus|ieyo
|eb9) Jo sSaUAIDaYS By}
paseaJoul g0z uolenbey
sjoeJjuo) odlqnd

's9|nJ N3 Jo sayoeaiq

10} SPNOD HN ul uonoe |ebs|
aye) 0} sialiddns 1oy ybu
uolje|siba| Juswalinoold N3
‘Jouige) Aq suoisioap
SNOIJUS}U0D Ajjenuajod
'S9SED S8} |oUl ‘SaWOo2)N0
HNo9 Jo Ajulepasun
"S90UBISWNIID

ased Jo Buipuejsispunsiw
|oul ‘@o1Ape

|ealuyos} % |ebs| Jood

‘uoisioap
119Uno9 e jo abuajjeyo

(s)esnen

(Juen3) xsiy

"spodal Jaquiay jo soueles|o [eba , |ebaj [njssadong wls
o
(=2
% |2
(9A1393y43 pue ase|d uj) uopdiiaseq ysi alz
s|osuo) slz
=|°
(]

114



G abed

‘sSauaAjoayaul

JO Uojjele|o8p B 0} uolippe

ul ‘psuspoys

S| JoBJJU0D By} alaym Ajdde
suoisinoid ay} Jeyy ysiqelss -
‘swa} pasibe-aid ayy

0} Bunejal Juswaalbesip Jo Jusns
9y} Ul pamoj|o4 3¢ 0} sainpasold
uolnjosal andsip ysijqesss -
'J0BIUOD By}

Japun pajessusb aney asimiayjo
Aew Jaiiddns ayj jey; sbuiuies
ainjny Buipnjour ‘Joy Ayjiqel|
9pN|oXa 0} SaYSIM |IoUN0Y 3y}
Jeyy ssoj Jo sadAy sy} ypm [eap -
$10}0BJU0D

ay} 0} uonnysal Jo uonesuadwod
Aed o3 Ayijiqey| s,j1ounog auy
(uone|nojed Jo) anjeA Aq Jwi| ‘sajni
awainooid sy} yum aoueldwod
10 Auelsem Aue BuiAIB Jnoyim -
‘sjasse Jo Jajsuel} ay} o} bunejal
asoy} Buipnjoul ‘ssauaAljoayaul
10 UOI}EJE[Dap B JO JUSAS 3y}

ul Aldde (3oeJyuoo ayj ul pajieop)
uoljeujwia} Jo saouanbasuod

SU} JO YdIym ysijqesss -

(uewuloq

uayda}g) :Ajleonyoads ‘pasodwil
S| uoije|siBa| YN Japun saipawal
1By} JUsAS 8y} Ul 3su 9)edo|e
AjJes|o swis) |enjoeljuod ainsug ,

suoljoy Jsypng

SjusWIWO)

umQ
ASIY

ajeq
ysty jobiey

Buney
ySiy
jobae )

JBUMO
jo13uo)

(syeq uonejuswaldwi ‘jou)

(pauueld 10 Aemuapun)
sjonuo)

ajenpd
1seq

Buney
NEN|

sjo4puod
Joye)
Jauend
siyL
Buney

IS

's9|nJ Juswainoold yoealq
sao130e.d Juswainooid
pasi|esjuao-uoN
‘abpajmouy/asipadxa
1sijeroads jo yoe
"Juswabeuew

1o9foud (Juswainoold) Jood
‘suoisIoep

Jolew jo mainal [eldipnp
's}s090 Buippiq jo JuswAed
Buipuewsap siappiq
|njsS829NSUN @ S8sSaUISNg
uo salnssald o|Wouoo]

(s)esnen

(3Ap2ay3 pue agejd uj)
s|o13uo0d

uonduosaq ysiy

"ON 2AB23[q0

"ON Jsty

115



9 abed

's$900.d JO malAal [eRIpNf
‘puny sanIesal asl|in ,
‘Aessaoau se Jainsul abebug ,

sajousbunuod

sjuswwo)

1BUMO
ASiy

ajeq
ysty jobue)

Buney
Asy
jobae )

JBUMO
|o43u09

(8yeq uonejusws|dw) ‘|auj)

(pauueld 10 Aemuapun)
sjonuo)

ayend
jseT

Buney
Ay

sjo4puod
Joye)
Jauend
siyL
Buney

IS

‘anjea

Jajaqg Xa8s 0} |} saljiAloe
juawainooud ainjng
EERIYEN

Buippe anjeA pue aAiloaye
1500 JanIjop 0} Ajjigeu|
‘safewep ‘}oeJjU0D
Buljj@oueo/Buiuspoys
J9pJo ‘sauly

I abus|eyo [ebs| |nyssedong
"SSOUAAIJOYBUI JOBIJUOD
10} swieo / uonoe |ebs)
uajealyy/pess o} sAluSoUl
Jaiiddns pasealou|
‘sjosfoid/suoisiosp o} Aejeqg
‘abewep uoieyndal

pue eipaw aAebaN
‘Sauly/s}so9 [eba

(s)sousnbasuo)

(aAnoay3 pue ade|d uy)
s|joJjuo)

uonduoasaq ysiy

"ON 2AB23[q0

"ON Jsty

116



) abed

“(Joquiy) zd

10 Buiel ysi jJualind ay} yum
peaibe 5SYO - 0102/01/92
BN

99IAI8G Ssalouabuiuo) |IAID
Aq pajepdn - 0L0Z/0L/EL

Neueg
Amue

01-320

€d

Jan0ID) uey|
/ PIEM pinEQ

‘a)is AJanooal pienbajes asijin
‘sue|d
AjInunuoo ssauisng juswa|dwy

salousbunuod

(0102 1°0) ‘sjuswabueute Ajunoas
S,/I2UN0Y 8y} 0} Uolje|al Ul asoy}
Buipnjout ‘01.02/9/01 Uo jea1y}
quiog 9y} WOJ} JuIes| SUOSSa)|

Ag pawuJojul 8q 0} a13Ud) JIAID

10} s2inpadoid Uo}BNOBAS MAN ,
(0102 1°0)

suoloy Jsypn

pamalnal aq 0} sueld 429 IV «

cd

cd

(01L02Z/0L/EL) LOd ynm

as1oJaxa a|doad s|qesaunA-Og ior
'01L02/01/2 Buiutesy 0¥ «
‘sjuswabuelle O | eyded jo ped

MOU UB|d JaA0DY Jajsesiq ]| MolieH ,
‘aoe|d

ul pue paalbe sjuswabuelle pienbung ,
‘2oe|d

ur ueld Aununuod ssauisng SdIH «
'0102 9o pajeidwod dOg sjelojoallq
pue ajesodio) jo Buiyssy doy 9|qe] .,
'$9)e.0}03.10 UIm

wea | Aousbisw3 Ag uosiel BuiobuQ

‘Heys o 1|
‘sBuip|ing |10UNOY JO SSO7
'S80IAISS JOAI|OP 0} 8|geun

(s)sousnbasuo)

‘Jules| suossa| pue ao130eid

}s8q aleys 0} sybnoioq uopuo e
UHM WwnJoy [enuue pue sybnoiog uopuoT
1S9 Yim uosiel| Buiobuo g Apsuenp ,
‘eyde) Aq asjuso

ejep ajowsal je A1anodal eyep 4vs Jo
Bunsey pue s4Og ||e JO MaIAaI [enuuy
‘aoe|d Ul 818 pue payiuapl

uaaq aney sueld |eonjuo ssauisng ,,
‘sue|d A1anooal JS)SesIp dVS «
‘'sjuswabuelse dn xoeq eyep AUBIN .
‘qnH 8y} uo ojul og

9 uoljonpul Jels ped ssaualeme Og
‘oloc

uer jauige) Aq panoidde 40g ajesodiod
' 6002 924 pPamalral v|g Sjesodio)
‘(uonjowolid uodn/mau) anoqe

pue siabeuew aoiAIas 1o} sdoysyiom
Ajnuniuos ssauisng BuiobuQ
‘paje|dwod

[aA8)] [eJuswpedSp e s4Od vE IV «

"WISLIOLIB)/IBAN
‘olwapued
"Ja)sesip [einjeN

(s)asnen

ruondnuiajul
SSauUISN( B JO JUdAS 3y} ul
juaijisaa jou si A1danoosal
J3)sesip/Buiuueld
Aynunuoy ssauisng

(Juen3) sty

<

©

SjusWIWO)

1BUMO
ASiy

ajeq
ysty jobue)

|6uney
Asiy
jobae )

I8UMQ
jo13uo)

(8yeq uonejusws|dw) ‘|auj)

(pauueld 10 Aemuapun)
s|onuo9

auend
jseT

Buney
ASHy

(
S|043U09
Jo)e)
Jauend
siyL
Buney

(2And23yy3 pue ade|d uj)
s|joJjuod

uonduoasaq ysiy

IS

"ON 2AB23[q0

"ON YSIy

117



g abed

“(Joquiy) zd

10 Buiel ysi jJualind ay} yum
peaibe 5SYO - 0102/01/92
BN

99IAI8G Ssalouabuiuo) |IAID
Aq pajepdn - 0L0Z/0L/EL

Neueg
Amue

01-320

£d

Jan0ID) uey|
/ PIEM pinEQ

‘ue|d juapiou| Jolepy uswsajdw|

salousbunuo)

(010Z/11/0E) suoissas awwelboid

juswdolanaq Jequis|y
(0L02/11IET) 158}

apeoseo auoyd Dg apIm [1oUnoY ,

(0L0zZ/LLIBL)
JuapIoul Yg9 € uo asI10Iaxd

siabeuew Joluas Aouabe-ynp .

suoljoy Jeyping

cd

cd

"$9s1049X8 BuI}S8} Ul JUBWSA|OAUI
Buipnjour ‘Jebeuew Jojuss ||e 0}
papinoid Bujuiesy sejnbas yym ‘pamainai
AjJeinbai pue aoed ui sued ||y ,

(o102

aunr) Buiuiely yuswasbeuew Jolusg ,
(0L0zZ Bunr ‘0L0Z

yoJep ‘600z aunr) Buiuiesy sisquisly
‘siebeuew Jojuas

10} 8s1o1ax8 Bunyse} uo-spuey |enuuy ,
(0102 YoIe Spim-uopuo)

as|oiaxa AjD Jajes ul pajedidiped ,
‘Buiuiedy

d3 uo sjep o} dn siojoalig Aing IV «
‘901 JouIge) ‘wea| aoual|isay 109
YHM uoljeynsuod g uosiel| buiobuQ ,
‘uoljew.oul Juswabeuew

Buionpolid pue aAl| mou uewapo) ,

‘60 AON - pajuawa|duwi
suoljepuswwodal Jodal peoy As|uels ,
‘60 924 - sAep Buiuiesy

970 8 9SO pueg I3l @ SO [enuuy
(60 100) J1EdB1d pUE (60 JEIN)

Ay 1ajes - sasioiaxa g Buiuiely jeuoibai
pue apim-uopuoT ui uoiedioiped ,
~Ajlenuuelq payepdn

9 9oe|d ul ejol Jojoaliq AinQg/elol
199)JUN|OA 492140 asuodsal Aousbiawg ,
‘'salnpaosoud

asuodsal Aousabiawa Buipnjoul

‘sue|d juapliou| Jofe|y Jo MaIAal [enuuy

‘abewep uonjeinday
‘uondnusip Ajunwwo)

(s)sousnbasuo)

‘olwaspued
pue wsliolis} ‘suolsoldxa
‘Jayjeam alanss

(s)asnen

*sjuapioul Jofew yjm
|eap o} a2e|d ui Bujuueld
Kouabiawa ajenbapeu|

(Juen3) xsiy

~

SjusWIWO)

1BUMO
ASiy

ajeq
ysty jobue)

|6uney
Asiy
jobae )

I8UMQ
jo13uo)

(8yeq uonejusws|dw) ‘|auj)

(pauueld 10 Aemuapun)
s|onuo9

auend
jseT

Buney
ASHy

(
S|043U09
Jo)e)
Jauend
siyL
Buney
ASIM

(2And23yy3 pue ade|d uj)
s|joJjuod

uonduoasaq ysiy

"ON 2AB23[q0 [~

"ON YSIy

118



6 abed

Q
Q o
S ‘ainjonJjsal juswabeue|y a
M jossy apisbuoje diysisuped .m
[ 131y JO M3IASI 9oUBUISAOD PaYISINSY -uonoejsiesi S
%. ‘}obie} 01/600Z PaJaAIRP J8IY J3Wo)sSNo Ul asealos( m
@ ‘Paisnep ueld ‘abewep uonendsy L
UOI}0Y 9oUBUIBAOS) diysiauped Jary 21098 gD 1004
‘970 yum 19b.e) sjenjobausy ‘0102/v/9¢ palisjsuen; WIed [IIN «|  -uoiusAISIUI JUSWUISAOD)
‘panoidde swweiboid [eyded L1/0L0Z «
‘eJep 3003s Jo juswanoidwi Buinupuo) ,
‘uoljew.oul Juswabeuew
‘swwelboidi O
20onpold 0} 8|ge pue SAl| MOU UBWSPO) Buibusds JoAIeD o1 Aunaeul 2
‘Buiuueld Aouabunyuoo Jeak uj , P I _u.wuoo._:mwo._ g
T ‘puads swweliboid »
‘alis Jouio; S eyde jo Buviojuow pajieleq . PSHSAIP /0 X8 T
5 . ‘sjuswabuelie
2UO pue py siouel e sAejap alid JNETNVIETS)
N diysisuped sjenbapeu|
VS1 Yim Aemiapun suoissnasi( > Sawoy Juadap jo Bunojuow Ao
elepis ‘aoe|d u| s82JN0Ssal |eloueUlS ,
300}s Jo Juswanosdwi Buinuiuo) iz ‘0102 Agq wum
(L1/0102) seoiniag BuisnoH aAs1yoe 0} sjablie) pue sanljoalqo Jes|) >
‘(Joquiy) za 0} paliajsuel} Buiag aoueusjulew ‘SIaquIB|y m
0} (Jaquiy) €0 wouy pabueyd pJiojsaleg pue siiedal Joy Ayjiqisuodsay , BuinjoAul Jay yim uonounfuod 01028
aq p|noys Bunes ysu ayy| MasesleN pJemoH (0L0Z 22Q) "elep ur pieog diysisuped sjelooallq ssoid .| Aq syebie) sawoy juadepi=
paaibe 9SO - 0102/01L/92 jned BN 2a |/ apleA |01eD]¥003s jo Juswanoidwi Buinunuo) za za -aoe|d ul sylom jo swwelbolid pajielaq , 9y} aAalyoe 0} ainjreq Zz |8
(
(e1eQ UONEIUBWS|dW] “[oU) 1 |sionuos 2]
J3UM o)e [Buney 19UM, euenp) Joje) (eAnoa ue ase|d uj) .w. %
sjusWIWo) 0 1ed ysry 0 jseT | 49uenp Bo943 p Id Ul uonduoasaq ysiy = | =
ysiy sty jobae |ojuo) (pauueld 10 Aemiapun) sjoqjuon S|z
jobie) Buney| siyL i )
sjoJjuo)n FA B
ysiy | Buney °

IS

119



0l abed

(usa19) €a

salousbunuon

(o102
09(]) YOOgpUEH SJUBUS| MBINSY ,
(otoz

omh_v ‘@lnjonlls Ememmcm_)_
}8SSY MaU U0 UOIJe}NSu0D Jels ,
(Loz

Uole|N) malnay Aousioiyg N3
JO suoljepuawwodal Juswajdwy ,
"(Z10g) uopuon

Ul 92IAJISS }S9( BU) 8 0} PalaAl|ap
Buiaq (swweiboid Juswanroidwi)
ue|d uoniquy Buisnoy ,

suoljoy Jsypng

0} (Jaquiy) €0 wouy paonpal piojsaleg (L1/010Z) seo1nIas BuisnoH
aq pjnoys Buiel ysu ayy| yalesleN pJemoH 0} paligjsuel) Buiag soueusjulew
paaibe H3YD - 0102/01/92 Ined BN / SpJeA |01eD pue siiedau 1o} Ajjigisuodsay , €d
(syeq uonejuswaldwi ‘jou) 1
aumQ ajeq Buney JaumQ PHEND
sjusWIWo) ysiy jse]
sy ysiy }obue ] |ojuo) (pauueld 10 Aemiapun)
jobae ) Buney
s|ouo) S

Sjopuod
Joye)
Jsyenp
SUT
Buney

IS

's}ebpnq jo juswabeuew

9]EJNDOE J0W MO||E JNO palIed puads/
paja|dwod sqol jo siaquinu / sapel} Aq
Ajnnoe o ajyoud jo sishjeue BulobuQ
‘mainay Aousiog N3 paje|dwo) ,
‘S|d pJeossioos jsuiebe

aoueuajulew asuodsal jo Buloyuow
souewlopad Alusapenb pue Alyuop
‘goueuajulew asuodsal

punoJe s|dy pJessiods pasealou| ,
‘dvH Hoddns

0} S904N0Sal [eUOHIPPE paliuap|

‘uonejuswaldwl dyvH
Bulobuo ur uoisnjoul UON
‘suonjeoldwi Aases

pue yyeay/|ebs) [epusjod
‘uoljoeysijes

JBWOoISND Ul 9sea.I08p

pue sjuiejdwod ul asealou|
‘SpJepue}s

pasinbai J9aw JoN

(s)sousnbsasuo)

‘aoe|d ul ue|d

juswabebu] pue uonedIUNWWO) dvH «
‘pJeog juswanoidw| 0} payodal

pue sa|easawli} pue s}ablie} Jesjo yjm
20e|d ul yJomawely Bulojuow dvH
'010z Aey 21 payoune|

(dVH) ueld uomquy BuisnoH Jesh z
Jojleq aAisod

Aian e Buimoljoy wie jo Jgysuel]
‘pajepdn yoogpueH sjueus] ,

‘Sjueus} Jojy

J0BJU09 JO Julod }S| SB MOLIBH SS90y
O}Ul SSOIAJISS JUSpISal palidjsuel]
‘alnjonJisal wea| juswabeuely Jossy
‘sjueus) 0} pejnquisip

pue pajepdn yoogpueH sjueus] ,
‘eyde) Agq pamainal || ,

‘Buiobuo

- M3IASY ueaT jo uoieyuswa|dw ,
‘'saoIneg Apadolid

pue BuisnoH usamjaq aoe|d Buiyey
sBuneaw Bulojuow 1obpng AMeapA
's90IMBS BuisnoH uiyim uswabeuely
JassYy Jo pesaH jo juswjuioddy

‘2oe|d Ul ue|d Juswanoidw] Jary] ,
‘(326pnq asinai ulyIm

ainjipuadxa [0J3UOD pue asealdul 00.3)
BJEp SWN|OA PUE }SO Jlun pajle}ap aiow

‘Burjiom diysisuped wouy
paJlanijap Aouaioiys Jo oeT
‘puadsiano jobpng
‘Spuewap pasealou|

(s)esnen

‘spJepuejs paiinbai
03} pue j38bpnq uiyum
991AI9S 9oURUBUIRW

asuodsal aA3oayd

(Juen3) ysiy

uo paseq - paalbe 126png 0L/010Z « ue JaAl|ap 0} ainjieqd Z 1|6
o
(=2
% |2
(9A1393y43 pue ase|d uj) uonduaseq Ysiy a2
s|osuo) slz
=|°
(]

120



|| ebed

(pay)
20 o Bujes ysu e ypm
paaibe 5SYD - 0102/01/92

yalesleN
Ined

11/0L02

cd

uosxiq
uesng

psesg wi|
Auayel4
sluleg

uoqqibzyl4 or

'S0 0} sjejeasy

sejousbunuo)

(1102 1dy) dVS pue I-jiomaLuel 4
usamjaq aoealul JO MBIABI V| .
(1102 9o4) uolyew.ojul J0}gap 104
S90BLSJUI VS pUB I-jJomawiel
10 uonesado ||ny ainsus 0} Joalold ,
(L1/0102)

ue|d Juswanoidw] I-jJomawel ,
‘Buinuuod

jndui eyep pue Buiuies} yym
‘@oByI9)uUI YUM sanssi Buipue)sino
9A|0Sal 0} Ylom BulobuQ ,

suoijoy J8ypin

[40)

"(pay) 20 Jo Bunes ysii yum
paaibe 53D - 01.02/01/92
"1obeue|y uonewo|

Aq pajepdn - 010Z/0L/LL

Naueg
AmuejAN

(4713714

[4e]

o||ayoeuoy
Auo|
/ Pie\ pineqd

‘uoisioap
g9l 10} OIS O} ajejeosy

sajousbunuon

(0102 22Q) Aoljod asn
a|qe}daooy sJaquialy Buisinay ,
(ol1@yseUoN | - 0102

299(Q) ‘Puipoday |eysAio ybnouyy
uoljewJoyul |euosiad 0} ssedoe
puno.e sanssi Jo uoiesye|d
(010Z 02Q) Je)8168Y Jossy
uoljewJou| |1ouno) dojaaaq ,
(0102 22Q)

Ue|d UOIOY YSIy uoljew.loju| pue
Jaysibay Jossy uoljew.Iou] Jiay}
dojanap sjelojoaliq 39D ISISSY
's9oN0sal

uo juepuadap - (010Z JoqWanoN)
uopn|os | | @ouejdacoe |euosiad .,
‘CL/LL0C PUe LL/0L0C

10} swwelBbold 3opn Juswabeuely
uoljewJou| Juswadwy ,

suoljoy Jeypin

[48)

SjusWIWO)

1BUMO
ASiy

ajeq
ysty jobue)

|6uney
ySiy
jobae )

JBUMO
|o43u09

(8yeq uonejusws|dw) ‘|auj)

(pauueld 10 Aemuapun)
sjonuo)

ayend
jseT

Buney
Ay

sjo4puod
Joye)
Jauend
siyL
Buney

IS

(010z Ainr)

dVS Ylim padepajul 1a300gasinoy
(0102 Ainr) pajejdwoo (1

-y}Jomawel) Buisa| aoueydaody Jasn .
‘siojeoipul Ayjenb ejep jsuiebe
siabeuew pue suoidweys ejep 0}
Buipodas Alyjuow - $2IAISS S,UBIPJIYD
‘ue|d Juswdojarag 43 «

‘sapinb |-yJomawel ,

‘seaJe 9oIAI8s 0} uondnusiq
uolusAIBUI

|enuew o} anp sayejsipy
"SouU0)sa|IW

dID 198w jou o

(s)eousnbasuon

‘'swiayshs 443 jo
Ajijeuonjouny pue sasepsjul
o Buipuejsiapun Jo yoeT
"90INISS ] | JUBIOIYNSU|

(s)asnen

1akeld JoInL dv's « m
'SHO3YD yjeay 43 « "(-1Iomawel ) ™
‘JOUBJIU| UO uoljewlou] , 19949 |In} 0} Hunesado S
(0102 1udy) uononpu| sJebeuey , ale sadepajul pajejasiS
wes | Josfoid SOl « dy3 d4nsua o0} aJinjie4 IV | L
109}1ydJy uoljewlolu| ue pajioddy ‘uonoeysies: o
‘9sIn02 Jawo)sno pasealda(i S
-9 Ajunoag uolewuoyu| padojanaq 9010 s JsuoIssiwo) m
's]090304d |lEWS SISqUIB|N uonewlou| Aq sauldig
Mau 108|481 0] (1901 Joy sjoN| eAesuiod elpsw aaebeNi g
20UEpIND V) UOIJEWIOU| [BIJUSPLUOD ‘uonew.ojul [euUspPUOD mw
0} sybIy sJequisy parepdn .| 40 sso| - sayoealq Ajunosg ~
‘pauleye souel|dwod 0009 L L/0L0T «
(6002 Aew) Buluiely seah-ul pue
abeyoed uononpu| siaquiapy Ul papnjoul ‘uoljew.oul
sjuswaiinbal Juswabeuew uonewlou] , Jeuosiad o} sjybu
(6002) sainpadoud Bulpuey| sseooe sjeldosdde jo yoe mw
uolew.oul Yyim papinoid sIaquisy o ‘aouepinb m
(0102 LD) uononpuj jauigeD aNsulin
siabeuely pue uoionpu| ayelodio) , ‘Buiuiedsy
EEEEN pue ssaualeme JO 3oeT
Jossy uoljewloyu| jo ayepdn [enuuy 's|oJjuod | | ajenbapeu|
'sQv| Aq sue|d uonoy ‘ul Ang ssauisnq Jo yoe
3sIY uoljewloyu) jo pajepdn Ausuenp ,
‘(suoidweyd ysty) X
soel) Aq sypne uoijewloul BuiobuQ | A34naes uoneunojuijeyepi &
‘aouepinb pajejas pue Aoljod AJlinoag Buipsebaiim
uoljewJou| ‘Ad1j0d 3siy uonew.ou] pappaqwsa pue ase|d m
‘pleog| ul seanpasosd/sweyshsi™
90UBUISAOS) uonewlou| Alzapenp a)enbapeu| v oL
o
(=2
% |2
(9A1393y43 pue ase|d uj) ST -
sjoqjuon S oN
W ¢

121



Z| abed

sjuswabuelle sojsagse dojanaq .

(0102 AoN) preog

S%9H Aq sainpadoud juswabeuew
allj mau jo |erousddy

(0102 JequanoN) o dnoio SgH
ajelodio) ayepdn pue malnay
(zL71102) usuod SRHO
JaueJjUI/IBUIBUI JO JuswdojaAa(
(2L11102)

2)o ‘||auoiba)| ‘syusprooe

‘all} ‘so}sagse - SMalAal ainpasold
% fa1jod jo swweiboid Buljjoy .,
syeblie]

*® S2AIVB[AO (VY UyIm) wea |
Kyeyes pue yjesH jo Aanieq
(0102 AON) siapjoysyess

UHM UOIJEDIUNWIWIOD % UOIJE}NSUOD
ul sjuswanosdwi S9H JaAIRQ «
(oL0z

AON) popaau Sk Jejs JoeJjuod Jo

suoloy Jaypin

‘slequiaw pue siabuew ‘yejs Joy
Buluiesy oiy10adsy|esauab Jo UoISINOId
solbajel)s

UOI}B}NSUOD PUB UOI}EDIUNWWOY ,
‘wesy

asnoy-ul wolj aoIApe S9H BulobuQ
198 S|dM «

abeianod pue

dnous) Alajes pue yjesH ajesodio) ,
ooe|d ul @ouelInsuy|

suoljoadsul Juswabeuepy ,

‘sue|d S'9H dnol9 yum auj|

Ul SJUSISSASSE Sl JO MalAal Jeinbay ,
‘aoe|d

ul sue|d uonjoe pue s}bpng SBH .
paaibe yoeoidde wajsAs
juswabeuel Ajsjes pue yjesH ,
SMaIAal pue

SMLY Buipniour ‘Buliojuow ssauxdIg
'S®HO ® SY3 ‘b9 ‘@ouewiopad
10BJJU0D/I0}OBIUOD JO BuLIojuol

‘s|louno)
Joj uoe|siba] SYHO MeN
‘aoue|dwo) jybneuuo)
SEe |ons ‘sI0}oesjuod

Asy uo Aouspuadasp J1BA0O
"Juswabeuew

196pnq pue [eloueuly 1004
‘goueUsjUBW

pue juswabeuew

JOSSE 9AI}098U|
Juswabeuew swuwelboid
SBHO wus} Buo

10} Ayjiqedes pue Ayoeded
Jeuonesiuebio Jo yoe
“Janoulny yejs ybiy

‘yeys Ajjenb

ulejal pue joeljje o} ile

(s)asnen

IS

uonesijn pue AyoedeoyAyjigedes saljoud S9H Jo Juswabeuew Aasp - ‘suonebiqo ased jo Ainp M
‘(pey) L9 0} Jels JO MaInaYy , sy00loud Aay Jo Buuoyuow AJYjuo jesw pue Juswabeuew ™
(pay) LD 0} WoJy paseasoul uopJiory (01L0Z AON) uaye) uonoe pue saoinles| Jasse ajerdoadde ainsus; g
aq p|noys Buijes ysu sy} jeyy| Naleg Mepn ‘Aued juspuadapul Aq pajonpuod uIyIm sajioid 2010syi0M Jo Buoyuoly | 03 walsAs Juswabeuew: S
paaibe 5SHD - 0102/01/92| Amuelhiy ZL1LL0Z 2d [/ piep pineg Buiaq mainay Aousio3 . 12 (uononpul ‘s}-g-1) JuswdolaAap Jels . SBHO 3jenbapeul; ||y | v1
@) o
S . S
s ‘S9SEOMOYS epusbe g
3 pue sbuyaliq Jaquia|y Alispend [euoneu pue [euoibalis
‘Jaulge) pue gs9 ‘Oainoexy m ) 6 uo d d * ‘leao| usamiaq suoisusyi 3
JoIy0 ‘1opesT yum jesp % SOUELISAQD U0 dNoig Clysispes ] oy - senuoud BunoIpuoD: 8
UJIM YJOM O} SNUIJUOD S3VIAISS |ebaT ,
‘swwelboud "sass900.d/SHIOMOWE !
juswdojansp diysiepes] 989 « 1ounoo joi g
'sbulesw Jauiqe) [ewlou| ,[sseusieme taquisyy Jo ¥oeTi B
‘diysuonerasi 'sBuyaliq jouige Jeinbay ‘loJyuod |eoiyjod @
m:_v_._0>> UOOO ulejuiew Wr 'SI921JJO Joluag pue sisquisy / Q_Lw._w_umw_ Jo Omcmco
pue dojensp o) dnouig diysiepesiz aAnoax3 yum sAeq Aemy Jenbay ,
UM Juswebebus psnuluod ,in ‘slap|oy oljosiod pue Jojalq ‘uonisoddo
" 0)0 "' @oepalul |eonyijod ‘0102 W ajelodio) usamiaq sbuijesw Jejnbay , pue uonetjsiuiwpe W
aAI08Y8U|, 0} pabueyd pus Ag swweiboid uononpu|iz 'sheq Aemy je sa|0. JaquisN/I8o10 yym diysuoneas )
9 p|noys uoiduosap ysu JuIqe) sJaquialy e dojaae(d J101Uag Jo mainal Buiobup ,|  Bunpiom poob urejurew G
2y} Jey} pasiApe pue (Jaquiy) ‘0102 “9AIIN9aXT JaIyD pue (uonisoddo 0} ainjiey / (uonisoddo M
2a jo Bunes ysu ypm pus Aq peaibe aq 0} swweiboid 3 uoljelisiulwpy) Japes AindsQg Buipnoui) soepsjuli
paaibe HSHO - 0102/01/92[Head ybnH L1/0L02C €ad | yead ybny jJuswdo|aaap diysiapes) julor , [4e) cd '3 Jopea usamjaq sbunesw Jenbay leanijod aAaayau| IV | 2L
(
(sye@ uonejuswiajduj “ouy) 1 |sjonuos 2]
JaumQ ajeq [Buney 1_umQ euenp| Jsaye) (aAnoay3 pue ase|d uj) ..l._.... %
sjusWIWo) ySiy jseT | 49uenp : uonduoasaq ysiy = | =
ysiy sty jobae |ojuo) (pauueld 10 Aemiapun) sjoqjuon S|z
jobie) Buney| siyL i )
sjoJjuo)n FA B
ysiy | Buney S

122



¢| abed

‘uonjusjje eipsw ojqissod

0} sasuodsal ajeldoidde ainsua
0} SUOIIBDIUNWWOD YHIM asier
') ‘all) ‘oses|al

so}sagse ‘yealqino ejjeuoiba|
‘Ajjerey :yum |eap oy ssaooud
asuodsal Jueasjal Juswsdwy ,

sejousbunuon

‘dn mojjo4 uonoadsul ISH
(0102 AON) so2IAIDS

BuisnoH uiyym uswebeuew
S0)SaQSE JO MIINSI V|

(9840 0} Hoday - 0102 49900)
'so}sagse yym sbuipjing |1ouno)
|le saunuapl Ja)sibal sojsagse
ainsus 0} Jajsibal jJosse ujew
jsuieBe uajsibal sojsagse ¥oay ,

(0102 JeqwanoN)
2oueldwod [efa] ainsus 0}

‘aoe|d ul dnoig

Juswabeuey ejjauocibaT 1 sO}saqsy
aoe|d ul sjuswabuelle

Juswebeuew sojsagse Buimainay
'sdnoi9 SxH Sjeloloalq

pue sspiwwo) SH sjelodio) ,
‘(Buiseasoul s|ang)

asouepuaje) buiuiely yeys BuiobuQ ,
‘loUNOJ jusig yim a0IAIeS SRHO

10 uoisinoud juiof Joj paalbe Joenuo) ,
901 SSald

ue|d Juswabeuel\ 19SSy ,
awwelbold/ue|d Buluiel] S9H .
Anuuo) ssauisng ,,

$9|NY 8INPad0Id J0BJUOD ,
juswdojaAap JouelIUl pue Jaulaly|
Ayoignd pue uonowold

Ajunwwos

9 BIpSW Y}IM SuoledluUNWwWo) ,
sJauped Joj uoljewloyul Jo UoISIAOId
sBuijesw

juswabeuew uo way epusbe Buipuels ,
uolje|siba| mau

ssalboud

pue 8jeulIpJood 0} Jels pajesipaq ,
‘uolje|siba] mau yym

soueldwod

104 Ajjigisuodsal Jo uoneoo|y
‘uone|siba| yum Aldwos o} paiinbal
sa9ijoeud

pue salo1jod ‘sme| JO JUSWSSaSSY

"0}9 ‘ssO|
anjen/ainsojo/iedaisip
jossy

"Juswabeuew
109loid/awwelfoud Jood
‘abpajmouy

9)elodiod Jo sSO
2oueldwo)

ybneuuo) se yons
‘s}s02 pasea.oul Jueynsal
pue s10}oeJju0d Aoy

uo Aouspuadap asealou|
‘(Bunsixa

pue mau) uonesiba|

yum Aldwoo 0} ainjie
‘piepuejs

paJinbai 0} 8o1n8s SRHO
JBAI[Sp pue saAoa(qo
analyoe o} Ayjigeu
‘safjeuad |ejoueuly
Buipnjour ‘sbuipsasold |ebg)
JIND pue uonnossosd JSH
‘abewep uonjeinday

(s)sousnbasuo)n

SjusWIWO)

1BUMO
ASiy

ajeq
ysty jobue)

Buney
Asy
jobae )

JBUMO
|o43u09

(8yeq uonejusws|dw) ‘|auj)

(pauueld 10 Aemuapun)
sjonuo)

(aAnoay3 pue ade|d uy)
s|joJjuo)

uonduoasaq ysiy

"ON 2AB23[q0

"ON Jsty

123



| obed

1% &
w,. (Ab) seapiwwo) m
S JUIO S}NPY PUB S92IAISS S,UdIP|IYD "Aunnios paseasou|ig
3 (Aybiupioy) 9109 Juawssasse Joodi S
"gS0 0} eje[eos3i® pJeog swwelboid $921AI8S S,uaIp|iy) . -abewep uonendey &
(Aypuow) BuisnoH 8 sUnpy B (Apjoam)
SHINPY/SedIAI8S S,UBIPIYD - SLING '880In0sal Jo e
(Al3b) spseog juswanoidwy , ‘uoisinoud 9}
spieog Aunnios . 92IAJISS Ul UOIIONPaYy m
‘s}inpe pue W s|aued abusjiey) jebpng ., mc_mm;“mm \wr
slauped ‘yejs ‘sajjiwe} ‘s|doad 3 ABsjens m.ocm_u_>m ejenbspeul:=
BunoA 1 uaup|iyd Joy swwelboldi suoljesjunwwo? BuisnoH B synpy , sjuswaunbayfood
uolijewlojsuel] ayj salbe;Q ue|d s,8|doad BunoA % s,uaipiiyo 1106 0 sabueyd
0] uoneynsuod jsod g aid Jofey ,iS ‘pJeog uonjewsojsuel] BuisnoH g synpy Ry
yalesleN (0102 1daS) ue|d suoiesuNWWo? @ wloy 0} ue|d awwelboid uoljew.osuel | 2
Ined apleA |0ie) S92IAI9S S,uaip|iyD dojanaq BuisnoH %@ synpy pasinay . @
‘(Jaquuy) zq@ o Buijes ysu ayy| / uesoq / sjuswis|) (010Z 1dag) sa21A8S Ss,uaIp|iyD (0102Z AInr) ueld @ous|eox3 SYnpY | “Ssaiboud jo sjes paysjOi
paaibe HSYO - 0102/01/92| dulsyled L1-das €3 JayjesH - dnouS) 90UIJaY JOP|OYSNE)S . cd (010 dunr) ueld uoniquly BuisnoH ,| pue DD urejurew o3 jled:=| iy | 91
mu 'sJno }2bpnq 0} asuodsal mu
2 ul abueyo |euonesiuebio @
3 "S90IAI9S iR
m ‘pepoadxa|  Janlep 0} sjqeun / ui inoid
@ SA |enjoe - Buiseoaloy }obpng | “uonUaAIBIUl JUSWUISACD) \mr
‘gs0 0} ojejeosgi” ‘paaibe Juswalies 199p 10d « -abewep uonejndey i
SHPNY [EUISIXT PUE (eS| ‘Bulurely/ssausieme
‘s|aued abus|ley) 19bpng
‘sa)e|dwa} pue aouepinb . tmw o V_Mm._
Bunebpnqg g Buiuueld pue sysodubis pusds [ejdeo
(110zZ/e/1€) "winiod |eyded sy} EIA Buiuueld ‘| 1-010z 19BpnqueldAl . 3 ONUSASI 10 19893104
. M3INSY Bulpuadg 3,009 O
S8WOo9}N0 MaIASY Buipuadg jsod sjgap Aipuns % syyausq Buisnoy BUIOOUI pEONpoY 2
sjuswsaiinbai Bujwwelboud |eydesi ‘sabieyo 9oIAIas ‘Jual ‘Xe) ssauisng . ’ 3
" puads |ejdes alnjny asiiod pue mainay W ‘XE} [I0UN0I - A21j0d Juswabeue J9aq . $1502 Soueusulew >
53 ’ 1osse |ejided paseaiou|
pue ", apn|oxa pjnoys swwelboid; @ Ue|d UOIJOY SSaUaAN0ay] |eloueul , 51500 pajediogueun
Gl ¥OD jo uondiosap [endeo jo yoedui Ayyusp) i 2 “uotyisod uadsIono 1960n
Sl 8y} pue JusliuolIAUS (010Z AON) OMd A4l [eroueuy jo Bunoyuow | ING AIYIUOI 6 /P 195pNg
S uipunj pajiwl] / paonpay
joJ3uod swwelboud [eydes uonebiysanu| swwelboid jeyde) ,in 'sdeb aso|o SJLWID JIWOUCOT
8y} Ul Sassauyeam uole|al ul (01L0z 1das) 0} aoe|d ul ue|d }96pnq anIsusyaldwo) , e
papn[oul 8q p|noys sl Mau JouIgeD B g9 Ag paaibe aq 0} “19)s169y ysiy 19b6png , W
€ Jeuy} pasiApe 9SO (pay) CL/L10T Jusuisiels pesyy JBaA "ABojenS [eloueuld Wis | WnIpa iy
20 0} (pay) gV woly paonpal (Lioz 'SLNG "anudAdli T
aq p|noys bBurjel ysu ayy| neueg Naleg yoJlel\) ue|d UOIOY SSaUBAIORYT pue gs9 o3 Buipodal pue Bunojuow Buipnjoui ‘reak-upi
pasaibe HSHD - 0102/01/92| Amuelhiy 0L/€0/LE cd Amuepiy [eloueuld juswsajdw| soueuLiopad [eroueuy Jeinbay | 396png uo JaAlep o ey | iy | g1
(8yeq uonejusws|dw) ‘|auj) %
aumQ ajeq [Buney aumQ (aAnoay3 pue ase|d uj) .w. %
sjusWIWo) ysiy : uonduoasaq jsiy = | =
ysiy sty jobae JoBae) |ojuo) (pauueld 10 Aemiapun) sjoqjuon sz
s|o1uo9 z ©
ASIM )

124



G| abed

(Tiioz
- deusma( xaly) “}Jomawe.ly

juswabeuew souewlopad
S,]IoUN0Y 8y} ojul ajelodiooul
pue siojeslpul aduewlopad
pajejas OYO sjeudoidde dojane( ,
(110g 1des - Jadoo)-puejano]
lIyd) suoneoidwi Dy ayesodiooul
0} ABsjeng |esodsiq Apadoud ,
(0102 22Q - Jo¥eEg

maipuy) uejd OO dojeae(
(0102 9o - uepAH Auusp

/ splemp3 uyor) syebpng ui s}s09
oyoads se papnjoul 89 0} OHO «
(L10z uer - 1onae

uensiu)) ‘AJunwwod molleH

By} pPUE [IDUN0D UIYIM SSaualeme
YD uo Buisnooy ABsjens
suojjesunwwo) dojana(
(Lroz

ga4 - spJemp3 uyor) sawwelboid
lende) ol Y9 aelodioduy
(1102 1udy - Joxeg maipuy)

SYD 40 1809 ||y Joy pabieyo

g ued s|ooyos JI Ayuap| .
(ziioz

- UmeH p1eyory) OYO JepIsuod o}

‘awwelBoud Bulphoay ,
‘sjebley
BuijoAoal jo Buloyuow pue sbuines

‘Bulurely/ssausieme
HEJS Jo MoeT

‘Buiuueld % Buew
uojsioap juswabeuew
josse pue 9)el0di0o

Ul PaJapISuod Jou DY

(6 YOO 99s)
swweJsboid asueusjuiew

IS

- ABajenys Juswalinoold dojaaaq 1509 AJJuspl 0} MaIA3I }S02 AUJD aunnos sjenbapeuli o
(2171102 - 1o4eg maipuy); _ "sjoafoud Jolew ‘sBuIpjing [10UN0D m
(1 eseyd) swweiboid -y i Ile Joj salpnys Joedw Ajjiqeuleisng pue sjooyos ‘Buisnoyi®.
'P3SOI0 89 piNoyYs 9 Xsiy (€1/210T) Xea9M T ‘a0e|d ul wes | ABisug , ‘69 ‘sjasse jo aby <
o16ajel)S Jey} papuswiwodal ‘69 ‘swwelboid uoieyuswa|dwi W ‘swwesboid yo ‘ueld D40 ON
pue Jajsibay ysiy Buiyiom ajqixs|} g o|iqow / | 1] i } winy, ‘awayos BulaLp 099 69 ‘1ojoss ‘awiwelbold
|euonjeladQ ajelodio) ay} (010Z 290 - umoig SxIN /i3 9)jeAld pue ajelodiod 1able) 0} saAenul uoljewloysuel |
uo JuswWwjiwwod uononpal J9yeg maipuy) (XI|es BIA) S|04juod @ J0 awwelboud Buijjos BuiobuQ , / ¥ag uiynm
uogJed ssaippe o} |le, 3su Bunyesy pue Bunybi buipesbdn ‘ubredwed O¥D 9siubooal o) jley
mau e paoeld syuedipiped (010Z 22Q - Jo¥eg suoljeoIUNWWOD ,usalb, [eulayu] ‘S80IN0S31 JO YoET
“JUSWJIWIWOD uonoNpal Malpuy) Jauigqe) 0} odal OYD « "swiwelBold sjessy Ayunwwo) "SaAljejiul YD jJo
uoqued sy Buinsiyoe (v10z - 1oxeg "20uepInb| yopejuswejdwi aAdayaU|
JOou |19UN0) 3y} 0} Aj|eolioads M3Ipuy) ue|d uonoy abuey) 090 buisn ABisus aseyoind yng , ‘s1ob.e}
sajejal pue ysu olbajels sjewl| pasinal juawaldwy "suonealiduil YO apnjoul|  jesw o) Ayjigedes jo yoe
€ Jou s ¥sl 8y} jey} pssinpe (Z1/110Z - Joxeg maipuy) ue|d 0} JauigeD o} saje|dwa) pasiray 'S|00YJS UIyIm
sjuedioied g sy dIbsjens uonoy abueyg syewl|d dojpasq 9poD|  syuswoebuele eouBUIL
MBIABI 0} JaBeue|y ysiy (L1L0Z Yo - JuswWalndold usals) ul Juedpiped , ‘pajsem ABiaug
wusju| 8y} pue uosdwoy | 19yeg maipuy) Jauiged o) Abajens ‘uoloNPal Yo O} JUSWHWWOD IoIUaS %
eul] ‘ybuig nuy ‘Jayeg abuey) sjewl) pasinay , ‘sue|d [9Ael] usalD W
malpuy ‘Aj|y uaydals (L10Z 9o4 - Jaxeg 'SaA1309[q0 DY D/Umolb (a1 Juswdojansp (0¥2)iTy
‘spJemp3 uyor yim sem S|IIH malpuy) ABsjells abueyn syewnd Aoljod Buiuueld aibajesys BulobuQ , JuBWIWWOD uoldNpali y
doysyom sty - 0102/LL/g| uopuaig ¥102/€102 €3 PaSIA8J U0 UOiEe}NSU0D 2l|qnd « - cd ‘ABojeng abueyd syew|g uoqgJted ssalppe o} |leq 2 IV | 2L
(
(e1eq uonejuswa|duw ‘joul) 1 |sionuos o
JaumQ ajeq [Buney RumQ suenp| Jaue) (eAnoay3 pue ase|d uj) .w. %
sjusWIWoy Asiy jseq | ssuenp : uonduosaq %Sy = | =
ysiy sty jobae |ojuo) (pauueld 10 Aemiapun) sjoJjuo) S|z
jobie) Buney| syL i )
sjoJjuo) Z |-
ysiy | Buney o

125



9] abed

sajousbunuon

‘Auadoud ‘68 ‘syosse jo
anjeA wis) Buo| paysiuiwig
‘JUSWIUOIIAUS

ay)} o} abeweq

'saoud ABisus pasealsou|
‘diysispes|

pue Ayjiqisuodsal
9)jelodlod pue [eloos Jood
(6 YS

99s) abewep uoieinday
‘awayos

Buipesy uogies NZ3

0 suonesldwi [eloueul4
‘saljjeuad

(s)eousnbasuo)n

Buipuny Jo |eloueul

SjusWIWO)

1BUMO
ASiy

ajeq
ysty jobue)

Buney
Asiy
jobae )

I8UMQ
jo13uo)

(8yeq uonejusws|dw) ‘|auj)

(pauueld 10 Aemuapun)
s|onuo9

auend
jseT

Buney
ASHy

(
S|043U09
Jo)e)
Jauend
siyL
Buney

IS

(2And23yy3 pue ade|d uj)
s|joJjuod

uonduoasaq ysiy

"ON 2AB23[q0

"ON YSIy

126



Agenda Item 10
Pages 127 to 134

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 29 March 2011

Subject: Audit Fee Letter 2011-12

Responsible Officer: Julie Alderson Interim Director of
Finance

Exempt: No

Enclosures: Appendix 1 - Audit Fees — Trend over
4 years

Appendix 2 - Audit Fee Letter 2011-12

Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

This report gives the Committee an opportunity to comment on the proposed
work plan and fees of the External Auditor for 2011-12.

Recommendations:

The Committee comment on and note the proposed work plan and fees

( %/‘/'WLCDUNCIL )
127 LONDON



Section 2: Report

Introduction

1.

3.

The Audit Fee Letter has been provided by Deloitte LLP, the Council’s
appointed external auditor. It is attached at Appendix 2.

The planned work includes the audit of the financial statements for 2011-12 for
the Council, the Pension Fund and grant claims.

The outputs from the work will be summarised in the Annual Audit Letter.

Options considered

4.

The External Auditor has assessed the time required to carry out the work and
the risk level to arrive at the fee of £330,608 (2010-11: £367,342) which
represents a reduction of £36,734 or 10%. This reduction mainly reflects:-

a. No inflationary increase from 2010/11;

b. Lower ongoing costs of International Financial Reporting Standard; and

c. The new approach to Value for Money work.

Appendix 1 shows the fees over a four year period.

The Audit Commission has defined the scale audit fee as the fee required by
auditors to carry out the work necessary to meet their statutory responsibilities
under the Audit Commission Act, in accordance with the Code. It represents
the Commission’s best estimate of the fee required to complete an audit
where the audited body has no significant audit risks and it has in place a
sound control environment that ensures the auditor is provided with complete
and materially accurate financial statements with supporting working papers
within agreed timeframes.

The fee proposed for 2011-12 is 3% below the scale fee (2010-11: 10% above
the scale fee). This variance in scale fee is within the acceptable level of
variation set by the Audit Commission, which is 25%. The variance to the
scale fee reflects the External Auditor’'s assessment of the level of audit risk. In
the External Auditor's 2010-11 Accounts Opinion Audit Plan they identify ten
significant audit risk areas (8 significant risk areas were identified in 2009-10).

. In respect of the 2011-12 fees, the External Auditor is required to submit the

letter to the Audit Commission at the end of April 2011. Therefore the Auditor
will be able to reflect on any comments from the Committee in advance of
submitting the fee letter.

During the year additional costs can arise if there are complications with the
accounts or public enquiries to the auditor. The Auditor discusses such issues
with the Interim Director of Finance before raising any additional bills. Any
significant changes to the fee will be reported to the Governance, Audit and
Risk Management Committee.

128



Consultation

10. The Committee is being consulted on the work plan and the fee.

Financial Implications

11.The Planned fee for 2011-12 is within budget.

Section 3 - Statutory clearance

Name: Julie Alderson [ V| Chief Financial Officer

Date: 15 March 2011

Name: Sarah Wilson v | On behalf of Monitoring
Officer

Date: 17 March 2011

Section 4: Contact details and background papers

Contact: Jennifer Hydari (Divisional Director Finance and Procurement)
tel: 020-8424-1573

Background Papers:
None

129




Audit Fees - Trend over 4 Years

Appendix 1

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 201112
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial Statements 282 259 283 272
Use of Resources/ VFM Conclusion 67 111 80 54
included included included
Data Quality 43 above above above
Whole of Government Accounts 5 5 5 5
Total Audit Fee 397 375 368 331
% change +13% -5% -2% -10%
National Fraud Inititative 1 2 2 2
Objections 8 7
Capital miscoding and PFI work 45
Grant Claims* 106 110 110 110
Pension Fund 38 38 35 35
Grand Total 546 533 567 478
% change +8% -2% 6% -16%
Note

* |s an estimated figure based on 2009/10 audit.

130




Appendix 2

Deloitte

17 March 2011

Mr Michael Lockwood
Chief Executive
Harrow Council

Civic Centre

PO Box 57

Station Road

Harrow

HA1 2XF

Dear Michael,

Annual audit fee 2011/12

Further to our discussions, we are writing to confirm the audit work that we propose to undertake for the
2011/12 financial year at Harrow Council. The fee has been set by the Audit Commission to reflect the
work programme auditors are required to deliver and our assessment of audit risk.

The total indicative fee for the audit for 2011/12 is for £330,608 (exclusive of VAT) which compares to
the planned fee of £367,342 for 2010/11 (10% reduction) and reflects:

e no inflationary increase from 2010/11;

* lower ongoing costs following the first year adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) in 2010/11; and

» the new approach to value for money (VFM) work following the abolition of the Comprehensive Area
Assessment.

The fee is summarised in the table below.

Audit area - Planned fee 2011/12  Planned fee 2010/11 |
Financial statements 271,452 282,472
VFM Conclusion / Use of resources 54,286 80,000
WGA B 4,870 4,870
Total planned audit fee | | 330,608 367,342

Certification of claims and returns (note 1) - -
Audit of Local Government Pension Scheme 35,000 35,000

2> 1®
21

officinl professione! services provider
1 3 1 to the Olympic and Peralymaic Games



Appendix 2
Deloitte 2

Note 1: our fees for certification of claims and returns are billed on the basis of time spent by different
grades of staff using scale fees advised by the Audit Commission. The level of fees charged in a given
year is dependent on the grant schemes falling within the audit requirement, the scope of procedures
agreed between the Audit Commission and the grant paying body and the quality of working papers
provided to us and timeliness with which audit queries are resolved. The hourly rates set by the
Commission are unchanged from those applicable to 2010/11, as is the de minimis threshold of
£125,000 below which individual claims will not require certification. The 2011/12 fee for grant
certification work will be estimated based on the requirements of audit certification. The 2009/10 billed
fee for grant certification work was £110,625.

The fee excludes:

» any additional work required to address questions and objections raised by local government electors
which, due to uncertainty of timing and resource required, will be agreed separately;

e any work in relation to providing any specific accounting opinions, for example on PFI projects.
Given the uncertainty of timing and input required, we will agree the scope of work and associated
fee with you when you request the opinion;

e the cost of the National Fraud Initiative which is determined and billed by the Audit Commission;

e any work requested by you that we may agree to undertake. Each piece of work will be separately
negotiated and a detailed project specification agreed with you.

Work programme and risk assessment

The work programme has been published and copies sent directly to you by the Audit Commission. The
programme includes:

e audit of the Authority’s financial statements;

» work to support the value for money conclusion. This will be based on two criteria specified by the
Commission covering the Authority’s arrangements for:

o securing financial resilience; and
o prioritising resources within tighter budgets.
At this stage we have not identified any specific local risk-based value for money work; and
e work specified by the Commission on Whole of Government Accounts.

Our audit is based on the risk-based approach to audit planning as set out in the Code of Audit Practice
and work mandated by the Audit Commission. As the fee is based on the 2010/11 planned fee, it
reflects our current assessment of audit risk but as we have not yet completed our audit for 2010/11 and
we have not started our detailed audit planning process for 2011/12, this assessment could change.
This process will continue as the year progresses and fees will be reviewed as necessary. Any
significant variation in the assessment of risk may impact on the fee.

If we need to make any significant amendments to the audit fee during the course of the audit, we will
first discuss this with Julie Alderson. We will prepare a report outlining the reasons why the fee needs to
change for discussion with the Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee. Any variation in
fee would then need to be approved by the Audit Commission as they are responsible for setting audit
fees.

We have also assumed that:

e Internal Audit undertakes appropriate work on all systems, and good quality working papers and
records will be provided in accordance with our audit timetable;

¢ good quality working papers and records will be provided to support the financial statements by 2
July 2012.

132



Deloitte 2

Appendix 2

A separate plan detailing our assessment of audit risk and proposed response to those risks will be
issued following completion of our detailed audit planning in April 2012. Within this, we will set out a
timetable of deliverables required from you which will ensure a timely and efficient audit process, and
therefore minimise the fees charged to you. As part of our detailed planning discussions we will seek to
identify with you any further areas where efficiency can be achieved in the year end reporting and audit

process.

We will issue a number of reports relating to our work over the course of the audit:

Planned output
Audit plan

Auditor's report giving the opinion on the financial
statements and value for money conclusion

- Annual audit letter

| Annual certification letter

Audit Team

The key members of the audit team for the 2011/12 are:

Team member Role.
Paul Schofield Engagement Partner
Matthew Hall Audit Director

Anna Parker Audit Senior Manager

Indicative date
30 April 2012
30 September 2012

November 2012

January 2013

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way dissatisfied, or
would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact Paul Schofield in the first instance.

Yours sincerely

Dl e 10
Deloitte LLP

cc Director of Finance

133



This page is intentionally left blank

134



Agenda ltem 11
Pages 135 to 160

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT &
RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:

Subject:

Responsible Officer:

Exempt:

Enclosures:

Summary

29 March 2011

INFORMATION REPORT -
Capital Investigation
Implementation Plan

Tom Whiting — Assistant Chief
Executive

No

Appendix 1- Capital Investigation
Implementation Plan

Appendix 2 — High Level Project Plan
Appendix 3 — Draft Project Initiation
Document (Capital Strategy and
Governance Arrangements)

This report sets out the progress against the Capital Investigation

Implementation Plan.

FOR INFORMATION

( %ﬁfﬂMDUNCIL )

135 LONDON



Section 2 - Report

Background

Following the investigation into the overspend in the Children’s Services
capital programme Cabinet received a report in December 2010 setting out
issues and the outcomes of two investigations, one focussing on project
management, one on financial management.

The investigations made a series of recommendations, to avoid any
recurrence of the issues which had affected the programme.

Cabinet requested that the GARM Committee monitor and report on
implementation of the recommendations, supported by Internal Audit, who
have been instructed to independently verify the process.

An initial report was made to GARMC in January 2011 outlining the
recommendations and suggested action against each recommendation.

Current Situation

Since January Internal Audit has been working with officers in Children’s
Services, Community and Environment and Finance to establish a robust and
realistic implementation plan (Appendix 1) and to establish the current status
of each agreed action. During the course of this work the recommendations
have been reconciled back to the investigation reports to ensure all
recommendations are covered and some have been combined to prevent
duplication.

Senior interim managers, with extensive experience, have been appointed to
key posts in Children’s, Community & Environment and Finance and are
working on the develop of robust process for the future whilst actively
managing the ongoing projects.

In addition to the detailed implementation plan a high level project plan
(Appendix 2) has been developed to address the issues on a comprehensive
basis across the Council. The plan covers the development of a Capital
Strategy, an Asset Management Plan, and a Corporate Allocation Model for
capital; a review of governance at a corporate and a project level; a review of
the process for the agreement of the capital programme; a review of reporting
arrangements and training and communication requirements. The project
plan also covers ongoing oversight by Internal Audit, formal review by Internal
Audit (in 2012/13) as well as reporting to GARMC.

A draft project initiation document has also been developed covering the
implementation of a capital strategy and governance arrangements (Appendix
3). This recognises that 2011/12 will be a transitional year during which the
new arrangements are devised and agreed by the Council. In essence this will
provide: -
a) The framework for agreement being reached on a 5 year capital
programme as part of the budget preparation arrangements for

2012/13 and the MTFS.

136



b) The introduction of robust corporate arrangements for the governance
and regular monitoring and reporting of the capital programme.

With the main objectives of the project as being to devise and put into place
for 2012/13 onwards a high quality capital strategy to provide an objective
framework for decision making and robust arrangements for managing the
overall delivery of the Council’s capital programme.

A project team has been established and three main sub groups set up to
manage the project:

e Capital Strategy & Model (workstream 1)

e Corporate Governance (workstream 2)

e Project Governance (workstream 3)

Where relevant the detailed implementation plan (Appendix 1) indicates which
working group will deal with the planned action.

Finance have produced a Capital Project Approval 2011/12 document
(currently in draft) which includes a flow chart to ensure that controls are in
place to manage the approval of capital projects for the transitional year. This
has been reviewed by Internal Audit.

The Chair and Vice Chair of GARMC have been updated on the progress at
two meetings since the January meeting.

Conclusion

The updated implementation plan is more robust and reflects realistic timings
for planned actions and the high level project plan puts the detailed actions
into context and addresses the council wide issues.

Internal audit will continue to monitor the progress of the implementation of
the planned actions, seeking evidence of action taken and reviewing
proposed processes as they are developed.

Progress of the planned actions, with particular emphasis on those that may
impact on the Value for Money (VFM) assessment, and evidence obtained will
be shared with the External Auditors to support their work.

Financial Implications
The processes set out in this report can be supported within existing
resources.

Risk Management Implications

Given that the recommendations arise from issues which were material in the
problems identified in the December Cabinet report, the Council is exposed to
some risk so long as they remain outstanding. Accordingly the Corporate
Strategy Board is closely monitoring the situation, in addition to the steps
outlined above.

Overall this is considered sufficient to manage the current risks.

137



Corporate Priorities

The work of Internal Audit contributes towards all the corporate priorities.

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Julie Alderson N, Chief Financial Officer

Date: 16/03/11

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact: Susan Dixson, Service Manager Internal Audit, 020
8424 1420

Background Papers: None

138




I

ulyum jeaoudde oy pajuasalid os
suoisinal Aue Jo g ‘| ‘0 Aemalen
JO ®AISN|OUI ‘UolIBlUSWND0P

'$$920.4d JO MalAal Kemales) ay) uiypm JMd
Japim Aq ||lom se dn payoid pajesodiooul woy BuluoissIWWwod ‘uolejusWNoop Aemales) ayj UIyum Z
9Q 0] "pPauol}oe JuswpuaWY ¢ | 1a/Hg LLoZ aunp 3y} JO Juswpuawy MOT | papnioul g pinoys ajep [eaosdde Jes|o ‘9
:pasinbay aouapiAg Juswabeuep }oeU0)
(leba
Ag pawpu0d 8q 0}) |IoUN0)D ‘pun4 uoisuad pue $|00Y9S Y2Inyo 8y} WOl UuolngLuoD
9y} 0] XSl OU SI I8y} pue Ainseal] ‘Bununodoy |eloueul ay} paniem Buiney wouy ysu Aue oY
ypum pailjdwoo suonipuod juelb - Jauped ssauisng ay} Aqg BuiAiies jou si pue suonipuod Juelb ayy G'L'8
pawLIu0D - 919]dW00 MaIASY e/u an 010z 22Q pamalnal aq 0} Buipuny Juelb ||y MOT | Yyum paldwod sey |1ounod ay; eyl yoayo ‘G
‘Jodal
INJA NpNY [euss}x3 Ojul pes)
0} Buiwi| "pejo9||00 89 0} EJep od
Alessaoau [|e moj|e 0} auljpeap K|Buipioooe juswiwod pue ‘s109(oid pamalnal ay} 1o} ¥1'8
uonjejuawa|dwi pajnpayosay e/u vl L 10Z Jequieldag | sjuswssasse Buisixa ayy mMainay MOT | SjuswsSSasse Asuouwl Joj anjeA ay) JIsIney b
‘paledaud aq |im 8WON0 Y]
uo Jodals y "pa8ynsuod aq o} |eba) ‘looyos oY
pue pamainisiul Bulaqg sieo1j0 Areiodwa} ay} jo s3s09 Bure|eoss ay} 1oy ol
‘ssalboid ur mainay e/u J1a/Hg L LOZ YoJe pug ‘Pamainal Bulaqg uoneuswnosog pPaN ssalpal Aue si a1ay) Jaylaym ayebinsanu| %
—
"SawIBYos
J8Yjo uo sanssi Buifyuspi se [jom
sk Juswabeuew pue [0J3U09 JO SWa)sAs
Jadoud dn Bumes ‘ewwelboid [eyded oY
S9OIAISS S,UaJp|IYo ay} Jo Juswabeuew rAR:
}sod ul wusjuj e/u as oLrcLiLL OMd Wolj pajinioal wusju| ybiH 8Uj} J1eA0 )] 0] [enplAIpul UE JiNJoaY 4
‘pajueliem
‘Alessaoau se aJle suonebiysaAul Jonpuod Aue Jayiaym oY
‘Buiobuo pajebiysul suonebisaaul Jonpuod UIWLIB}EP PINOYS S22IN0SaY UBWNKH 1’18
ainpao0.d JoNpuod Jspun UoROY e/u 1ir 0L0Z 29Q pue pamaiAal 8q 0} 80USpIA] ybiy JO 10J08J1Q pUB 8A3N0SX] JoIyD ay L 1
syse] }o9loid ay1oadg
w
easys | 19210 ajep Bunes ON
snje}s juasing MM peal | uonejuswajdwy asuodsau ; uonoe pauueld | fjuoud uolepuswwosdy wa}|

I XIAN3ddV

NV7d NOILVLIN3INITdINI




[4

JO speay wuajul Aq pabeuew ul papn[oul aq 0} (S3Jom pa3sod 9Q 0} SYJIOM 10} wns |euolsiaoid e apnjoul )
Kjeanoe Buleq Apualing 1a/Hg LLOZ aunp | Ajway a1) swns [euolsiAcld-uou |y ybiH p|Noys uonejuswnoop gz Aemales) ay | ‘0l
"goe|d uI SI SIY} Jey} ainsua pue
Jojiuow 0} dnoub 8102 ylomawel
‘s|gejswiy
109loud 01 swny ul peg| [enoidde
ubie 0} sdnoig aio) "aoe|d
ul pue yejs Ag umouy ssa001d
‘aoejd ul si z Jo | ‘0 Aemalen
"M3IABJ @oueuIanob 108(oid panoidde ay} ssjun J0}oNJISUOD
Japim ay} jo Jed se dn paxoid 3y} 0] panssi ag jJouued
aq 0} saijiqisuodsal g sojoy SJUBWINDO0P JORBJIUOD JB[IWIS
10 sjuswaalby uolssassod ‘Burouswiwod Ajjenjoe
‘speay ald ey} annejuasalday yiom 109foid Aue oy Joud paysiigelse | DA
9oIAI8s wilisul Aq pabeuew alD 8y Buipuiwal yess ||e o} usag aAey sjuaswabuelle |en}oesuoD ‘G
AjaAanoe buiaq Apuasing J1a/Hg LLOZ aune uOIIONJISUI JO UOBIB)a) SS8001d ybiH alelidoidde jey) painsus aq pjnoys 6
‘(010 109(04d
ay} 0} abueyd |eusjew e si alay)
J1 10 ‘aoe|d uaye) aaey josfoid o
2y} 0} sebueyo pajon.isul Jo |9A9) <
urepnsd e aouo b9) aoeld aye) A
pinoys uonejuswnoop Aemaleb
ayj 0} suoisinal j0afoid e ul
"M3IABI iod 1eym je JapISuod |[IM Wes)
2oueuIan0b 109(oid Japim € Weal}SyIOM 8y} ‘uonippe uj suoneoldwi
8y} Jo ued se palapisuodal ‘UOISIASI Jey) 3|NPayYos pue }S02 3y} pPUB UOISIASI
aq [|m SIy} pue Aoualino 0] Bunejas suoneondwi ||e s|ielap By} Jo} pasu 8y} SjUswnoop jey) Wioy
ay} Buunp ueyy Jayel 1o0sloid puB UOISIASI 8U} 0} SUoSeal UoISIAal pajeoalpap e Jo asn ay) ybnoiyl | DA
B JO pus 8y} spJemo) paja|dwod LL0Z aunp By} SJUSWIN20pP Yolym pasn pala|dwoo a9 p|NOYS UoiejuawWNIop b
Buiaq Apuanino aie asay| J1a/Hg /LLOZ YDJelN | 99 [|IM WIO) UOISIASI pa}edIpap paN | Aemsjen ayj 0} suoisinal Juanbasqns Auy ‘|
"10}0a11Q 10 SOH 0} uoIssiwgns
10 @oueApe ul ybnos aq 0}
sl 1ey) ainjeubis s Jap|oH 196png Jleyaq Jisy} uo spew Buiaqg sjusw)wiwiod
apnjaul 0} abed o ubis z puel‘Q Jayjo Aue pue Aemales) ayj asuoyne oY
Kemajeo) 0] UOISIASY "SW.IO} UO p|noys juawiedap a2IAISS JUSI|0 YL 878
'$$320.d JO M3IA3I JapIM aoe|d oy10ads ou Ing (s,ualpjiyn)
Aq dn payoid aq 03 sI saliojeubis Juswedsp Bunonsul ‘'shemalesy |  DIAd
JO M3IAal aAISuayaldwoo 10 J|eyag uo uonejuswnoop 109(04d [|e Bsloyine o0} palinbal g
2IJ0W B - Pauoi}oe Juswpuawy 1a/Hg LLoz aunp | Aemajeo jo Buiubis Hy Apuading ybiH aq p|noys juswuedaq Bunonisu| ay | ‘)
‘a)ep |enosdde
ayj} apnoul 0} Ajloyine payebajap

I XIAN3ddV



€

ay) Jo yed se dn payoid eq 0

3y} apn[oul M pue (adueulanob

s92I1AI8S Aadoud 0} Joud juswiedap

"90INIBS 109l0ud) ¢ weansyiom jo ped Bunonuisul sy} jo uonezuoyine oMd
Jo speay wuayul Agq pabeuew SE palapisuod aq 0} sainpaosold ay} salinbai yoiym paysijgelsa aq pjnoys Bl
Ajeanoe Buleq Apuaiing Ja/Hg LLoZ aune N0 8s0|o J08foud jewloS paN | ainpadolid uonsidwod josfoid [eulsiul uy ‘el
"MBINSI € WEaJ)SHJIOM aoueulanob
108foud ayy woly Bunnsal ssaooud
Mau sy} ulym psysiigelss oq
[lIM SIyL "92e|d Ul aJe S|oJjuod ay)
1By} 2INSua ||IM UOEPUSWILIOIS.
3A0QE 8y} Ul S|iejep Se Jap|oy
196pnqg sy} Aq uonesuoyiny
18bpnq [eJjusd 3y} UlyIm play
s 1 Jeyy yons aoe|d Buiye} yJom (Jooyos ayy Aq paysanbal Ajjoalip sebueyo
‘@oueulanob 0} Joud paulajsuel) aq [im abueyo 10} |00yos 8y abieyoal o} Jybnos Ajpnioe
108f0.d Jo mainal Japim ay} Joj JuswAed ay ‘Japjoy pey |Iounod ayj 1ey} aouapine Aue
ay} jo ued se dn payoid agq o] 186png pue |jooyos ay) Aq paalbe Ajuapl Jou pip am (11) suouue) % Myied
pue sjendoidde aiaypp ‘sebueyo 1o} sjunoooe |euly ay} Buimainal uj ¢°9)
"90IAISS 100loud Jayjo [|e se Aem swes ‘a)eldoidde aleym pabieyoas pue JMd
10 speay wuajul Aq pabeuew 2y} ul passaoold aq ||Im jo0yos paje||00 ale s|ooyos Aq pajonisul sieplo ‘el
Ajananoe buiaq Apuaiing J1a/Hg LLoZ aunp ay} Aq palinbai sebueyo Auy PaN abueyo ||e ey} painsua aq p|Noys j -
4
"Malnal swwelboud ~—
[ejdes ay} Jo € wealjsHiom
Ul paJspIsSuU0d aq ||Im SIU3 O |lejsp
‘@oueulan0b 10EeX8 8y ‘8oe|d Ul S| Jap[oy
108f0.d Jo malnal Japim 196pnq sy Agq uonesiioyne
ay) Jo yed se dn payoid eq 0] ajelidoidde jey; ainsus
0} pasIAal aq ||Im ainpado.d ‘Aued Buionuysul ayy
"90INIBS abueyo ay] "uonepuswwoss. Ag aouejdaooe |ewloy Buipnjoul ‘syosfoid oMd
Jo speay wuayul Agq pabeuew Sy} }J@aw A||n} 0} smainal ssaooud |le uo pasn Ajejeudoidde aq pjnoys ‘6
AjaAanoe buiaq Apuaiing 71a/Hg LLOg aunp Jayuny 0} 108gns suleway ybiH | ainpasoud uonesuoyine Japio abueyd ay| i
"80U81IN220 Jo Ajigeqoud
pue Ajuenb uo paseq pamoje
Bureq Aousbunuoo sjeudoidde
3y} yum sa)sibau xsu sy} o}
paJliajsuel} aq 0} wns |[euoisiaocid
‘(eoueulanob josfoid 3y} JO JUSWISIS uleladuN ay |
— € WealsyIom) aoueulanoh ‘9)ewWI}Sa }saq ay} uo
108f0.d Jo mainal Japim paseq Aem awes ay} ul papn|oul
ay} jo ued se dn payoid aq o] 9q 0S|e p|NOYS SWNS [BUOISIAOIH ]1I9UN0Y 3y} 0} palisjsuel)
‘Jualo a8y}l Ag SyIom JoalIp sysii Aue Jo} Aouabuiuoo sjeudoidde
"90INIBS 10 ‘dINY Ul Jaylaym Aemaleb pue |1ouno) ayy Aq Ajpoauip pajeidwiod | DOAAd

I XIAN3ddV




14

0} |0Jju09 Jo6png MaINBI O] - O} HI ‘Buliojluow ple 0} Sawayos Koy sso.oe 196pnq ay} a1e00||e 0} oY
[eydeo Joy Sep0oo-gns Jo asn ay) :Aoey sy 9'¢'g
‘g)9|dwo) e/u an L10Z ludy | moje 0} papuswe usaqg sey dvs Mo | Joy apinold pinoys wsjsAs Buuoyuow sy | ‘8l
'SIS2IJO
‘paljLIe|d usag aAey sanssl @oUBUI4 U)IM S|:| Ul paISA0D 0S|y
Japim aouo siseq Alosindwoo ‘BulouswiLIOD
e uo aoe|d aye} ||Im SIy} - sJom Aue Jo soueApe ul 4ys ul
sJebeuew josfoid pue sisbeuew (pes] 0} slapJo aseyolind asiel 0} pasu ay)
196pnqg sapnjoul siy} ‘sisbeuew HM/HN) 4O papuiwai pue 00z aunr/Aep "dV'S UIYIM PajiLIWoD oy
[epded pue Jejs soueuly yioq ul Bururesy Jaysaljal yum papiaoid aq p|noys sawayos [ejded pue sjoesuod G'eg
Jo} palinbai si Bululely Jayyn4 e/u vr Loz Aine sJabeuew swayos |eyded ||y pPaN MOY 9}EDIUNWILIOD pUB AJLIBO ‘MBIASY ‘Il
“JuUSWINo0p Z1/1 102 [erociddy
1o8loid |eyde) o} pappe aq 0|
'sjenocidde sjeudoidde paaisodal oYy
sey awayos aouo Ajuo papiroid £'eg
8¢ 0] S8P02 — 2)9|dW0D MBIADY e/u an 110z uer ‘Pamalral 8 0} SS800Id ybiy '$9p0o BuInss! 10} ssa201d By} MaInSy ‘9]
jusawabeuey |e1oueulq
‘9|geonoeld Janaisym sainpaoold
uswabeuew josfoud [1DUNOD q\]
Japim ay} juswidwoD [jIm pue ‘g <
weaJljsylom Agq palepisuod aqg 0} A
aJe sainpaooid 10exa 8yl ‘3% 9
uIyum uonouny aoialeg Auadoud
By} JO M3IABI JapIM By} Jo MLed se JMd
"PaOUSLLILIOD paldope aq o} Buliy pue Bulpuey 390 Ul splodal oluoaos|e g siaded Joj ‘9]
MBIARI BDIAISS JIBPIAA e/l | a/Hg L 10Z aunp | uswnoop 0} yoeoidde jusisisuo) ybiy wa)sAs Buljiy 108loid Jusysisuoo e jdopy ‘Gl
"eoe|d ul sainsesw
uonebiiw pue Aouabunuoo
ajelidoidde yym palspisuod alie
‘gouBUISNOD sy sl 9|qissod ||e ey} ainsus 0}
109(0ud JO malnal Japim aoueulanob 10sloid ¢ weassyiom
ayj jo ued se dn payoid 8q 0] 3y} Jo Led se pamalnal aq [|IM
Jays1Ba. sl By} JO SJUBU0D By |
"90INIBS ‘epusbe dnolio "salayos oMd
JO speay wuaul Ag psbeuew 2100 8y} Jo Med se 1no paLled © sjos(oud ||e InoyBnoiy) paulejulew 02
Ajaanoe Bulsqg Apualing ¢ | Ta/Hg 0L0Z aunp 2q 0] Ja)sIBal ySLl JO MBIASY ybiH aq p|noys Jsjsibai ysu ajep 0} dn uy 1
‘slapjoyayels
JuBAS|al 8] YIIM UONL)NSU0D
‘2oueUlan0b Se ||om se Jap|oy 1ebpnq
109[0.d JOo malnal JapIm 8y} Wolj uonesuoyine Jueas|al 'sjoefoid Jjo Buiubis Ajjew.oy

I XIAN3ddV



+ Hr 01 sd94 Aq pajejeoass

- uonoaloid e papinoid jou

aq ||Im SIy} Jou aJe Aay} alaypn sey Japjoy }8bpng, se pajuasalid aq pue oY
‘pala|dwiod ale s)sedalo; jey) paje|eosa aq pjnoys siy} ‘siapjoy 19bpng | ¥1°€'8
Buninsus ale s4qg4 — a19|dwo) e/u an 110z uer paaiby MO Ag papinoid jou ale suonjosfoid aisypp 12
(‘paJ1anod aq 0} Jeadde
usw uoljepuawwodal ul sjuiod ||e JoN)
aindold ‘PARILIWIOD ANy usaq
an 'slapJo aseyaind 0} uoielal sey }obpnqg ay} aouo podal uoisjdwos
"8oueul Jou ur 8oe(d ul jnd aq ||IMm S|03UOD 1s0d e e19|dwo9 0} Juswalinbal v
pue 397 jo Aljigisuodsal ase v pue s)9ay9 |euonippe ‘108fo.d
suoday uonsdwo) 1sod ‘gN D/dvD juswainooid ay} jo ped sy Pue sigjsuel) JO SmaINSY
an ‘
'sJ10308a.1q 91elodio) 0y Ajyiuow HVYO/dvD Aq 'S80/0AUI P%00]q UO SHOdSY
asuodsal auo ul Jayyaboy Bulq paonpo.d Buliaq suodal uondaoxg ‘s)ep 9210AU
0} sisujed sssulsng aoueul 8y} Joye 10 Se awes ay) SI 9)ep JepJo
S ‘anoqe aseya.nd sy} asaym spodals uondeoxg
‘pasueyus 90INIBS 8| Jad se s}abpnqg buijjosuoo
usaq aAeY S|0JjuU09 |eulnor paleys ul Aoeo144e 10} PaMBaIAS. ‘siobeuew
yum 8q 0} ainjipuadxa uo S|oJju0) Joluas uaje pue sbunesw Bulioyuow
‘dn pauiof aje ssueul{ pue aslel| Alyluow 1e asay) asn ued aoueuUl{ 1ey} ™
Sa2IAISS paJeys ainsus 0} pasu 0} sdg ZL-1102 "90UBApPE Ul SI9pI0 0s ‘s}abpnq jusioiNsuI 1o} pauljoap ale <
— sJapJo aseyaind uo siseq aoueul Bunp padojansp aseyo.nd Buisiel jo aouenodwil sJapJo aseyoind aiaym ‘spodal uondaoxg € +—
Jejnbas e uo siabeuew o} panss| 9q 0} swa)shs 3y} UO sJasn dVS ||B O} panssi :se sBuiy) yons uo paseq ssouejeq pue | 0L'€8
Buiagq mou aJe spodal uolydaox3 e/u vr aoueldwo) usaq Apealje aney siapuiway MO sy09y0 awos a%e|d ul Buipind Jepisuo) ‘02
‘Aladoud Jo pesH wLsu| yum ‘sesod.ind juswabeuew
uoounfuod ul usyeuspun agq o Ainseay} 10} uonewlojul apiaoid pue dNY
BU} UIUIM MOJ4 YSED U} Yiim pajelbajul
‘dV'S Ul paAalyoe aq p|nod siy} dVS uo pajuswajdwi aq 8q 0} UOIJEWLIOJUI [BIDUBUIL BY) S|JBUS ||IM oY
moy pue Buljiyoud jo syysuaq ayy ueo ssaooud siy} moy ajebysanul sIy} — suapenb ssouoe 186png ayj ajyoid 1'€8
ssasse 0} palinbal sI Y1o0Mm aI0p e/u vr 1102 Jequeldes 0} paJinbal sI YJom Jayun4 moT | 0} 8|qe Buleq Jo Jyouaq }S00 8yj JapIsuo) ‘6l
‘puads Jeak ainynj pue ua.InNd
‘Jeah aid spnjoul 0} pais)e
(1 Buraq ase suodas Bulioyiuop
sepenb) | |0z 3des ‘S|qe|i_AE SI uojeulojul paLInoul s}s09 pue }abpnqg panoidde yioq
1ouige) o} Jodal alaym sieal ssoloe syebpnqg BWBYDS B JO MBIAIBAO 819|dWod B aABY
ul aq ||im sebueyo swayos moys [|m swweiboud 0} JOpIO Ul ‘Uo)dedul Woly sIeak [eroueuly
(sswayos Modai Bupiojuop |eyded 91-GL0Z 0} ZL-1 10T Ss0IoE uwm.U:Q hw.wc._wsom ay) >>.ch 9
Mau 4o} joA paiinbai usaq awuweiboid 8y} uo uodal Jouiged 8yl ‘dvSs
Jou sey jnq —eoeyd ur sisiy| ) M3INBI ZL/LL Joy judy | ul sieaf [eloueuly ssosoe syebpng ‘sasodind |0J3u02
“-anjeA Buippe/buiiom dvs wolj aaesadQ awayos moys o} a|qissod si } pue Buliojiuow 396pnq 1o} uoiewIOUI
S}l Jaylaym JapIsuod pes| aJow apinod [im yoiym ‘sbuipesy

I XIAN3ddV




‘spodal juswabeuew

108foud yum sy} ssedwos

pue uoiew.Joyul a)ep o} puads
J0 @snh alow ayew 0} adueul

(poalbe aq

0} uoneuaws|dwi
Joj ajep ) 200
wswabeuep
108(0ud

Aq 1no pajlol
Buleq Buniodal
10} swaishAg

‘eleudolidde
se siabeuew

wnlio4 [eyden 'y
"18p|oH
196png ay) Aq dv'S wouy
puads pue jJuswiuwod

Jojluow 0y dysjoesn ‘¢
JeploH

1obpng ay) 0} pajussald g
epuabe

dnoug a10p oefoud sy |

"981N0J JO JS)jew e se
sbuneaw j08foud 8109 1B paispisuod pue
passnosip AjoAioe ale spuodal yons jey)

palnsua ag p|NOYS }| "UINJINO }SEIBI0)

‘(swwesboud 109l0.ud pue 'J0 Lied se pamainal B pue S}S02 papiwwod ‘sjep 0} }1S00
uolewW.IOjSUB.} 10} Se) pesg| sJapjoy 196pnq sI pue swwelboud josfoid |enjoe 1s09 pajabpng jiejap Ajjeoyioads
Buniodas soueuly spisbuole Jis 0} O} HI ‘@ouBUl YIm 3y} yum subife jey) Joyonisuoo yorym sjosfoud |e oy paonpoud JMd
Bunuodal 108loid aAoays alow sBuneaw sonpoJjul ay) Ag psonpold aq 0} — Moy} aq pJnoys syodali soueul} 308loid ‘6l
90NpOoJlul 0} paau e sl alay | e/u vr 0] 1102 [udy yseo jo08loid jo asn sy} ainsug ybiy snosuelodwajuod pue aAisusyaidwo) ez
‘(Jeulaixa pue |eusaul Yoq)
S99} JO SAISN|OX3 IO SAISN|OUI
uo J1espo aq 0} sjunowe jabpng
‘(s)iunowe 1abpng pue apod <t
Ayuan 0y Jap|oH 19bpng Aqg paubis <
aq 0} ew.o}-0id BuILOISSILIWOY A
"100/0.d
3y} 10} S9P0O-CNS pue IBISEN
pJooal 0} wioj BuluoIssIlWwo)
‘paalbe pue pasiioyine ussq
sawayos g|L/L | 0} palidde eq o] sey sIy} Moy moys 0} ssaso.d ‘paJinbal
‘swwelboud JusJiedsuel) e aq jsnw alay) Se S)S09 JO sallobs)eo-gns Jo sishjeue
(‘sweans Buipuny o} seje|ay) |endeo pue sweal)s Buipuny Jueas|al ue Mojje jey} sepoo-gns ajelidoidde | DOAAD
ZL/1L 1 01 uoneal [|e MOUS 0} pa}onJisuod ag isnw yum 108foid yoes 1o} paysijgeise 1
9)e|dwo) | e an ulal 110z IMdy | swaydg |eyde) ay) siy} Joaye ol ybIH 8q p|noys apod Jsjse| d|buls v K44

(pauaddey 104 10U) siseq
Alyjuow e uo Joyoauq sjelodio)

I XIAN3ddV



L

3y} JO SUONIPUOD pue SWId | M3IABJ B yBnouy) paysi|ge)se si Jojoeljuod
3y} pue ojjody pue Jaiy yiog jo M3U/IBIY Yim sjuswabuelle [einjoenuod | OAAd
‘pPaoUBWILIOD uswainooud Joy suodal Jauige) ayj Jo Buipuejsiapun aaisuayaidwod ‘8
MBIABI B2IAISS JSPIAA e/u 1a/Hg LLoZ aunp ul Jno 18s AjJes|o sem siy | MO B Jey} 2Insua }snw |IounoD ay | ‘8¢
9JUeuldA0D)
"S)SLI/SaNnss| 9say) ‘saljjeuad/suonipuod
Amuenb/Auapl 0} paubisap uelb pue suoneoidwi
alejdwia) sy} Yum sased ssauisng anuanal Buiobuo ‘sysu Buipuny 0} oY
Jo} ssao0.d Bunjew uoisiosp pJebal Buiney suljadid sy} ul Jo padojeasp | 0Z'€'8
paysi|igeiss ¢ 3 ¢ SWealsHIoN €/ gsd Loz Aine 9y} Ul pessalppe aq |Im Siy] | wnips|y Buteq sawayos sjuelb |je mainay A4
‘Aunnuios pue abus|ieyo
judy wol gso "'Z1-110Z Buunp psoueyua Jadoud sjey|ioe) 0} UoEWIoUI JUBIDIYNS oY
pes| (1 Jopuenb) aq ||im suodal Bulioyiuow pue apnjoul pue ‘awwelbold paroidde ayy | 6L°¢'8
Jodai jauiqe) :92uaping 0} SH 1 10Z Jaquisydag ‘syjebpnqg awayos [B}0} MOYS |[IM 0 sieaf [eroueuly ay; ssoloe swwelboud +
sebueyo | swuweiboud [eydes 91-GL0Z 01 21 I a|oym ayj uasald pjnoys siaquiswi | 81°¢'g
19b6.e} uQ e/u an uodals Buioyiuoly -110Z 9y} uo uodal JouIges ay | pPaN 0] Burioyiuow 12bpnq jeudes ay | ieY4
‘(pajuswajdwi
Apealje ) |oA9] swayos je o
‘lons| swiayos | uodal |im suodas Bullojuow pue ‘sweal]s <
Jodal Jauige :92uaping smoys (g Jauenb) ‘sjebpnqg swiayos |B}0} MOYS |[IM Buipuny uey; Jayjeu sjosfoid/sewayos € +—
LL- 0102 sebueyo | swweibouid |eyuded 91-GL0zZ 01 ZL uo pasnooy} aq pjnoys Buoyuow 6€8
a)9|dwon e/u an uodals Bulioyiuop -110Z 9y} uo uodal JouIged ay | pPaN pue Buipod ‘swwelboid |jesano ay| ford
‘passalppe ale S|gexiom
SIy} &ew o} sa|iqixaly paJinbal
0] S9[oe}sqo Aue ey} ainsua
0} @oe|d ul Ajualind sassaoo.d
By} JaPISU0D [|IM Z WEBIISHION
‘a0e|d saye) aoueInap
ou Buunsua ul IsISSE ||IM WEes)
‘syoafoud aoueUly 8y} pue siapjoy 1abpnq
8y} JO |0JjUOD |elOUBUl BY) usamjaq sdiysuoneal bupjiom
0] Bunejal ¢ pue g weansyiom as0|) "Buipoosiw jo suoneoldwii
Jo 1ed se pasapisuod ay) pue saljjiqisuodsa. Jiay)
aq ||IM 8SaY | ‘paAowal puelisiapun Aayj} 1y} ainsus 0} ("ybiH
s| Buipoosiw Joj paau ay} uaAIb aq |im Buiuiely sjeldoiddy 2IOWIIYAA SEM PasI|iIn 8p00 8y} Seoue)sul
ainsua 0} jsisse |Im Bunabpng ‘Buisseooud a210AUI pue yjog U] "S|ooyds yiog Jo} Sjuswales
Jayeq pue siapio aseyoaind sJaplQ aseyoind Joy a|qisuodsal JUNOD2R [BUl} BY} 1O} PasI|iIn 8p00 doUeUl
40 3ndui 8y} jo uonesijeuoney aq M Asyy pue ‘siapjoy Juaiayip e sem alay} Jey} pajou am (1€'9) | OMd
‘sJap|oy 186pnq Aq pabeuew 196pnq 0} paieoo)e Alles|o aq "apo9 josloid ajeudoidde )
Kjoanoe Bulaq Apualing si sy ¢ | 1a/Hg LLozaunpe | |I1m S8pP0D 10D 10} AJljIqEIUNODDY ybiH 3y} 0] pap0oo g p|noys sisod 108(oid A

I XIAN3ddV



8

Kq pabeuew Ajaaioe buiaq aq ||Im sainpaoold pue sassaooud yoea o} paalbe aq pjnoys sanijiqisuodsal Il
— paysl|gelss ¢ WeallSHIoNA ¢ | a/Hg LLozAen aoueulanob y0sfoid ay | ybiH | 1o Weyd pue ainjonJs aoueuIaA0b Jes|o v ‘1€
"uoISsSnosIp
pue Bunuodas uonidaoxs o} pasn
‘e pue g sl sIy} Jey; pue 108foid yoes jo sjoadse
sweasyiom ybnouyy soueuianob K&y uo pauodal Buiag sjnpayos [aAg)
108(oud pue sjelodiod pajepdn ybiy ||esano ue si aiayj jey} buunsus pue
pue [1I9uno?) 8y} Jo spasu Buiobuo ‘siseq Jeinbal e uo jualo ayj 01 buniodal
3y} 199W 0} uonoun) 82IAISS [ew.loy ‘sainpado.d Jus)sisuod pue
‘pPaysI|gelss € pue Auadold ayj jo Bunnjonysal Jes|0 Jo uoneoidde ay :Buipnjour ‘weas | oY
Z SWEeal}SIOM pue pasuawwod pue M3IA3J B JO UOIIeuIquIoD sjoalold |eloadsg ay} Jo Juswabeuew ¥'Z8
MB3IABI B2IAISS JSPIAA e/z | 1a/Hg LLoZ aunp e ybnouyy dn payoid aq [im siy] | wnipajy aouewlopad pue uonesado ay} mainey ‘0¢
‘pasn aq p|noys siojesipul Aoy
Buisn syosloid || Jo JojuoW |euwlLio) aiow
V ‘uonesiuebio sy} uiyim poojsiapun
Alieso ajol s1vy} pue asodind 1o} 314
sjuswabuelie aoueusanob 10soid ale asay) buunsua ‘dnois) Juswabeuel oY
pue 8)e1odiod JO M3IABI By} 10BJJU0D pue pieog diysisuped dibsjens £7 ©
‘pPaysI|gelIse ¢ g Z SWeansyIop N HY LLoZ aunp Jo 1ed se passalppe o9 [IM SIYL | wnipay 3y} woly suoneoadxa ay} MaInay : M
‘aAljIsod
aJe S)|Nsal 8y} pue uayeuapun
uSaq Sey |00ydS SJOWYAA
au} Jo yo ubls pleqoay] g
Jauipies) ay} Jo mainal dopsep v
"uolepowwodoe
10} paaU S,|IouNo0) 8y} 198w
0} sjuswalinbal uoioNIISUd
10 Alanap ayy ul Asuow 1oy
anjeA aALIp 0} paubisepal aq ued ‘pajelado si diysisuned
92IAISS B} Jey} 0s sjuswabuelie ay1 1ey) Aem ay} pue juswsbuelie siy}
juswainooid Bunsixs ay) Ul palinoui S}sod ay} [|e 0} pJebal Buiney
10 MBIABI [BJUSWIEPUNY B SBPN|OU| ‘Aauow 1o} anjeA siaAlep Juswabuelle
Iouno) ay} Jo spaau Buiobuo sy diysiauped juaiind ay} ey} J|asi ainssy
JoaWl 0} uonoun} adlAleg Auadold
8y} Jo BuLinjonusal pue malnal "JoBju0D
ay} ybnouyy dn paxoid aq |im siy L 1US.1IND 3} JO YIomawel) ay} Ulyum
Aauouwl 1o} anjea aAalyoe 0} saiunyuoddo
‘au ay) ay) Buisiwixew s 1oUN0Y 8y} Jey) oY
1e JJels 0} 9|ge|leA. apew Joeluod alnsua [IM SIY| 1oesjuod Bunsixa ay Jo 128

I XIAN3ddV



LLIEO/OL
UoljeJapISU0D [eyIul 9SO

e/u

dH

as90 Aq
paulwlialep 8q 0]

‘938D AQ uoneIspISUoD Io}
‘MBIASJ 9OUBINSSE/20UBUIBAOL)
aAIsuayaldwoo axyeuspun

Mo

‘seale AyJold uo passnooy
SI aWI} Jaquiaw ey} 8insus 0} ainjonijs
80UBUISA0B S,[10UN0Y BY) MBIASY

dH
g€

pajuswadwi
£¢ uoljepuswwooal
90U0 92e|d 9e] [|IM MBIASI V|

e/u

ML

L 10¢ sunr Jsyy

ajeudoidde se g0 Buinjonul
‘9N0Qe €€ M3IASI 0} }Ipne |eulaju]

wnipajy

"SIaquIB\
pue g9 0} papodal si jeym Buioyuow
Ul 9a)iwwon AunnIoS @ MSIAIBAQ dU} B
1pNy [BUlSlU| JO S3|0J 2NJN} BY) JBPISUC)D

dH
e

paysi|qeIse £ SWealjSHIoN

gsd

L10g8unr

Iouno) 8y} ssouoe sjosfold
[eydeo jo 10adsal ul uoiBUIOLUI
Jo Buniodal pue Buloyuow

ay} Jo} sjuswabuelle sjeldoidde
pue pajepdn ysi|ge}sa [|Im yoIym
aoueuIanob a1e10diod Jo mairal
2y} Ag dn paxoid Buleg s siyL

ubiH

‘Aiqissaooe pue
aoueAsjal ‘ssausle|dwond syl pue ‘gs)
® sIaquiaW 0} pajodal SI Jeym MaIAsy

dH
€€

‘Payslige}sa
€ WEealSHJOM puUB PaoUSWILLIOD
MB3IABI BOIAIBS JBPIAA

1d/Hd

L10g8unr

‘pabieyosip suolepuswILWLOo9al
Uim 0L0c/L0/Le

pajep MalAal Jipny |eulaju| ue

0} J0algns sem ssaooud Aemajes
8} Jeys psjou 8qg pinoys jj
‘cpueg

sweasnsylom ybnoly} soueusanoh
109(0ud pue sjelodioo pajepdn
pue [12unoD 8y} Jo spaau Bulobuo
3y} 198w 0} uoiouny a2IAISS
Auadold ayj jo Bulinjonysal

pue M3IA3J B JO UOI}eUIquIoD

€ yBnouyy dn paxoid aq [Im siy L

PSIN

“usyepspun
8g p|noys 39D UIYlIM sainpasoid
pajuswinoop Bunsixe ay} Jo MalAsl Y

147

OMd
Sl
4%

‘Speay 80IAI8S WiIaul

‘sjoafoud Jo joJju0d
|eloueuly pue juswabeuew
108loud usamiaqg saoeB}uI

ay) Buuspisuod Ajnjaied
a|qeoljdde se sweansyIom

Jay}o ay} pue siyj o} buiejal
salnpasoid pue sassaoold

|e jo Led se pajelsusb

ag |[Im saijigisuodsal pue

S9|0J JE3|D "MBIASI € WEaJ)SHIOM
ay} Jo Jed se palapisuodal

‘399 Aq pabeuew jos(oid

OMd

I XIAN3ddV



ol

ybnouy; dn payoid aq |im syoadse ‘Jey) ssaoo.d pajelbajul ue aney o0}
IV ‘uona|dwod o0} uondasuod JapJo Ul sassaoold g pue | Aemaleo) ayy
‘'speay 92IAI8S WIS woJ} sassaooud j0sfoid yum juswdojanap 1ebpnq |euded ayj jo oY
Aq pabeuew Ajaanoe buiaqg pue Aq pajosye s yoiym juswalinbal Hed wioj yoiym sassaooid aseo ssauisng A R)
paysi|ge)ss ¢ @ ¢ WeaJ}SHIoON €/C | 1d/Hd L10C sunr Buibues spim e sisiy] | wnipajy pue uofjedlijuspl swsyads sy} suiquod 44
"uoIsSIoap 10303l
10 oljoj}10d ‘yduiqe) b8 [anas| j0sloid
pue awayos je swwelbold [euded ay;
JO s|ie}ap ayj buiealibe oy sjuswebuelle oY
"UOIN}IISUOD BY} Ul pajos|yal aq 3y} ‘SjUsWINO0P S2UBUISAOD) L'e'8
e/ dH 1 L0Z Joquisjdag | [IIm siy} paje|dwod }Jom |je 2ouQ | wnipaly s,/lounog 8y} uiyim ino 3es Aes|n o
‘AN
pes| ul paiinbai jeaosdde j1ouno) |in4
Ol Hr ‘Kelql Ul 18uigen o} payodal aq ‘diysiauped uoioniisuo) ay) 0} uonelal oYy
0] — }no palled ag o0} suone|nbal ul sjuswabuelle uonesloyine Joesuod 128
ssalboud uj e/u vr Loz Aine |elouBUL JO MBIABI [|N4 PoIN | suonenbay |eloueuld syl ojul sxelodioou] ‘8€
suoie|nbay |eloueul
3y} Joddns yoiym panssi ale
$s900.d pus 0} pus ay} Loddns
pes| 0} SaINPad0.d |eloueul ainsug 00
O} Hr 'seljiAljoe esay) <
ainyded 0} panssial pue pasinal M
ssalboud uj vr 110z [udy aq 0} uonebajep Jo sawayos "'sepo2 19bpng pue
sjaliq anss| pue ‘syuswnoop dNY ubis
‘suoie|nbay |eloueul{ pasiAal Ul pue aaibe ‘sjuswaaibe uoissassodalid oYy
P2JaA0D puUB € B Z SWEIISHIOM ubis 01 Aloyjne ayj suone|nbal jeloueuly 978
‘PaYsI|ge)SS ¢ B ¢ SWEBIISHION ¢/c | 1d/Hg LLogaunr ybnouyy dn paxoid aq o PSN aU} ypm aj1ouodal % Ino J8s Aes|H ‘8¢
‘a)Is
uo Buiuels ‘6 e Aiaaldp ul saijeonoeid
‘'suone|nbay [eioueul{ pasIAal Ul 0} anp pamoj|o} Buiaq jou ale sassaooid oY
PaJaA0D PUB € ¥ Z SWEeal}SHIOM paalbe uaym Joj Jjo ubis Juswabeuew GZ8
"PBUSIIJEISS € 9 7 SWEIISHIONA e/z J1a/Hg LLOZ aunre ybnouyy dn payoid eq o] | wnipspy | Joiuas yum ssaooud uondwaxa ue sjeal) ‘)€
‘Klessadau aloym Joenuo)
ay} ojul pajelodiooul pue “JJomawiely 92ueuIBA0B s |lIouno)
paalbe aq |Im J0JonJIsuo ay} By}l ulyum suonejoadxs ay} Juswa|dwod
wlol} syuswalinbal jeuoiippe Auy pINoys SIy| ‘}NsaJ e Se uoljejuawnoop
‘Weal}syIom aoueuianob paalibe 0} sabueyo Alessaoau
‘paysi|gelsa 109(0.d By} pue uoiouny AJIAIBS Aue Buiyew ‘1es|d pue asiou09 ale asay} oYy
€ WEeaJISYIOM pue pasuswwoo Auadold ay} Jo mainal ay) aInsua 0} Jauled UoioNLISUOD S) YlIMm AL
MB3IABI B2IAISS JSPIAA ¢ | 1a/Hg LLoZ aunp ybnouy; dn payoid Buiag si siy] | wnipajy salnjonuis asueulanob joaloid mainey ‘o¢

I XIAN3ddV



Ll

Buunsua saniqisuodsal pue
sajoJ Buiynsal pue sainpaocoid
pue sassado.id pajielap
BU} UIM € 9 T | Swealsyiom
ybnouy; dn payoid aq |jim syoadse ‘uewlieyd ay;
Iy "uons|dwod 0} uondaouod pue saspuaje Jo 8|0l 8y} 0} Se Ajuejo pue
‘'speay 82IAI9S WLIdUI woJ} sassaoold j0sfoid Aigisuodsal sjeiodiod pauysp Alesio oY
Aq pebeuew Ajannoe buiag pue Aq pajosye si yoiym juswalinbal e yum Buoje 1sixa 0} Senuiuod JI jl wnio4 | L1'€'8
paysi|geisa ¢ 9 g WealSHIONA z J1a/Hg LLOZ aunre Buibue. spim e si siy) uieby | wnipajy [eydeD sy} Joj aousI8)al JO SWIs) 9a1by B4
‘Buipeal
10 8sea pue Ajiejo ainsus 0} 9|qissod se
SHEUOMOJ} JO 8Sh yonul Se ayew pjnoys
S9]0U sainpadold asay] "SjusWalIA
palLed bulag 10 |enoidde ay) pue saijigisuodsal
sabueyd Japim uo juspuadap si pesg| pue sajol apnjoul 0} ‘pauaddey
sy} Janemoy — sajou ainpaoold 0] HN ‘panssial pue sey jeym 4o b ay) ul pamalnal aq 0} oY
0] papuadde pue pajepdn pasiAal 8 ||IMm Salou ainpado.d paau suonenbay |eroueuld ay) uoddns 0} 8'¢'g
aq 03 uonejussaid Buluiel | e/u vr LLoz Aeln awuwelbolid [eyden ayl | wnipapy | se8jou ainpasosd swwelbolid [euded ay o
‘uone|dwod 0y Juswabeuew nAv_.u
100l0.1d anIsusyaidwod ~—
pue jualois pue ‘sjosfoid jo
suoljo9|es pue salbajel)s 1091100
Buunsus saniqisuodsal pue
sajoJ Buiynsal pue sainpaocoid ‘Bunjew uoisiDap wiojul 0}
pue sassado.id pajielap JapJo ul swwelboid |eyden ayy buieaibe
By} YIM € 9 Z ‘| SWEaISHIOM 1auIge) ayj o3 Joud asayy bunsjdwos
ybnouy; dn payoid aq |jim syoadse 0] UaAIB ag p|noys uoielapisuon
IV ‘uona|dwod o0} uondasuod "suoneoldwi snuanal Buiobuo se
‘speay 82IAISS WLIdUI woJ} sassaooud josfoid [1om se ‘Buipuny Jo aARoadsall ‘swayos oY
Aq paebeuew Ajaanoe buiaqg pue Aq pajosye s yoiym juswalinbal 9)9|dwoo 8y} JnOge UoiBWIOUI SpN|oUl yeg
PaysI|geISe € % 7 WEealISHION ez | 1a/Hg LLoZ aunp Buibues spim e s siy} dA0ge Sy ybiy 0} paJinbal aq p|noys sased ssauisng Nad

‘uone|dwod 0y Juswabeuew
100l0.1d anIsusyaidwod

pue jusiole pue ‘syosloid jo
suoljos|as pue salbs)el)s 1081100
Buunsus saljiqisuodsal pue
saj0J Bunnsal pue sainpaosold
pue sassaoold pajielep

3y} YIM € @ T ‘| sweal}syiom

"SI} Yim aul| uj jday
s| alnypuadxa ey} pue sjge|ieAe Buipuny
pue jo6pnq |[BJSA0 8U} JO M3IA 3|BuIS € SI

2J8Y} 1By} sainsus pue ‘uoiealdnp spioAe
‘g)elidoidde asaym saipnis Ajljigisesy
10} sepinoid ‘sajewysa 1509 sanoldwl

I XIAN3ddV



¢l

‘yelp 20uUBUIBaA0D JO MaInaL JapIm By} ‘so|0J JO AJIE|D SI @18y} ainsus oY
ul —ndul | Yum g1/1L10Z 4o} yum ubije oy speau siy] ‘aoueul 0] swwelboud |eydeo ayy 0} pepinoid | 21°€°8
padojansp Buiag ssaooid maN e/u an 1102 [4dy UIYJIM paljlie|o uaaq aney sa|0y poN | Moddns jualind ay} maiAal pjnoys aoueul ‘BY
‘uona|dwod o} Juswabeuew
100l0.1d anIsusyaidwod
pue jualois pue ‘sjosfoid jo
suoljo9|8s pue salbajel)s 1091100
Buninsus sanjigisuodsal pue
soj0J Bunynsal pue sainpasdoid
pue sassa20.d pajielep "S|oA9| Juswsbeuew sjelodiod
By} YIM € % Z ‘| SWEaISHIOM pue [ejuswiiedap ylog je smainal
ybnouy; dn payoid aq |jim syoadse aQ p|noys alay] 1duIgeD pue wnio4
IV ‘uona|dwod o0} uondasuod [eude) ayj ‘eAneuasaldal adIAISS Jual|D
‘speay 92IAI8S Wd)uI woJ} sassaoo.d j09foid 8y} uo pasnooy sieadde juasalid e yoiym oYy
Kq pabeuew Ajaaioe buieq pue Aq pajosye si yoiym juswalinbal ‘Burioyuow [eydes ul Juswabeuew Joluss | 91’8
PaysI|geIse € % 7 WEeal}SHION Z | a/Hg LL0Z aunp Buibues spim e s siy} dA0ge Sy ybiy JO JUSWISA|OAUI 8J0W 8( 0} Spasu aJay | ‘8
EYRERRI
8|gelns e ysl|jgeiss pue siy)
uoddns 0y paJinbal sa0I1nosal ay)
puejsiapun 0} paJinbai si Ylom o
"UOIBWLIOUI [BIOUBULY pes| alol\ ‘sauojsajiw 0afoud Asy jo O
apisbuoje pauodal pue pe)o9||0o Ol Hr syoaloud JUSWSAS3IYOR pue a)ep 0} puads ‘sj09foid ay) UIyIM SBuU0ISIjIW pue c T
aq |[IM uolnjew.oul Juswabeuew passasse sl |Eenjoe. UO SJUBWIWOoD apn|oul MOJ} Ysed ay} woJ} asuabijaul syelodiooul | gL'
109l0ud moy apiosp 0} pasN e/u vr uo — 110z |udy pinoys sa|npayos Buliojiuoly MO p|noys sa|npayos BuLiojiuow ay | I
"'sau0)sa|iw Joalo.d Japisuod pjnoys siy |
‘s109(oid paseydal 0y piebal sejnoijied
‘'speay 92IAI8S Wia)uI Buiney yoeoidde paseq ysu |e21[2A oY
Aq pabeuew Ajaaioe bulieq pue B U0 smalAal Josfoud pajielep Buiyeuspun | ¢L°€'g
paysi|ge)ss ¢ @ ¢ WEeaJ}SHIoON ¢ | 1d/H4 LLogsunr ‘9A0QEe SY | WnIpsy JapIsuod pjnoys wnlio4 [eyded ay L ‘oF
‘'speay 92IAI9S WSl "90UBJa)al JO SWIS) 8y} oY
Aq pebeuew Ajaanoe buiaqg pue 0] pJebal Buiney sjendoidde sy ainsus | ZL'€'8
paysl|geIse € % g WEeal}SHION Z | a/Hg LL0Z aunp "9A0Qe SY | WnIpa|y 0} WNJo4 3y} jo diysiaquiau MaIASY ‘G
'L10C 924

ur gS9 0} swod 0} juswdoaasp
urdrd e pue gs9 Aq psaibe
uaaq sey ajepuely 108loid v
‘uone|dwod 0} jJuswabeuew
1090ud anIsuayaidwoo

pue jusiols pue ‘sjosfoid jo
suoljo9|as pue saibsjel)s 1081100

I XIAN3ddV




€l

paysi|geise g WeansyIop z 1a/Hg LLozaunr | e Joj10efoid QO ue uoissiwwo) | wnipsy Jo Buipueyisiapun paleys e dojensq G
"sbunesw
L:Z:l Jeinbai pue s,gvd| S1ep 0}
dn aAey || paulaou0d swes) ay) ‘soe(d 'sQvd| pue s}:| Jejnbas Buisn oY
Ul 4ejs Jey} ainsus o} 90 pue Hg Buiobup ur L1 ‘110z uer psie|dwoo s|enplAlpul Jo Juswabeuew souewlopuad 298
SO Yjoq ui uaxe) Buieq uoloy e/ ciee) pue L Q¢ sunr I'2d Ul sSmalAal Jeak-piwl |1 ybiH swes} 390 pue SJ ayj ul juswsjduw| ‘€g
juswdojanaq |euonesiuebip
9
poliad 03 dn Ajuo sI JuswWWOD 3y} pue
palinouil Ajluans aq 0} pajoadxa sI puads
JI quadsiano aq ||i3s p|nod ‘puads Jo %08
s ‘slaplo aseyolind o} uone|a. Buimoys juswWWod e sey yolym josfoid
"uoljoB/UoISSNISIpP 40} S1 NG 90IAI8S ul soeld ulind aq |[Im S|0JUOD e ‘uonelnsn||i jo Aem Ag ‘ss|gelanliep
0} se0b BuiyjAians sianoo jey) paleys pue s)oayo |euonippe ‘108fo.d pue ssjeosawly Inoqe AJLe|o s alayy H
Jodal soueldwod suo ainsug yum Juswiainooid ayj Jo Jed sy ‘Buiyosyo pue Bulioyuow ul snjea jo Ajuo
‘dn paulol aje soueuly aslel| S| SJUBWI}ILUWIOD JO UOISN[OUIl 8} 8Sneoaq
pue S92IAI9S paleys ainsus 0} sdg ZL-1102 ‘90UBApE Ul SIaplo ‘idope 0} yoeoidde ayj Jopisuod pjnoys
0] paau — sJaplo aseyaind @oueulq BuLinp padojansp aseyo.nd Buisiel jo aouenuodwil [1ouUNoY 8y} ‘siy} Buissalppe u| "panisdal oY
uo siseq Jejnbal e uo siebeuew 9q 0} swa)shs BU) U0 SJasn dVS ||e 0} panss| uaaq aAeY S92I0AUI JB)e pasiel Buiaq Jo L¢
0] panssi buiaq mou ale suoday e/u vr aoue|dwon usaq Apealje aney sispulway | wnipaly | pasies buiaq jou siapio aseyaind ssalippy . mnlu
—
‘Speay 92IAI9S WIdUI ‘sjoafoud [eydeo oY
Kq pabeuew Ajaaioe bulieq pue uo pasn buieq ABojopoyiaw Juswabeuew V'8
paysl|geise € 9 Z WeallSHIoON Z =I%e) L10Z aunp anoge sy ybiy 108(0.1d Jo suonejoadxs s)l aolojuley ‘1S
‘uone|dwod 0} Juswabeuew
1090ud anIsuayaldwoo
pue jusiole pue ‘syosloid jo
suoljos|as pue salbs)el)s 1081100
Buunsus saljiqisuodsal pue
soj0J Bunynsal pue sainpasdoid
pue sessao0.d pajielep
3U} YIM € @ T ‘| Swesssyiom
ybnouyy dn payoid aq |Iim sjoadse
Iy "uons|dwod 0} uondaouod
‘'speay 22IAI8S WLsUI wo.lj} sassaooud josfoid ‘sj08fo.d a|yoid oY
Kq pabeuew Ajaaioe bulieq pue Aq pajoaye s yoiym juswalinbal ybiy ‘cibsjels jo buriojuow pue Buiodal L'y'8
paysl|geise € 9 Z Weal}SHIoON Z | a/Hg L10Z aunp Buibues spim e si SIy} aA0ge sy ybiy a1elodioo sy} Jo Aoenbape ay) mainey ‘05

sjuawalinbal

ay} jo Buipuejsiapun Jes|o

B 9ABY PAAJOAULI [|E Jey} INSuUd
0] swwelboid |eydeo ayy Jo}

yBisiano oibaien;s syenbape

S| @Jay) pue Jeso aJe suolneoadxe

I XIAN3ddV




142

Jo a|dwes uasoyds Ajwopuel aouelInsse apinoid pjnom jey} aosueinsse | OAAd
e Jo malnal dnoub Jaad oy dn Jos 109(0ud juspuadapul jo swweiboud eC
"PBYSIIJEISS € ¥ 7 SWEaIISHIONA e/z | 1a/Hg LLogaunpe | 8q 0} ssaooud [enuue oijewalsAS | wnipapy | e Buionpoujul JapIsuod pinoys [1Iouno) ay | ‘09
"s109(oud Buibeuew
10} syuswabuelle pajepdn
8y} UO [1I9un0Y 8y} ssoloe Buluiely
pUB UOIJEDIUNWWOD YjoJ 10}
ue|d uonoe pue Absjelis e asinap OMd
0] 8] ||IM € PUB Z SWEaJ}SHIOM ‘padojanap aq pjnoys z2
‘PaYSI|ge]Sd € ' Z SWEBIISHIONN ¢z | 1aHg LLozZ aune ybnouyy uonoe oy0ads v | wnipap ueld uoieoIUNWWOD aAIsuayaldwod v ‘65
"pPaJapISu0d aq 0} |IoUN09
3y} ssouoe suonesijdwl JapIAA as?D ‘ajeudolidde se suondiiosap
gol ojul psjelodiooul g 0} pasu ‘a)ep 0} dn pue ajeldoidde JMd
‘AIBuipioooe ao1ApE 0} [IM M3IAB) 8y} woly Bupjnsal aJe [I2UN0Y 8y} SSOJOE S|ENPIAIPUI [|B 10} 8l
HH Anpgisuodsal Juswabeuey e/u Ja/Hg 1102 Jlequisydas saniqisuodsal pue sajod 8yl | wnipapy | suonduosap qol jeyy painsua aq pinoys ‘8G
‘uanIb aoinpe ay) jo Ajlenb ayj jo
JUSWISSOSSE UE JO SW.)} Ul uonjoe
dn mojo; ajeridoidde uo uaye)
8q Uay} ued uoisioap e ‘sainby
1081402 8y} Ajjuspl 0} usxe) ‘usyelspun Ql
Buieq uonoy ‘seale J0OJ} }INg pue aq pjnoys awweibolid [eydeo jooyos ayy | DA LO
pauue|d usamjaq Aouedalosip 10} (Sueynsuo9 1s09) |99 Ag papinoid A
ssalboud u| e/u Ja/Hg LLoZ aunp | |enusjod B woJu) Sasle Uoioe 8yl | wnipa 20IApe Jo Ajijenb ay} Jo Juswissasse uy Ae
1ounod sy
JO s}salsjul 1saq 8y} ajowo.d 0} 8q pjnoys
annoalgo buipuiano ay] sainpaosoid
pue swajsAs jJueasial ay} yym Ajldwos
0} aln|ie} JO UIBOUOD JO SBNSS| JO SOUBPIAS
S| alay) usym uoijoe anoeold Buiye)
sapnoul siy| ‘suonjeinbay |eroueul
ay} ul b Jno 18s se sanjigisuodsal sy}
pue sjojjuod yum A[dwods sjenpiaipul jeyy oY
Judy AjJes Bunesw ainsus 0} Ajjelausab alow pue Ajjeoiioads €68
e/u 9990 Loz Aine 99D IXaU dY} Je JapISU0D aq 0 MOT papasu S| UOIJOB JeyM JapISU0D) el
"aAIle}lWI Juswainooud <[Ye)
ay} Jo Jed se pajo|id aq 0} 1B SIaUMO Uoljoe % sulod uonoe
RepAeme ggo ay je paaibe sem Bulobuo Buiealbe Aq uels 1ng ‘Aepheme Aujigejunoooe juswabeuew dH
aoueldwod uo siseydwa mau e/u as9 pue |10z uer gSD Je palepisuod g 0] | wnips|y dojanap % 1oddns 0} moy Japisuo) ‘GG
"7 Weassyiom ‘Hels
Jo ped se dn payoid eq 0 Joiunl Ag uaxepspun yJom jo Buipiodal
‘slabeuew pue jybisiano 1210 Joluas ajeudoidde dH

I XIAN3ddV



Gl

3|qenaoay/a|qehed sjunoddy ajelodio)

dnolg) adsueulanos) ajelodio)

pieog Absjels ajelodio)

(eoueuly) Jabeuey 108loid jeyden wusiu|

Juswiainoold - Jabeuep aoIAI8S

3|qeAIa0ay d|qeAed sjunoddy ajelodio) ¥ suoisuad - Jabeuel) a2IA8S
JuswuolIAug ¥ AJlunwwo) Jauled ssaulsng aosueul

pun4 uoisuad pue Ainseal] ‘Buijunoddy |eloueul - Jsuped ssauishg
(s@a1niag s,ualp|iy)) Jabeuely wea | swwelbold jende) |00yoS widlu|
(Juswuoaiaug ¥ Ajunwwon) Auadold Jo pesH wLaju|

JUBWIAINJ0.d @ ddUBUI4 JO 10}03lIJ |BUOISIAIQ

3AIN03XT JoIy) JuelsIssy

32INI8S 9oUBUIBNOL) g |efaT Jo Jojoaliq

s, ualp|iy) J0308u1q djelodio)

JuUsWUOIIAUT 9 AJlunwiwo) 10}08.Iq djelodio)

aoueUl JO J0joaIIg MaN

(48] mou) aoueul4 Joyoauq alelodio)

HvO/dvO
999
asd
HN
an
al

F o

g O

hv
1a
Hr
ML
dH
ao
HE
vr
ain

AIM

‘sjuswiedap pue syosfoid jsbuowe
aonoeud 1saq aleys 0} saniunyoddo
wbiybiy osje pue sainpaodoud

paysi|ge)sa s,|Iounod 8y} Yim aoueplodoe
louno) ayy ssoloe sjosfoud ul pabeuew Buiaq ale sjosfoid jeyy

I XIAN3ddV



This page is intentionally left blank

154



zl-unp ziL-key Zl-idy Zl-leN Zl-ged Zl-uer 11-98Q | L-AON 1110 | 1-deg | 1-Bny LL-ne LL-unp L L-Rew | L-idy L L-ley l1-ge4 aulpwil

WYVYD 0} Buroday
Jpny |eutsjul Ag mainal yosfoud jo pug

upny [eussiu| Aq JybisienQ

sjuawabuelly Jo MaIADY

Bulurely Joo1o pue Jaquisy

SjusWaBUBLIE MOU UO UOHIEOIUNWWOD SPIM [IoUr

uonesjunwwoy pue uiun LO

T[]

0)9 S,1 NG ‘wnlio4 [eyded ‘gs) 0} spodas buuoyuow Alyu Y
Jauiqe) o} podas Buuojuow swwelbold |eyde)

sjuawabueny Buioday

swuweisboud [euded jo jeaosdde Jauige)
SPIq JO M3IA3I §SO

sjoued abus|ieyo |eydes/anuanal ajelo3oa8liq

SpIg JO M3IAS] wnIoS [eyde)

SOSED $S8UISNQ UO PasEq Spig JO UoISSIWgNSg

awweiboud |eyide) jo Juawaaiby

lenousddy Jouige)

UOI1B}NSUOD JBp|oyaXelS

s9s5920.d BunsIxa JO MaINSY

19A3] 309f0.d je sjuswabuelie 3dUBUIBAOD

|leaousdde 1ouno)

109fo4d jo uonejuawajdwi Yyjm |9A3] ysu ul abueyd aanesIpu| lenousddy Jouige)

SISPIOYDYEIS YIM UONENNSUOD

suoijenbey [elIoUBLEUI4 PUE UOIN}ISUOD JO MBIASY

92UBUIAA0Y) djelodio)

|enoiddy |1ouno)

lenousddy Jouige)

SISPIOYDYEIS YIM UONENNSUOD

|opow pasodoud asinaqg

|ende) 1oy [9pOoA uoijedo||y ajesodion

|enoiddy |1ouno)

lenousddy Jouige)

SIOP|OYSNE}S UM UOIB}NSUOD

dINV aiepdn pue Absjens |eyde) asinaqg

dINV pue ABajeng [eyded

Suonoy

zl-unp ziL-kew Zl-idy Zl-leN Zl-ged Zl-uer 11-08Q | L-AON 1110 | 1-deg | 1-Bny LL-ne LL-unp L L-Repw | |-idy L L-ley l1-9e4 auljowl]

NVd 103rodd 13A37T HOIH

NOILVOILS3IANI TV.LIdVO FHL OL ISNOdS3Y

¢ XION3ddV




This page is intentionally left blank

156



APPENDIX 3

DRAFT PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT

IMPLEMENTATION OF A CAPITAL STRATEGY AND GOVERNANCE
ARRANGEMENTS

Project Sponsor: Brendon Hills Corporate Director on behalf of CSB.
Project Manger: David Lewis Interim Head of Property

CSB are asked to consider and agree the proposals set out in this report.

Background

The recent Capital Investigation highlighted serious shortcomings and a lack of
robustness in the current arrangements for managing the capital programme with
serious financial and reputational risks for the Council. At a meeting on 5" January
CSB endorsed the recommendations in an initial report and agreed the overall
strategy for responding to the findings involving the introduction of a corporate policy
framework for capital investment and robust arrangements for delivery of the capital
programme. This is an integral part of the wider review of governance across the
Council being overseen by the Director of Legal & Governance Services.

Although the particular problems emerged in the delivery of projects in the Children’s
Service area there is a need to address the issues on a comprehensive basis across
the Council. This Project Initiation Document therefore proposes a corporate
solution involving all capital expenditure in both the General Fund and Housing
Revenue Account. Rather than address the various findings on an individual basis a
fundamental overhaul of existing arrangements is proposed in order to ensure that
the serious risks identified are addressed comprehensively.

The strategy involves 2011/12 being a transitional year during which the new
arrangements are devised and agreed by the Council. In essence this will provide: -

a) The framework for agreement being reached on a 5 year capital programme
as part of the budget preparation arrangements for 2012/13 and the MTFS.

b) The introduction of robust corporate arrangements for the governance and
regular monitoring and reporting of the capital programme.

157



APPENDIX 3

Such action will put in place a clear and transparent framework for how the capital
programme is compiled. Actions being taken now progressively mitigate the risks
identified during 2010/11 (see attached high level project plan) so that there are
robust processes in place which will prevent both lack of governance, i.e. proper
approval processes, and financial mis-reporting. This means there will be a low level
of risk in respect of the financial management of the capital programme and its
delivery. An ongoing review of the arrangements by Internal Audit has been
requested by GARM and there will be regular monitoring of the implementation of the
plan and reports back to GARM during 2011/12 in order to verify that the risk
mitigation measures have been successful it is proposed that a specific review of the
arrangements is undertaken in the first quarter of 2012/13 and the outcome reported
to GARM.

Project Definition

Objectives

The objective of this project is to devise and put into place for 2012/13 onwards a
high quality capital strategy to provide an objective framework for decision making
and robust arrangements for managing the overall delivery of the Council’s capital
programme. This will involve both development of new arrangements and their
implementation in a timely manner during 2011/12 to facilitate budget preparation
and monitoring and reporting of the capital programme.

Project Links

By introducing an overall policy framework for capital investment and robust
arrangements for delivery of the capital programme the project will underpin delivery
of all of the Council’s corporate priorities

Scope

This is a corporate project encompassing all capital investment by the Council both
General Fund and HRA. It includes funding from all sources including specific grant
allocations and disposal receipts.

Outcomes

Removal of the current risks with improved value for money from capital investment
in support of the Council’s policy objectives.

Deliverables

A 5 year strategy to provide a corporate policy framework for decision making on
capital investment to support the delivery of services.

Robust governance arrangements at programme and project level including
appropriate levels of stakeholder engagement in relation to grant allocations.

158



APPENDIX 3
A corporate allocation model for capital resources to ensure objective prioritisation of
projects in line with corporate strategy.

A 5 year capital programme (possibly rising to 10 years) with the introduction of
robust monthly monitoring and reporting arrangements to CSB, Capital Forum and
DMT’s etc with quarterly monitoring reported to Cabinet. It is also intended that
monitoring will be regularly reported to appropriate forums within directorate areas
e.g. the Schools Forum.

Regular reporting to GARM on progress of the project.

Key Milestones
Please see the attached high level project plan the headlines are: -

Introduction of robust quarterly programme monitoring reports to Cabinet by April
2011.

Cabinet agreement of a draft Capital Strategy by June 2011.

Cabinet agreement of a corporate allocation model for capital resources by June
2011

Cabinet agreement on a corporate capital programme by February 2012.

Review of arrangements and risk mitigation verification in 2011/12 and first quarter
2012/13 by Internal Audit.

Benefits

The project will mitigate the current high level of risk around the capital programme
and secure improved value for money through more accurate capital investment to
support the Council’s policy objectives.

Roles and Responsibilities

Project Board CSB

Project Sponsor Brendon Hills, Corporate Director on behalf of CSB

Project Manager David Lewis, Interim Head of Property

Project Team Amanda Henton, Jennifer Hydari, Shirley Jenkins, A N Other

covering the HRA, David Lewis with others co-opted as needed to ensure the right
expertise e.g. project management advice.

159



APPENDIX 3

Risk management

The project itself is a risk mitigation strategy designed to comprehensively address
the findings of the recent Capital Investigation. It will have its own risk register which
will be maintained and reviewed/updated on a regular basis by the Project Team.
The Project Board will review the key risks every time they consider a progress
report on the project. The Governance, Audit and Risk Committee will receive
regular updates on progress including a review of key risks.

Equalities Impact

Assessment to be undertaken but project is expected to have a positive impact on
equalities.

Dependencies/Interdependencies

This is a project of paramount importance which feeds into the overall governance
review and needs to be undertaken as a matter of priority to comprehensively
address the findings of the Capital Investigation thereby reducing the risks to the
Council. Whilst there will be a range of interdependencies across the Council this
project will provide the critical path for putting in place structured and robust
arrangements for the management of capital investment in the delivery of services.

Stakeholder Engagement and Communications

Cabinet, Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee, CSB and appropriate
Directorate Forums through regular reporting — see key milestones above.

160



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7a Treasury Management Strategy Statement (MRP) Prudential Indicators & Minimum Revenue Provision Policy & Strategy 2011/12: Reference from the Cabinet meeting on 10 February 2011
	7b Final Reveune Budget 2011-12 and 2015-16: Reference from the Cabinet meeting on 10 February 2011
	8 INFORMATION REPORT - Audit Plan for 2010 -11
	AuditPlan - Harrow Accounts Final
	Planning report - Pension fund
	2010AnnualGrantLetterFinal0001

	9 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2011/12
	App 1 - Draft IA Plan 1112 v3
	App 2 - Draft IA Plan 1112
	App3_20101104 Corporate Operational Risk Register - November 20

	10 Audit Fee Letter 2011-12
	App_2_Audit_Fee Letter Final_1

	11 INFORMATION REPORT - Capital Investigation Implementation Plan
	Capital Investigation _Implementation Plan 140311
	App2_ Capital Investigation High Level Project Plan
	App3_Implementation of a Capital Strategy and Governance Arrang


